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is an ancient structure, with a square
wm it m ﬁvexm:lmt monuments to the
“memory of different members of the family of Basset,
the site of whose mansion is now occupicd by a modern
farm-house.  Blore is in the honour of Tutbury, duchy
of Lancaster, and within' the jurisdiction of a court of
pleas held at'i"mbwyovuythiﬂ’l‘msdny, for the
movery of debts unduw

'BLOWNORTON, &wkvinthehmdnduf‘ﬂnnr-
Huﬁngmm“mhfnhzbiw{s b%hl:)bﬁnm e

con 341 ving is a

rectory, in. archdeaconry of Norfolk,

and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at

£5, 6. 3., and in the patronage of the Rev. Charles Brown.
The church is dedicated to St. Andrew.

BLOXHAM, a parish in the wapentake of Frax-
‘WELL, parts of Kesteves, county of Lincous, 5 miles
(N, by W.) from Sleaford, containing 109 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, to which the vicarage of Digby
‘was united in 1717, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £9. 9. 41,
and in the patronage of R. Manners, Esq. The church
is dedicated to St. Mary.

- BLOXHAM,u parish in the bundred of Broxmam,
county of Oxvon, 4 miles (8. W. by 8.) from Banbury,
containing, with the chapelry of Milcombe, 1520 in-
babitnnts ~ The living is a vicarage, in the

and diocese of Oxford, rated in the king's
_boqks at £17. 9. 4., endowed with £205 private bene-
faction; and £200royal bounty, and in the patronage of
the Provost and Fellows gf Eton College. The church
ﬁwwam There is a place of worship

'BLOXWICH, tehnpeh'yin the parish of WALSALL,
n division of the hundred of Ovrrow, county of
, 8 miles (N.N.W.) from Walsall, with which

n ig returned. mlhringinagerpetual
- archdeacor ufMordand iocese of '

m‘#m

“The church, dedicated to

BLUBBER-HOUSES, a um.mp in the
Frewsron, lower division of the wapentake d
West r:dmg of the county of York, 7.miles (N, |
from Otley, containing 126 inhabitants.

BLUNRESTON, & parish in the hundredl of
¥orp and LoTHINGLAND, county of Su;mgx, 3]
miles (N.W.) from Lowestoft, containing 448 inhabit-
ants, The living isa dwcharged rectory, wh‘.h that of

Flixton united, in the archdeac of Suffolk, and dio-
cese of Norwich, rnmlmt.hekmguboohati . 6. 8.,
Mmt.hepatrtmage of the Rev, George 'l'he

church is dedicated to St.Mary., There is a
worship for Wesleyan Methodists, The navi river
Waveney runs on the south-western side of (fe

The Rev. Gregory Clarke, in 1726, gave a hume and
some land for the instruction of poor children.

BLUNHAM, a parish (formerly a market town) in
the hundred of Wixamrrer, county of Beoronn, 5§
miles (N.N.W.) from Biggleswade, containing, with t
hamlet of Moggerhanger, 945 inhabitants. * The llﬁllg
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Bedford, and dio-
cese of Lincoln, rated in the klngs books at £46, 211,
and in the patronage of Countess de Grey. The »
dedicated to St. Edmund, contains several ancient mo-
numents to the memory of different members of the
families of Longueville and Bromsall. Th isa place
of worship for Particular Baptists. The , which
was on Wednesday, and @ fair on thg fuﬁvﬂ‘d4
James, were granted in 1815. The navigable ri
runs on the western, and the Ivel on the mu.rn,mdl
of the purish. There is a mineral spring, u.lledl’q;]nt, .
well, but the water is not used for medicinal

BLUNSDON (ST. ANDREW), a parish in 2
dred of Higawonrrs, Crickrape, and StirLe, ty
of Wivrs, 4} miles (W.S. W.) from Highworth,

taining 65 inhabitants, The living is a hnhe
archdeaconry of Wilts, and diocese of Sn.lishnry,rabﬂ
in the king's books at £8. 19, €., and in the patronage &
of Mrs. Barker.

BLUNSDON (BROAD), a chapelry in the parish
of Higewonrta, hundred of Hicawonrth, CRICKLADE,
and STarLE, county dWirTs, 3 miles (W, by 8.) from
Highworth, containing 552 inhabitants.

BLUNTISHAM, a parish in the bundred of B’.nm
mamn, ommty of Huxminepoox, 44 miles (N. E. by

635 inhabi The liv-
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trust, by & body of feoffees, for the use of the poor, who

hmdmﬁehmdﬂtd’dimmﬂimw perio-

w initn'meping s et R

41, ravages across country,

own sixty bame, and about twelve g-

lwues in this parish, besides effecting considerable
on other kinds of property.

BLURTON, a chapelry in t.haparilh of TRENTHAM,
northern division of the hundred of PrremrLy, county
of Srarrorp, 4§ miles (S.E. by E.) from Newcastle
under Line, containing, with Lightwood Forest, 844
inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the
archdeaconry of Stafford, and diocese of Lichfield and
Coventry, endowed with £200 private benefaction,
and £200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the
M of Stafford.

BLYBOROUGH, a parish in the western division
of the wapentake of AsrLacog, parts of Linpsey, county
of LivcoLn, 9 miles (E.N.E,) from Gainsborough,
containing 184 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in
the archdeaconryof Stow, and diocese of Lincoln, rated
in the king's books at £19, and in the patronage of the
Crown. The church is dedicated to St. Alkmond. There
are mineral springs in the parish.

BLYMHILL, a parish in the western division of the
hundred of CurrtrEsTONE, connty of Starronn, 6 miles
(w.N.w.) from Brewood, containing, with Brincton, 604
inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
of Stafford, and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated
in the king's books at £13. 10. 74, and in the patron-
lga of the Earl of Bradford, The church is dedicated
ary. An annuity of £3. b,, the joint benefac-
f the Rev. John Taylor, in l&?’l and Mrs. Man-
to a schoolmaster, in addition to a small

‘and garden, rent-free, for teaching six

' read.

- BLYTH, :qpu'ish comprising the chapelry of Aus-
erfield in the northern, and the chapelry of Bawtry
.in the southern, division of the take of Strrav-
vortH and Tw;mu., West riding of the county of
Yorg,—the township of Ranskill, within the liberty of
SovraweLL and Scroony,—the market town of Bl

the townships of Barnby-Moor with Bilby, Styrrup
and Torworth, and the lordship of Hodsock, in the
Hatfield division of the wapentake of BAssETLAW,
NOTTINGHAM, 31* miles (N. by B.) from

194

are on Holy Thursday and October 20th.

I i X r, .I- »
ednesday ; and ﬁ{__
di vi in the mhdewonq %ﬁ;‘
Vicarage, »
-anddlmued\'wk,mwdmthekhg - at
£14,9. 44, endowed with £220 private benefaction, and
ﬁ‘zogall'loyﬂmunty,ndmthe - of the Master
and Fellows of Trinity Cambridge. The church,
dedicated to St. Martin, is a lofty structure in the
Norman style, and once formed the ante-choir of the
splendid cruciform church of the priory; it has a
handsome tower, in the later style of Englinh architec-
ture, with crocketed pinnacles, There are of
wnrsb.ip for the Society of Friends and Wesleyan Metho-
dists, A school for ten poor children of the town, and
for two from each of the adjoining townships, is endowed
with land producing £ 18 per annum, to which £5 from
the parish funds is annually added as a salary to the
master, who is appointed by the vicar of the parish.
Almshouses for six people, who have a small allow-
ance of money and coal, have been lately rebuilt, and
are su tnhnvebeenongmallysnappendngeto
the hospital founded by Hugh de
also almshouses for two aged women, endowed with f.lo
per annum, under the management of seven trustees,
chosen from the Society of Friends, besides other cha-
ritable bequests for the relief of the poor.

BLYTH (NORTH), a joint township with Camboie,
in the parish of BEpLinGTON, eastern division of Curs-
TER ward, county palatine of Durmam, 84 miles (E.S.E.)
from Morpeth. The population is returned with the
parish, 'The is situated on a peninsula, on the
northern side of the river Blyth, opposite to the town
and port of South Blyth, and is chiefly inhabited by
fishermen and pilots. The manufacture of salt and
carthenware was formerly carried on to a considerable
extent, but has been wholly discontinued, There are a
quay, several storehouses for corn, and a ship-yard, at
Link-End, a hamlet situated at the extremity of the
peninsula,

BLYTH (SOUTH), or BLYTH-NOOK, a small

sea-port and chapelry, partly in the parish of Homr-
TON, but chiefly in the parish of EArspon, eastern di-
vision of CasTLe ward, of Noamunnl.:.m,'
94 miles (E.S.E) from M h, 13 (N.N.E.) from
Numﬂemdﬂﬁﬁ(ﬂuw)fmm ‘containing,
with the lordship of Newsham, and exclusively of that
part of the town which is in the parish of Horton, 1805
inhabitants. The town is situated at the mouth of the

river Bl where it empties itself into ﬂln-N
seq ; until of late years, of a fi

‘in that part of it whichhh

v of

ment, however, has been made; but
place




partly formed on the margin

act this, a quay
of the river ; the undertaking, however, has been advis-
mznded. from dh opinion that the free admission

house was built by Sir M. W. Ridley, in 1788;
there is a beacon-light, called the Basket Rock-light, .A
detachment of troops from Tynemouth was stationed
here during the late war with France, in a small fort
commanding the mouth of the harbour, A chapel of
ease was built by Sir M. W. Ridley, in 1751, the right of
presentation to which belongs to the present baronet :
attached to it is a burial-ground. = A. meeting-house for
Preshyterians was built in 1814, one for Wesleyan
Methodists in 1815, one for a congregation of the New
Connexion of Methodists in 1818, and one for Scotch
Seceders in 1827, George Marshall, author of a miscel-
lanepus volume of poems, and “Letters from an Elder
toa Y Brother,” was born at this place,
BLYTHBURGH, a parish (formerly a market
town) in the hundred of Bryrming, county of Sup-
rork, 44 miles (W, by 8.) from Southwold, contain-
ing, with the hamlets of Bulcamp and Hinton, 513
inhabitants. The living is & perpetual curacy, in the
arehdeaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich, en-
dowed with £400 royal bounty, and £ 1800 parliament-
ary grant, and in the patronage of Sir Charles Blois,
Bart. The church, dedicated to the Holy Trinity, was
profusely adorned with paintings, sculpture, and stained
glass, but the former was destroyed in the time of Crom-
well, and of the latter only a few fragments remain.
Blythburgh, the origin of which has been ascribed to the
Britons, though the onl cs of antiquity that have
been discovered are som man urns, which were dug
up about 1768, was formerly a place of considerable im-
both as regards its trade and the extent of its

W:ithﬂduﬂ&ﬂy market and three annual
fairs, Its decuy is attributed to the suppression of the
and also to a fire which, in 1676, destroyed. a

This priory is stated, by some,

M
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Edmund's. The river Blyth is navigable hence
North sea. Thomas Neal, in 1589, gave a small por
ﬁhnd éur teaching five poor ehi&en ; and '
ymond, in 1728, assigned a rent-charge -
struction of twelve more, 3l R

BLYTHFORD, a parish in the hundred of Bryrm-
ING, county of Surrork, 2§ miles (E. by 8.) from
Halesworth, containing 163 inhabitants, The living
is a curacy, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk,
and diocese of Norwich, and in the patronage of the
&v. Jeremy Day. The church is dedicated to All

nts.

BLYTON, a parish in the wapentake of Conrine-
HAM, parts of Linpsey, county of Linconn, 4 miles
(N.E.) from Gainshorough, containing, with Wharton,
504 inhabitants, The living is a vicarage, in the arch-
deaconry of Stow, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in
the king's books at £12, and in the patronage of the
Earl of Scarborough. The church is dedicated to St.
Martin, There is a place of worship for Wesleyan
Methodists.

BOARHUNT, a parish in the hundred of Powrs-
pown, Portsdown division of the county of Sours-
AmMpPTON, 14 mile (N.E.) from Farecham, containing
205 inhabitants, The living is a donative, in the pa-
tronnge of T. Thistlethwayte, Esq. On that part of
Portsdown which is within this parish a monument
has been erected, in memory of Admiral Lord Nelson,
which also serves as a beacon. Here was formerly a
Cistercian monastery, but there are no remains of it.

BOARSTALL, a parish in the hundred of Asurn-
pox, county of Buckincuam, 74 miles (8.8, E.) from
Bicester, containing 231 inhabitants. The living is a
perpetual curacy, annexed to that of Brill, in the arch-
deaconry of Buckingham, and diocese of Bincoln, en-
dowed with £15 per annum private benefaction, and
£400 royal bounty. The church, dedicated to St.
James, was a chapel of ease to the vicarage of Oakley
until 1418, when it was made parochial. Boarstall
House, in the early part of the civil war, was
for the king, but was evacuated in 1644, and immedi
ately taken possession of by the parliamentary rnllon
at Aylesbury. Col. Gage recovered it again, and placed
a garrison therein, but it was ultimately surrendered to
Fairfax, in 1646 : the only part now remaining is a large
gateway, with turrets at the angles. ; &

BOBBING, a parish in the bundred of Mirrox,
lathe of Scray, county of Kent, 14 mile (W. by N.)
from Milton, containing 325 inhabitants. The living
is & vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Can-
terbury, endowed with £200 private benefaction, and
£200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of Miss
Simpson. The church, dedicated to St. Bartholomew,
is composed of two aisles, two chancels, and a western
tower guj ing a spire, A fair is held on the 4th of
September. A on of £50 from Ann Gibbon
has been vested in land, now producing £8, 6. per an-
num, for which seven {
At Key-Street, 2 small t in this
g0 ealled for Caing’ street (Caii siratum),
on a Roman highway, there
Romans obtained part of the materials for m
2C2
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~girls in 1825,  An almshouse,
.memumduwadﬁthabmimpermm, arising
.ﬁmdiﬂh:mtbaﬁschnns and there are various
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BOBBDEG‘I‘ON, a parish partly in the hw of
BrimsTrEE, county of Savow, but chiaﬂ‘:rqn ‘
ern division of the hundred of SEISDON,
Snrronn. 9 miles (8, W.) from Waly tol
'il inhabitants. The living is & perpe
thin the jurisdiction of the court of the royal
peculhr of Bridgenorth, endowed with £200 private
benefaction, and £400 royal bounty, and in the pa-
tronage of T. Whitmore, Esq. The church, dedicated to
St. Mary, has recently been mﬂ by the addition
of ninety-three free sittings, degnymg the ex-
pense of which, the Incorporated Society for enlarging
churches and chapels granted £50, A free school was
built in 1702, by Hannah Cobbett, who endowed it with
£1400 three per cents,, for the instruction of twenty
boys and twelve girls,
BOBBINGWORTH, a parish in the hundred of
Oxcan, connty of Essex, 24 miles (N.W.) from Chip-

"ping-Ongar, containing 277 inhabitants, The living is

a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Essex, and diocese of
London, rated in the kmgs hooks at £13. 6. 8., and
in the patro of Thomas Smith, Esq. The church
is dedicated u%ct

BOCKENFIELD a tnwnshlp in that part of the
parish of Ferron which is in the eastern division
of MorpeTn ward, county of NoRTHUMBERLAND, 8§
miles (N. by W.) from Morpeth, containing 107 inha-
bitants.
BOCKHAMPTON, a joint tything with Eastbury, in
the parish and hundred of Lamsouny, county of BErks,
4 of a mile (8. E. by £.) from Lambourn. The popula-
tion is returned with Eastbury.

BOCKING, u parish in the hundred of HiNekroRD,
county of Essex, 1 mile (N.) from Braintree, contain-
ing 2786 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, and the

“head of afdeanery, which still cxercises its ancient

lightn,!ntbe'pmliar jurisdiction and patronage of the
Canterbury, rated in the king's books at
£35. 10. 'I‘hechnrch is dedicated to St. Mary. This
ﬁhge formerly enjoyed considerable trade in baize, for
one species of which it was so dis-
tinguished, that the articles were called Bockings, and
a great quantity was annually sent to Portugal. The
petty sessions for the division are held here. John
Gunden, Bishop of Worcester, gave £21 per annum for
zhelustmcﬂmofmlaoorchldm A Lancasterian
schiool for boys was established in 1812, and one for
of nine tene-

minor charitable donations. Bishnp'!‘nnaerstates
that John Doreward, Esq., in the 18th of Henry VI
founded here an hospital, called Le maison Dieu, or
Gdnhonﬁ,fwam or master, anddxpoor

_ BOCKLETON, a parish partly in the hundred of
Broxisn, county of Henwvrorp, but chiefly in the
e S

Dean and Chapter of Exeter,

BOGGNNDC a plrhhhin t-he lmndrlld of 'WW
county of Gomu.n. 3% miles (E.N.E) from Lost-
withiel, containing 253 inhabitants, The living is a
discharged rectory, with which that of B
consolidated in 1742, in the peculiar jurisdiction of the

at £0. 17. 8., and in the pa “of Lord Grenville,

In 1644, dlﬁng the parliamentary war, Charles abode a

short time at Boconnoe House, when he narrowly es-
caped death, having been fired at’by a rebel whilst walk-
ing in the grounds. In the park are of lead
mines, one of which was worked about that period, and
again about the middle of the eighteenth century, but
the produce was found too small to defray the cxpense,
BODDINGTON, a parish partly in the lower divi-
gion of the hundred of Tewkesnury, and partly in the
lower division of the hundred of WesTminsTER, county
of GroucesTer, 3§ miles (N. W. by W.) from Chelten-
ham, containing 413 inhabitants, The living is a per-
petual curacy, annexed to the vicarage of Staverton, in
the jurisdiction of the peculiar court of Deerhurst, in
which, however, no spiritual authority is exercised, The
church is dedicated to St. Mary Magdalene.
BODDINGTON (LOWER and UPPER), & parish
in the hundred of CareriNGg-Wannes, county of Norrn-

amproN, 94 miles (8. W. by 8.) from Daventry, con- 5

taining 634 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the
archdeaconry of Northampton, and diocese of Peterbo-
rough, rated in the King's books at £20, and in the pa-
tronage of Thomas Golightly, Esq. The church is de-
dicated to St.John the Baptist. Richard Lamprey, in
1758, gave a tenement for a school-house, and the in-
terest on £300, being the amount of different benefac-
tions, is paid to a schoolmaster for instructing sixteen
poor children,

BODENHAM, a parish (anciently a market town)
in the hundred of Broxasm, county of Hereronn,
miles (N. N. E.) from Hereford, containing 964 inhabit-
ants. The living is a wcnrage in the arch
and diocese of Hereford, rated in the king's books at
£12. l.Bi,nndmthepatmnngeofRArk wright, Esq.
The church is dedicated togBt. Michnel. Thm is a

place uf worship for We Methodists. The river
Lug winds through the parish. Here is a small en-
dowed school.  Walter Deverenx, in 1379, obtained per-

mission to hold a market on Tuesday, and a fair on the

eve, day, and morrow of r.hcAsmmptimofDuw
but they have been long discontinued. Thomas M
Esq., by will dated in 1773, gave nine acres of lan

.,)T . '.' .

‘was'
‘the king's books
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' ~of Lewes, and diocese
mdintheldng'u books at £6. 18, %L
.ﬂ hﬂ:’u m&&rﬂ.v Webster, Bart,

church, an ancient edifice, is dedicated to St. Giles, The
m’lbmdndmthe north and south by two

Thamﬂ’ which unite at its eastern
extremity, become uninhabitable, and in
- mwumtmml&ermgmtefoms an extensive and in-

ruin, though still complete in some of its parts,
multgglﬁm, a chapelry in the parish of East Ap-
perBuryY, hundred of Buoxmam, county of Oxronn,

14 mile (8. by E.) from Banbury, contatnmgﬂSE inha-
bitants, There is a place of worship for Particular

BODMIN, a parish in
the hundred of Taiee,
county of CorNwaALL, con-
taining, with the borough
of Bodmin, which pos-
/ sesses separate jurisdiction,
3278 inhabitants, of which
number, 2902 are in the
borough 204 miles (8. W,
by w.) from Luunceston,
_ nnddg:u; (W. 8. W.) from

London, on the high west-

b JEEPAS ek, il woadd 4 BoRts; bw'the

| Cmiuh langua.gt: called Bosvenna, “the houses on the
~ hill)"! and in ancient.«charters Bos-mana and Bod-minian,

" “the abode of the monks,” owes its origin to a monas-

tery founded by King Athelstan, in 936, in eupersedence
of a cell for four brethren previously established by St.

. Pehﬁek,ﬂbout-sla on the site of a solitary hermitage ori-

~ the bishoprick of Cornwall, Dr. Borlase, whose opinion
‘has been entertained by others, states that Edward the
Elder, in 905, conferred this honour upon it, and it be-
came the residence of the bishops until 981, when the
town, church, and monastery having been burnt by the
- Danes, the episcopal chair removed to St. German's.
But this has been suc lly refuted by Mr. Whit-
'~ aker, in his work entitled “The ancient Cathedral of
~ Cornwall historically surveyed,” wherein he shews that
- the see was founded so early as 614, and that St. Ger-
Jnan's was made the sent therdof usserting, on
ority of a grant by King Ethelred, that the mo-
4 . i was aunexed by thl.t monnrehb“i:
pate of St.German's, and that
seombined to furnish a title to the future prelates
~annexation of the bishoprick of Cornwall to
n, inthe county of Devon, in 1031, about
h Exeter was made the head of

AR AT Sttt AR - Dl
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pﬂ-stohmbmmmvﬁyhhﬁﬁadhy enedictine
monks, nuns, secular , monks and canc
regular of the order of ugmﬁu the circum-

tmneeofhispomemg a gallows and a pillory, t.’he‘_
prior had evidently the power of inﬂietingcnp?ﬁlpuni
ment. Its revenue, at the dissolution, amounted to
£289, 11. 11,5 the site and demesne were granted to
Thomas Sternhold, one of the first translators of the

« Psalms ioto English metre. St. Petrock was buried

here; for, says Leland, “ The Shrine and Tumbe of
St. Petrok yet stondith in thest part of the Chirche.”
The town appears to have increased rapidly after the
Conquest, since the same antiquary describes the mar-
ket as being “lyke a fair for the confluence of people,”
and enumerates, in addition to the parochial church and
the cantuary chapel near it, two other chapels, a house
and church of Grey frmrs, begun by Johm of London,
a merchant, about 1239, augmented by Edward, Farl
of Carnwull and in the time of Elizabeth converted
inte a house of correction for the county; and two
hospitals, dedicated respectively to St. Anthony and St.
George, besides the hospital of St, Lawrence, a mile off.
Norden also says, ““ It hath bene of larger receite then
now it is, as appeurcth by the ruynes of mmdrye buyld-
ings decayde.” William of Worcester, citing the regis-
ter in the church belonging to the Grey friars, states that
one thousand five hundred of the inhabitants died of the
plague, about the middle of the fourteenth century, It
was one of those decayed towns in the county, to repair
which an act passed in the 32nd of Henry VIIL

In 1496, Perkin Warbeck, the pretended duke of
York, on landing in Cornwall, assembled here a force of
three thousand men, with which he marched to attack
the city of Exeter ; and in 1498, an insurrection of the
Cornish men was organized, under the i nee of
Thos. Flammoc, a lawyer, and Michael Joseph, a farrier,
in this town, who, being chosen leaders, conducted the
insurgents to Wells, where they were joined by Lord
Audley, who placed himself at their head. The rebels
continued their march into Kent, and encamped at
Eltham, where, in the battle of Blackheath, having been
surrounded by the king's troops, they were made pri-
soners, and dismissed without further punishment ; but
Lord Audley, Flammoe, and Joseph, were executed as
ringleaders. During the depression of trade and agri-
culture, in the reign of Edward VL, the Cornish men,
superstitiously attributing their distresses to the Refor-
mation, assembled at Bodmin to the number of ten
thousand, under the command of Humphrey Arundel,
governor of St.Michael's Mount, and being counte-
nanced by the inhabitants, encamped at Kynoe,
near the town, Thainmrgentsmmhedtbmeetobe-
siege Exeter, demanding the re-establishment of the
mass, and the restoration of the abbey lands; but, after

ston, Provmt-l!nnhll, who

to punish the ts, is said to have mm
mayor at his own , after having been

entertained in his house. Durl:fﬂudvﬂm
reign. of Charles L, the town, which kadl 1 permamenit
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the parliament. . After the Restoration, Charles II. visit-
ed Bodmin, on his journey to Scilly.
The town is situated clevttmn rising
out of the vale, betmtwo_ s, almost in the centre
of the county : it consists of street, nearly a mile
in length, containing many ancient houses, and several
neat modern edifices ; it has been mantly well paved,
is partially lighted, and amply supplied with water.
The races, which took place annually in the week after
the summer assizes, have been discontinued for the last
few years ; the course, which is one of the best in the
county, is about a mile and a half distant. Assem-
blies are held oceasionally; and in July an annual
procession of the populace, on horseback and on foot,
. carrying of flowers, is made to a place in the
vicinity called Halgaver moor ; this ceremony, the me-
morial of some ancient festival, now falling into disuse,
is called Bodmin Riding. The manufacture of bone lace,
which formerly flourished, has given place to that of
shoes, a great quantity of which is exposed for sale
in the markets and fairs; there is also a small manu-
factory for woollen cloth, and the spinning of worsted-
yarn is carried on to a limited extent. The market is
on Saturday : the fairs are on January 25th, the Satur-
day preceding Palm-Sunday, the Tuesday and Wednes-
day before Whitsuntide, and December 6th, for horses
and horned cattle; large cattle fairs are also held in
the hamlet of St, Lawrence, August 21st, and October
29th and 30th. The government, by charter of incor-
poration originally granted in the twelfth century, by
Richard, Earl of Cornwall, confirmed by the kings
Edward 1. and IIL, and which, after having been for-
feited through neglect, was renewed and extended by
George 111, is vested in a mayor, eleven aldermen,
and -four common council-men, assisted by a
town-clerk, who acts as recorder, and subordinate offi-
cers. The mayor, the late mayor, and the recorder, are
justices of the peace, and hold courts of session for
t‘hebmugh,atEuter and Michaelmas. The sum-
- mer assizes, and the Epiphany, Midsummer, and Mi-
chaclmas quarter sessions for the county, are also™ield
here, The town-hall consists of the two ends of the
spacious refectory formerly belonging to an ancient
convent of Grey friars, the only remains of that build-
ing, which have been fitted up as courts ; the interme-
diate area is appropriated to the use of the corn mar-
ket, and over the whole, a room for the grand jury, and
lu-ge nmhly-mmn. have been built. The county
built in 1780, on Mr. Howard's plan, has been
y enlarged for the proper classification of prisoners ;
it is a neat and com ing near the town, and

two members to the of election is
vuteduchuvdyhmmbm the corporation,
in number thirty-seven, who are in the interest of the
of Hertford: the mayor is the ing officer,

The living is a _ , in the archdea-
conry of Cornwall, and diocese of rated in the

s books'at £18.6.8,, and in the patronage of Lord
ville, mam.mdws;m

the conventual church ¢

_.muh.xm-:;u__ a spac
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was founded by Queen Elizs
£5. 6. 8. per annum, ];;
which the corporation have add 695 per annum, and,
in addition to this, the master is allowed to charge an-

nually £2. 2. for each scholar : a commodious school-
roumhasbememcudonthcnmhlidedthsm
and the old building in the churchyard is appropriated
as a National school for girls. Dr. Prideaux, Dnnoj-
Norwich, received the rudiments of his education in this
school. There is also an English school, the master of
which is appointed by the corporation. A commodious
Iunatic asylum was built at the western extremity of
the town in 1820. About a mile to the east are some
remains of the hospital of St. Lawrence; origitally en-
dowed for nineteen lepers, two sound men and women,
and a priest, who were incorporated by Queen Eliza-
beth, in 1582, from whom they received the of a
market, now discontinued, and a fair, still held on the
21st of August: the revenue, about#140 per annum,
was subsequently, by a decree of the court of ieery,
transferred to the infirmary at Truro. Within a small
distance is Castle Kynock, a considerable intrenchment;
and on the northern side of the town there is a ruined
tower, the only relic of Bury chapel, so called from a
tumulus on an eminence near the spot. The curious
Druidical circles, called the Hurlers, are in this nmgh
bourhood.

BODNEY, a parish in the southern division 6f the
hundred of Greennog, county of Norvrork, 5 miles
(W. by 8.) from Watton, containing 90 inhabitants,
The living is a discharged rectory, united to that of
Great Cressingham, in the mhdunonrx of Norfolk,
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the 's books at
£6. 7. 34. The church is dedicated to St.

BOGNOR, a market town and chapelry in thlph-
rish of Sovrn Berstep, hundred of Avpwick, rape
of CuicnusTER, county of Syssex, 7 miles (S, E,) ﬁwn
Chichester, and 68 (8. w. ya)frmnlandm. The
population is returned with the parish. i an-
ciently called Bogenor, implying, in the Saxon
a rocky shore, gns, prior to 1790, an i
lage, inhabited dnly by a few labourers
The rocks, extending several miles
der it accessible only to ships of mllL
ing from those commercial h ot
tinnlnothumpectaoﬂ‘u-s it owes its ir
salubrity of the air, and the wmadhm
beach, which have made it hgi Wﬁr
ing. n mm.su- Richard }

~for the

thenmmladmtaguw
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his deccase, his estate here being
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frequently breaks
coast : it oé"ands an extensive view of the
of Wight ; and,"™ a clear day, the Ower's light
may be distinetly seen, which at night assumes the
appearance of a gem in the ocean. It contains several
handsome: villas,

Brighton. The warm and cold baths are conveniently
ed for the use of invalids ; there are two sub-

geription libraries, and races occasionally take place on
the The character of the place seems to render
it uliarly eligible to families who seek to avail
“ themselves of the benefit of sea-bathing and a marine
* mtmosphere in tranquillity and retirement, rather than
to frequent watering-places in search of amusement.
There is no other trade than what is necessary for the
iply. of the imhabitants, of whom several are em-

yyed in the fishery, for the supply of the London
market. The Portsmouth and Arun canal passes within
three miles of the town. The markets, recently esta-
blished by act of parliament, and for which a spacious
market-placé hag been formed, are on Thursday and
Saturday ; and a fair is held on the 5th and 6th of
- July. _"ﬂlc internal regulation of the town is under
the superintendence of commissioners appointed under
‘an act, who meet once a month: they levy a duty of
two shillings per chaldron upon coal, culm, and coke
brought into the town, which is applied in repairing
the roads.. The chapel, dedicated to St. John, was
built @nd endowed by subscription, in 1821. There

_- ﬁam worship for Independents and Wesleyan
thodi The Jubilee school, for the instruction of
fifty i .WWthPﬁmGhnﬂm; and a
chool ﬁ-‘dolhhlg and edmtiﬁ twenty girls, found-

: Smith, of Bersted are supported by
n.  In the rocks various fossils have
red ; | agates and pebbles, and,
high tides, pyrites, are found in pro-

on the beach.

_a township in that }I.I‘é"ef the parish
#hﬁt-hhthemth—mugtudivisim;;
N sward, county palatine of RHAM,

.) from Darlington, containing 121 inhabit-

BOL

and in the of the Crown. The church, an
ancient edifice, is dedicated to St. Andrew. On the
western sidé of the village are of an o
intrenchment, consisting. of a rampart with a deuble
ditch, which was approached by a raised road. Mr.
Gale ascribes it to the Britons, and is of opinion that
this was the town of Glanoventa, which Camden fixes
on the banks of the Wansbeck ; some consider it to be
of Roman, and others of Saxon, origin. A branch of
the Watling-street, called the Devil's Cansewny, may be
distinctly traced abont a mile westward, near which are
two stone pillars, with a tumulus between them, which,
on being opened, was found to contain a stone coffin.
On an intrenched rock, on the north-eastern side of
Bolam moor, are the ruins of some ancient buildings.
The village was formerly much larger than it is at
present ; there are coal and limestone in the parish,
The township of Bolam-Vicarage comprises only the
glebe land, lying on the eastern side of the church,

BOLAS (GREAT), n parish in the Newport division
of the hundred of Braprorp (South), county of Savrop,
74 miles (W. by N.) from Newport, containing, with Mee-
son, 274 inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in the arch-
deaconry of Salop, and diocese of Lichfield and Coven-
try, rated in the king's books at £7. 9. 44., and in the
patronage of Sir R, Hill, Bart. The church is dedicated
to St. John the Baptist,

BOLD, a township in the parish of Prescor, hun-
dred of West Derpy, county palatine of Lancastes,
44 miles (E. 8. E.) from Prescot, containing 818 inhabit-
ants, The present elegant mansion of Bold Hall was
built after a design by Leoni; and the old hall, a cu-
rious edifice, is now the farm-house belonging to it. The
family of Bold resided here previously to the Conquest,
and preserved an uninterrupted succession of male heirs
down to the death of Peter Bold, Esq., parlinmentary
representative for the county, who died in 1761, The
Rev. Richard Barnes, promoted to the see of Carlisle in
1570, and to that of Durham in 1577 ; and his brother,
John Barnes, the chancellor, were natives of this place.

BOLD, a chapelry in the parigh of Asron-Bor-
TERELL, hundred of STorTESDEN, county of Savor, B}
miles (N, N. W,) from Cleobury-Mortimer. The popula-
tion is returned with the parish. The chapel is in ruins,

BOLDON, a parish in the eastern division of Caes-
TER ward, county palatine of Durnas, 4§ miles (N.W.)
from Sunderland, comprising the of East and
West Boldon, and containing 783 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Durham, rated in the king's books at £24. 18. 4., and
in the patro of the Bishop of Durham. The church,
which has a short spire, is dedicated to St. Nicholas,
There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.
The village of West Boldon stands on an eminence, and
contains several respectable houses, some of which are



mMﬁNM,ndthSm who gherl held

with

. mmnmwed;wnde@é' for

. in 1808, gave £10
“poor children to the parish,

_BOLDRE, a purish partly int.hn eastern division of
the hundred of New Forest, New Forest (East) divi-
sion, and partly in the hundred of Carigrenuncs, New
Forest (West) division, of the county of Sourmmn,
2 miles (N.) from Lymington, con with the
hamlets of Sway and Walhnmpton, 2150 inhabitants,
The living is a discharged vicarage, with the perpetual
curacy of Lymington annexed, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Winchester, rated h'l the king's books at £12,
endowed with £200 private benefaction, and £200 royal
bounty, and in the pa of J. P. Shrubb, Esq. The
church is dedicated to St. John. There is a place of
worship for Particular Baptists. A school for instructing
and clothing twenty poor boys and twenty girls was
founded at Pilley, in this parish, by the Rev, William

* Gilpin, vicar of Boldre, who erected the school-honse,
with dwellings for a master and a mistress, and, in 1503,
endowed the school with the profits of his literary
publications, wviz., “ The Lives of Bernard Gilpin, Arch-
bishop Cranmer, Bishop Latimer,” ¢ Picturesque Tours
through the New Forest, and other parts of England."
“Tllustrations of the New Testament,” ** Explanation of
the Church Catechism,” &e. The school is under the
superintendence of. special visitors,

BOLDRON, a township in the parish of Bowes,
western division of the wapentake of Ginuine, North
riding of the county of York, 2 miles (8. W, by 8.) from
Barnard-Castle, containing 168 inhabitants,

BOLE, a parish in the North-clay division of the
.wnpmtuke of Basserraw, county of Norringaam, 34

“miles (8.W. by 8.) from Gainsborough, mmnmg 193

inhabitants, The living is a disch in the
gmlhr Jurisdiction of the Prebendary nf Bole in the

thedral Church of York, rated in the king's books
at£4. 18, 4., endowed with £200 royal bounty, and in
the patronage of the Dean and Chapter of York. The
church is dedicated to St. Martin. Bole ferry, across
the Trent, is aboit & mile distant, William Nettleship,
in 1780, gave a small rent-charge for the instruction
of four poor

BOLEHALL, a joint township with Glascote, in
that part of the of Tamworra which is in the
Tamworth - divigion of the hundred of HemiLinGrorD,
mlmty of Warwick, 1 mile (8.8.E,) from Tamworth,

with Glascote, 414 inhabitants.

BOLINGBROKE, a market town and parish in the
mm of the soke of Borinanroxe, partsof
Lixnsey, county of Lincouw, 30 miles (E.S.E.) from
Lincol, and 129 (N.) from London, containing 753 in-

# habitants, This town is dtwed near the

mappomwltf-m [ the lord of | X
The living is a dis ' “wl
Hareby was united in lm;in the, archdeaconry
and diocese of Lincoln, n theslting's bo

at £9, 19. 2., and in the p of Mr, a

Warren. The churchhdedwnﬂﬂ to St. Pete ‘ : S
Puul, isa ous and venerable mﬂugl i o
siderable I;rtpn?f it was destroyed in the %nr Eﬁ g
the reign of Charles 1. There is a place of worship
for Wesleyan Methodists. A free school has a
endowment for the instruction of poor childresn

BOLLEN-FEE, a township in the parish o
row, hundred of MaccrLEsrigLn, county pe
Cugrster, 6 miles (8. W.) from Stockpgt, 3
1761 inhabitants.

BOLLINGTON, a township partly inbe )
of Bowpox, but chiefly in the parish:of Ros®
hundred of Bucknow, county palatine
54 miles (N. by W,) from Nether l\nut.sf _
264 inhabitants. There is a place of worshﬂl Wél-
leyan Methodists.

BOLLINGTON, a township in the parishof P
punry, hundred of MaocLEsFieLDp,, county palat
Cuxster, 24 miles (N. by E.) from Macelesfield
taining 1723 inhabitants, The village lies on the banks
of a small stream, called the Bolling, from whicl its
name is derived. Here are some silk and cot
tories, collieries, and a water-mill for grm
and so prosperous has been the trade of theplace,
the population has increased one-third since the ce
of 1821, The Macclesfield conal passes throug
township. A chapel has lately been erected, by
of & grant obtained from the parliamen
gioners, The Wesleyan Methodists have

_house, attached to which is a Sunday “]100 W

five hundred children are instructed. At B
which is partly in this township, and pa in
Rainow, there are quarries of freestone and slat
to a considerable extent, the produce being chi
the neighbouring towns; they were former!
the Crown to the corporation of Macclesfield,

been assigned, by an act passed in ﬂm?e{, e, < |
to the etors of land in the vicini #ﬂs ] _;I

hamlet in the parish :

hundmd of ¥IELD, county of Oxror:
(8.8.E) from Henley upon Thames. m
is rm:u::;lm with the parish. Bolney
has beennnitadto the rectory
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large qmﬁtiu and furnishes a
“export, by'the name of “ Stour-
best Ties at about one hundred
surface of the earth, in strata
ur feghthick, in the compass of about
acres, the town: quantities
bricks are made, and sent to London and
The manufacture of iron forms also a
rtant  branch of the trade of this town
ghbour and the manufactories are ge-
% » most extensive scale, particularly that of
ad Co., which covers nearly four acres, and
oyment usually to about one thousand men:
uﬁdelnmughtur cast iron is here
d,. comprehending in the foundry, steam-
boilers, gasometers, and every description
y ﬁachinery; the bearers, roofs, and fire-
to the custom-honse, the new
. d the recently erected portion of the
Museum, were cast here: in' the wrought-iron

manufictory are made merchant, wire, and sheet, iron;
hoops ; nail- small rounds and squares, &c. In
oth‘ ries are made the various articles

: iron, besides scythes, spades, anvils and
;, plantation 100& chains, called gearing, &c.; but
%of the trade which is carried on to the
is the making of nails, which, in the town
ibourhood, affords employment to some thou-

women, and children. The trading interests
y beneﬁtad by & canal, which, running from
i tor the Staffordshire and Worcestershire canal,
it with that extensive line of inland naviga-
n]n'md: in various branches over the mining
o if dutnetl of the country, and also
evern, @ fording an opening for the transit of
oft]m om. Themarket, granted
VIL,is on Friday, and is well attend-
lm.rknt huhh, l'eeenﬂyerectad, at an upense

triangle, the aides formed by an arcade,
“those who attend the market expose their

e ; the area inthecenm is_left open, and
' not occupiedby the entrance
mﬂummthqsothofuuch
the former, which continues seven

the latter is for horses,

s, 'to the second

from whlch 6150 is md to t.he _ sad-maste
mumr;thamma.indu according to a
special clause in the deed of endowment, after deduet-
ing for repairs of the school, &c., is dn'ided“
them ; eachmuterhnsnlsoa good rent-free res
The government is vested in eight of the
inhabitants, who are a body corporate, and elect the
masters, For several years there were no pupils on the'
foundation, but at present there are a few: attached to
the school is a library of ancient books. Dr. Johnson
received the rudiments of his education in this school
until he was fifteen years of age ; but the report of his
having been a candidate for the head-mastership is void
of truth. A National school was crected in 1815, and
is supported by voluntary contributions ; nearly t.hree
hundred children are instructed in it, and it is also used
as a Sunday school, This town has the privilege of send-
ing four boys to a noble institution called the Blue-coat
hospital, founded by Thomas Foley, Esq. ; and it also
participates in the advantages of the endowments of
John Wheeler and Henry Glover; but as these institu-
tions are for the benefit of the parish generally, an ac-
count. of them will be given under the article Owup
Swinvorn. There are twenty-two friendly societies,
composed of ahout one thousand five hundred members,
who assemble on Whit-Monday, and proceed to church,
with banners and music. In a sandy tract of g'mnud
to the westward of the town, numerous detached por-
tions of jasper, porphyry, rock-salt, granite, chalcedony,
agate, cornelian, and several varieties of marble, sup-
posed to be diluvial remains, have been discovered.
STOURMOUTH, a parish in the hundred of Breax-
GATE, lathe of St Avcusting, county of Kent, 8
miles (E.N.E.) from Canterbury, containing 257 inha-
bitants. The living is a rectory, in. the archdeaconry
and diocese of Canterbury, rated in the king's books
at £19, and in the patronage of the Bishop of Roches-
ter. The church is dedicated to Allts:mu.m'rhe navi-
ble river Stour passes through pari
STOURPAIN, a parish in the hundred of PimperyE,
Blandford (North) division of the county of Dorsgr,
3 miles (N. W, by N.) from Blandford-Forum, contain-
ing 499 inhabitants. The living is a discharged vicarage,
in the peculiar jurisdiction and patronage of the Dean
and Chapter of Salisbury, rated in the king's books at
£7.18, 64., and endowed with £ 200 parlinmentary grant.
The church is dedicated to the Holy Trinity. The river
Stour is navigable on the west and south of this parish.
Lacerton, formerly a distinct parish, was united, in 1431,
to Stourpain, to which it is now only a hamlet. In a
field, called Chapel Close, adjoining a farm-house, the
foundations of its ancient church, which was dedicated to
St. Andrew in 1381, may be still ‘traced, On an eminence,
muedﬂodhiﬂ,mthemmofawuhump‘h
the form of the letter D, with a double

under which, mmmwmmmmm
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mmomr a m!'rket town in the ¢ ~of
Mirron, of KipperminsTeR, lower division
of the hundred of HALPSHIRE, county of WorcesTer,
4 miles (8. 8. W.) from Kidderminster, and 180 (W. N,
Ww.) from London. The is returned with
hqu;m. This place, which is of modern date, owes
and present importance to the of

the Stalfordlhim and Worcestershire with the
river Severn, on the south side of the town, near the
confluence of the Stour with that river., Its name is de-
rived from its situation on the Stour, and from its being
the port, or dep6t, to which the manufactured articles
and produce of the adjoining counties are brought for
transmission to different commercial towns ; a commu-
nication opened between the Severn and the Trent
by the Grand Trunk canal, and a connexion thus formed
with most of the kingdom. Prior to the com-
pletion of the Staffordshire and Worcestershire canal, in
1770, the only part of the town in existence was a few
cnﬂatgen , forming a part of Lower Mitton. The trade

tenﬂed for transmission by canal navigation, extensive
basins havidg been formed, and warehouses erected, for
their reception ; and the conveyance of them is a source
of lucrative employmcnt to many of the inhabitants, as
well as the building of boats and barges, for which docks
have been constructed. A canal was projected from this
town to Kington in Herefordshire, but it has only been
executed s far ns Mamble. Stourport is a neat well-
built town, principally of brick ; the chief streets are
pgvnd and it is partially lighted wlth gas, A subscrip-

L

tion library was established in 1821, and there are two’

reading societies. %esevmhhemmmdbyahnnd-
of one arch,

course for the water, in case of
brld.ge built in 1775, had
three arches over the river, the centre arch being forty-
one on each side of it forty-
ha been swept awny by a
brought down by the flood after a
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pally arises from its being the depdt for goods in-
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workhouses within the

caxt.le buﬂtby)ohn@

thepresmt i huomuﬂ:’
etors

point in thimesne is u lofty

by the late Henry Hoare, Esq.,

illustrious king of the West sdm, wh

0,
from his retreat in the Isle of Athelney, is st

fixed his standard on this ground, bearing-
Kingsettle Hill : it lies dn'ocﬂy on the line of
to Petra Ecbricta, now Brixton-Deverill, and
where he fought the Danes, and gained a ilmry
over them. Under a statue is the following inse

< Alfred the Great, A.D. 879, on this summit u'éeﬁtl
his standard n.gnlnst the Danish invaders. To him we
owe the origin of juries, and the créution of a nq%l
force. Alfred, the light of & benighted age, plﬂ
losopher and a Christian, the father of his

the founder of the English monarchy and liberties."” h
656, Cenwallus, King of Wessex, defeated ﬁew
hm. and drove them to Petherton, on the river P

In 1001, another obstinate battle was vertﬁh
saimne spot, in which the Dane.s o tg

under Cola and 4 6, Ihlg
Edmund here defeated the Danes under King
At the south-western extremity of the parish, and
partly in Somersetshire, is a wide boggy tract of coun-

try, part of which exhibits a great number of curious
excavations, known by the name of Pen Pits: of these
there are several thousand, of various forms and di-
mensions, scattered over a surface of nearly seven
hundred acres. Stourton gives the title of baron to ﬁe
family of Stourton, so created in 1448.

STOUTING, a parish in the hundred of Smtrmm,
lathe of Sunrwu, county of Kunt, 8 miles (E. by 8.)
from Ashford, containing 236 inhabitants. The living =
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Canter-
bury, rated in the king's books at £7. 17. 11, and in =~
the patronage of the Rev. Jucob Geo. W ,D.C.L.

The church, dedicated to St. Mary, is pr. _
English architecture, The parish

y the Roman Stane-strect, and o
branch of the river Stour rises here, In the neighbour
hood is a mound overgrown with wood, & i‘h.ia
was a double , but the origin of it d
in obscurity, urns and Roman coins hnvn' het
diaeavmd in this parish,

STOVEN, a parish in the hundred ﬁ _
comtyof Svmu, 64 miles (N. E.
worth, 116 inhabitants,

E 4




Nor-

er, the west window, and a few other
: It was founded for Secular
greatly angmzn‘:: Ila)orl.g:rmfirm e
been greatly ¥ ic and his
After the Conquest these religious became
Remigius obtainpdgf::thm &fm“%vm

Rufus, the then desolate abbey of Eynsham in Oxford-
where they soon afterwards settled. There is a

lace of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. Courts leet

upnﬂbmmm annually held here, and a fair for horses
and

in the Norman style, with the upper

cattle on October 10th. A school for the education

of poor children is endowed with about £12 per an-

num. Watling-street passes near this place, which is
supposed to be the ancient Lidnacester of the Romans.

'W, a parish in the hundred of Pursrow, county

of ?, 14 mile (N.E) from Knighton, containing
157 i . The living is a discharged vicarage,
in the nry of Salop, and diocese of Hereford,

rated in the king's books at £4. 7. 4., endowed with
£200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Crown,
The church is dedicated to St. Michael. The river Team
runs t the parish.
©  STOW (LONG), a parish in the bundred of Loxc-
grow, county of CamnrinGe, 2§ miles (5.8.E.) from
Caxton, containing 191 inhabitants. The living is & rec-
, in the and diocese of Ely, rated
‘the king's books at £4. 8. 4. The Rev. W, Wright
was patron in 1820. An hospital for poor sisters was
founded here, and dedicated to the Blessed Virgin, in
the of Henry III., by Walter, the then vicar.
DW (LONG), a parish in the hundred of Leicn-
TONSTONE, county of HunTinGgpon, 24 miles (N, by E.)
from Kimbolton, containing, with Little Catwick, 194
mmhdmeumyo'l;’h ellm and d!ml of ]’..n::cl-o?;:e
iocese "
“endowed with £4 per annum, and £120 private bene-
faction, and £400 royal bounty, and in the patronage

wﬁmtwi',lpmshh the hundred of
ST county of Camsrinee, 5 miles (N, E.) from
a

containing 378 inhabitants. The living is
curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
_the patronage of the Bishop of Ely. The

STO

+ STOW on the WOLD, a market town and p:
upper division of the hundred of SLAUGHTER,
Groucester, 25 miles (E, byN,) from Gloucester, anc
(W.N.W.) from London, coutaining, with the hamlets of
Donnington and Mangersbury, 1731 inhabitants, This
place was the scenc of a battle hetween the royalists and
the parliamentary forces in the great civil war, on which
oceasion the former were put to flight. In old records
the town is called Stow St. Edward: it is situated on
the summit of n steep clevation ; the houses in

are of stone, but low, irregularly built, and of ancient
appearance ; and it is so indifferently supplied with fuel
and water, and having no common field attached, that it is
vulgarly remarked, it has only one of the four elements,
namely air. There is little trade, except a small woollen
business : it was formerly noted for the making of shoes.
A charter for a market was procured, in the reign of
Edward IIL, by the abbot of Evesham, then lord of the
manor : it is held on Thursday ; and fairs are held May
12th and October 24th, for the sale of hops, cheese,
and sheep, of which last twenty thousand are said to
have been sold at one fair. The inhabitants were incor-
porated by Henry VI, but at present the town is go-
verned by two bailiffs, who are appointed annually at
the manorial court leet. The living is a rectory, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Gloucester, rated in the
king's books at £18, and in the patronage of the Rev.
H, Hippesley. The church, dedicated to St. Edward, is
a spacious edifice, in the ancient English style, erccted
at different periods in the fourteenth and fifteenth cen-
turies. The tower is conspicuous at a great distance,

*There is a place of worship for Baptists. A National

school for children of both sexes is supported by vo-
luntary contributions. An almshouse for nine poor per-
sons, on the south side of the churchyard, was founded,
in the 16th of Edward 1V., under the will of William
Chestre, and subsequent endowments have been given
for the maintenance of its inmates. A park, house, and
garden, named St. Margaret's chapel, at a place called
Merke in this parish, constituted part of the estates of
Charles I, and his queen, The Foss-way intersects the
town and the northern of the parish.
STOW-BARDOLPH, a parish in the hundred of
Crackcrosg, county of Norrork, 2 miles (N, N.E.)
from Downham-Market, containing 702 inhabitants.

tory of Wimbotsham, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk,
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books
£6. 6. 8. The church, dedicated to the Holy Trinity,
has a large square tower with brick

the north side of the chancel is
place of the Hare family,
remains of an ancient hermitage, of flint and

LAND, county of NorroLxk,

Watton, containing 290
' vicarage, in the

Norwich, rated in the king's books at £4. 19. 44.,
dowed with £200 mLﬁﬁn. tion, and £200 royal
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to Marham abbey, and had a sguﬂd founded
in honour of 'the Virgin Mary.

STOW. GTOFT, a parish in ‘ﬂw h!lndmd of
Bracknoumy, county of Svrrork, 2§ miles (8.E.)
from Ixworth, containing 172 inhabitants. = The living
is m rectory, in the archdeaconry of Sudbury, and
diocese of Norwich, rated in the | huakx
£8.7.8%., andinthcpaﬂanvgeaf—-wuum,&q
church is dedicated to St. George.

STOW-MARIES, a parish in the.hmdnd of Dex-
GIE, cO of Essex, 54 miles (8. by W.) from Mal-
don, contaihing 242 inhabitants, The living is a rec-
tory, in the archdeaconry of Essex, and diocese of Lon-
don, rated in the king's books at £18. 6. 8., and in
the patronage of the Rev. G. H. Storie. The church is
dedicated to St. Mary and 8t. Margaret. The parish
is bounded on the south by Crouch river,

- STOW-MARKET, a market town and parish in the
hundred of Srow, county of Surronk, 12 miles (N,
N.w,) Mpswwh, and, by way of that town, through

which thé mail travels, 81 (N.E.) from London, but

cml;f 75 through Sudbnry containing 2252 inhabitants,
et was given to the name to distinguish the

l-own &om Stow-Upland, in the adjoining parish. 1t is
the most central town in the county, is situated at the
confluence of three rivulets, which form the river Gip-
pen, on 'the high road from Tpswich to Bury and Cam-
bridge, and consists of several streets, which are, for
the most part, regularly built and paved ; many of the
houses are handgome; especially those near the market-
; and the inhabitants are well supplied with water
from land-springs and wells. The commercial interests
of the town are cssentially promoted by its locality, and
have heen much improved by making the Gippen na-
vigable to Ipswich, which was effected under an act
abtained in 1790. Over one of the tributary streams
called the Orwell, which name the united streams as-
sume from Ipswich to the sen at Harwich, is a bridge
southward of the town. From the basin of this na-
le river extends a pleasant walk, about a mile in
through the hop plantations, with which

propriated

ing; and the exportation of corn, to a considerable
extent, to London, Hull, Liverpool, and other places:
thmmulno-mﬂlmmfmtmesfor , twine,

of ‘Anne. © There are places of

mmm&e : of a legacy

purpose in the
e e SO g
‘. ons are -n teaching poor
Jarge National school, for an e
dren of both sexes, and mﬂmdlyonhodl,m :;3;

ildren. A

ported by voluntary. con

several benevolent instituti lnrﬂmnﬁefo!thapoor-
the funds arising from the same source. Abbots® hall,
the seat of J, Rust, Esq., ;was formerly a ecell, ssubor-
dinate to the abbey of St.anth,inthemntyof&.ex
In @ stone pit near the entrance to the town; the tusks
and bones of a species of elephant haye been found.
Here is a spring slightly impregnated with iron. Dr.
Young, tutor to the poet Milton, was vicar of this pa-
rish from 1630 to 16565, and was interred here,

' STOW-UPLAND, a parish in the hundred of
Srow, county of SurrorLk, adjoining Stow-Mnrket, and
containing 836 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
vicarage, annexed to that of Stow-Market, in the arch-
deaconry of Sudbury, and diocese of Norwicb

STOW-WOOD, a purish in the hundred of Buw-
LINGTON, county‘af Oxvorp, 4 miles (N. E.) from Ox-
ford, containing 26 inhabitants, There being no church
here, the inhabitants resort to the adjoining parish
chureh of Beckley.

STOWE, a parish in the hundred and county of
BuckinGuaM, 24 miles (N.N.W.) from Buckingham,
containing, with the extu-pnmehlal liberty of Luffield-
Abbey, 478 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, in the
archdeaconry of Buckingham, and diocese of Lincoln,
rated in the king's books at £11. 14. 7., and in the

of the Duke of Buckingham. The church is
dedicated to St. Mary. There is a place of worship for
Wesleyun  Methodists.  Stowe is celebrated for the
princely mansion of the Duke of Buckingham, Ham-
mond, the elegiac poet, died whilst on a visit here, in 1742,

STOWE, a parish in the wapentake of Ness, parts
of Kesteven, comty of Lincornw, 2} miles (W.N. W.)
from Market- containing 21 inhabitants. The
lhlingisa.ﬂinchargedwcarage with which that of Bar-
holme was united, in 1772, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of | 1, rated mthekmgsbnoluat £4,8.9,

endowed with : royal bounty, and in the

of the Governors of Oakham and me'
-m&mhﬁmhﬁtlohnﬁem
a parish intha southern m»@&e




hpmﬂted of BrapLey,

" STOWELL, u parish®in the
county of GLoucEsTER, £ miles (W. 8. W.) from North

Leach, containing 33 inhabitants. The living is a dis-
rectory, annexed, in 1660, to that of Hamp-

uett, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Gloucester,

in the ‘s books at £5. 17. 1. The church is dedi-

cated to L0 - Sir William Scott, Judge of

the court of Admiralty, was created Baron Stowell, of

Stowell Park, in 1821,

STOWELL, a parish in the hundred of Hore-
THORNE, county of SoMmersET, 5 miles (8. 8. W.) from
Wincanton, containing 102 inhabitants. The living is
a dis rectory, in the archdeaconry of Wells, and
diocese of Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books at
£6. 15., and in the pa of W. M. Dodington, Esq.
The church is dedicated to St, Mary ene,

STOWELL; a in that part of the parish of
OvertoN which is in the hundred of Evstus and
Everrey, county of Wivts, 61 miles (S, W. by 8.)
from rough., The population is returned with
the of -Priors,

STOWER (EAST), a parish in the hundred of Rep-

_LANE, Sturminster division of the county of Dorser,
4% miles (W.) from Shaftesbury, containing 476 inha-
bitants. The living is & curacy, annexed
to ﬁe'mﬂﬂﬂn@am, in the archdeaconry of
Dorset, and of Bristol. The church is dedi-
cated to St. Mary. Henry Fielding, Esq., the celebrat-
ed novelist, resided for some time on his estate in this

STOWER (WEST), a parish in the hundred of
Revraxe, Sturminster division of the county of Dor-
sur, 53 miles (W,) from Shaftesbury, containing 205 in-
habitants. The | is ‘@ perpetnal curacy, annexed
1o the ‘of , in the archdeaconry of
Dorset, and di of Bristol. The church is dedica-

~ ted to St. Mary. William Watson, M. D., auotl;or of
mwdw pmfh::ﬁm mym ‘gudu:tede as a
he practised as a quack.

 in 1785,
_children

""" STOWERTON, u hamlet in'the parish of Wron-

bequeathed a emall aunuity for teaching poor

then to King's C

rorp, Brails division of the h Wl of Kinerow,
county of Warwick, 4 miles (8. E.) from Shipston
upon Stour, containing 203 inhabitants.

STOWEY, a parish in the hundred of Curw,
county of Somenser, 34 miles (8, 8. W,) from Pensford,
contaming 208 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Bath, and diocese of
Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books at £6. 12.,
and in the patronage of the Bishop of Bath and Wells,
The church is dedicated to St. Mary. Richard Jones,
in 1688, bequeathed £3000 for teaching and appren-
ticing poor children of Stowey and Chew.

STOWEY (NETHER), a market town and parish
in the hundred of WiLnrrox and Frermansers,
county of Somerser, 8 miles (W.N.W.) from Bridg-
water, and 147 (W. by 8.) from London, containing 773
inhabitants, The living is a vicarage, in the peculiar
Jjurigdiction of the Consistorial Decanal Court of Wells,
rated in the king's books at £5, 2. 8%, and in the
patronage of the Dean and Canons of Windspr. The
church, dedicated to St. Mary, stands at the entrance of
the town from Bridg-water. There is a place of worship
for Independents. This i a small clean town, situated
on a tributary stream to the river Parret: it consists of
three streets, nearly in the form of the letter Y, neither
paved nor lighted, at the intersection of which stands a
rudely built market-house, where a market is held on
Saturday, but, from its proximity to Bridg-water, very
little business is transacted : there is a fair for cattle on
September 18th, A small manufacture of silk affords
employment to some of the juvenile part of the popu-
lation. A Sunday school, in which are one hundred and
thirty children, is supported by means of sundry small
bequests and subscriptions, On a hill, at the western
extremity of the town, a castle is said formerly to have
stood; but there is no other vestige of it than a small
cireular earthwork, which commands fine views of the
channel and the Mendip hills, Courts leet and baron
are held annually at Michaclmas, when constables and
other officers are appointed.

STOWEY (OVER), a parish in the hundred of
CANNINGTON, county of Somerset, 8 miles (W. by N.)
from Bridg-water, containing 587 inhabitants. The
living is a dis vie , in the archdeaconry of
Taunton, and diocese of Bath and Wells, rated in the
king's books at £7. 1. 5}., and in the of the
Bishop of Bath and Wells, The church is dedicated to
St. Mary The manufacture of silk is here
carried on to a small extent. '

STOWFORD, a in the hundred of Lirrox,
county of Devox, sg miles (E. by N.) from Launceston,
mﬁlm inhabitants. The living is a rectory,
in the archdeaconry of Totness, and diocese of Exeter,
in the king's books at £11. 12, 6, J.D. Harris,
. was patron in 1807. In the church is a marble

of C. Harris, Esq., in the ancient Roman cos-
Margaret Doyle, in 1777, bequeathed the intes
200 to be applied for teaching poor ¢

f
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smwxc&,uythmg in that of the pari
Hexpury which is in the d!gl'-?‘m _ m
of Hexsunry, county of Gmculun, ontaining 467

inhabitants.
; ROOK, a parish in the hundred of Hoxxe,

county of SurroLk, 53 miles (E.) from Eye, eantmning

1400 inhabitants. The living is a

in the mhdmonry of Suffolk, and diocese of Noy

ratedmthe bookantiglﬂﬁcglmdinthe
tronage of the gﬁof Ely. The church is dedi
cabed to All Saints. re is a place of for

worshi
Baptists. William Greenling, in 1599, bequoa!hedphnd

to be applied, among other , in of a
school ; and Michael Wentworth, in 1687, gave the town
homeforthemofthepour,withac ber for a

school. Mary Warner also, in 1746, left an annuity of

£10 for teaching twelve children,

STRADISHALL, a parish in the hundred of Ris-
BRIDGE, county of Surrork, 5 miles (N. by W.) from
Clan::, containing 433 inhabitants, The living is a

in the archdeaconry of Sudbury, and diocese
qu ich, rated in the king's books at £9. 11. 04,,
and in the patronage of John Vernon, Esq. The church
is dedicated to St. Margaret.

STRADSETT, a parish in the hundred of Crack-
cLosE, county of Norrork, 3% miles (E. N, E.) from
Downham-Market, contaimng 176 inhabitants, The
living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of
Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's
books at £3. 6. §,, and endowed with £200 royal bounty.
T. B , Esq. was patron in 1817, The church is
to St. Mary: the east window exhibits the
arms of the see of Ely, those of the East Angles, and of
Bury and Dercham abbeys, in stained glass; the north
window also is decorated with various emblems,

STRAGGLESTHORPE, a parish in the wapentake

.'| of Lovepnun, parts of Knmvm, county of LincoLw,

# miles (E. by 8,) from Newark, containing 100 inha-
\ bitants. The living is a pm-pctu.al curacy, annexed to
‘the rectory of Beckingham, in the archdeaconry and

diocese of Lincoln, e church is dedicated to St.

Michael.

STRAMSHALL, & township in the parish of Uz-
-ron'rzn, southern division of the hundred of Tor-
MoNeLOW, county of Starrorn,1§ mile (N N, W) from
Uttoxeter, The population is retwrned with the pa-

righ., St. Modwenng, on her arrival from Ireland, early

in the ninth century, founded a nunnery here, and pre-.

sided as abbess in it. Stramshall is in the honourof
, duchy of Lancaster, and within the
M i o e s el iy i
y, for the recovery under 40s,
STRANGHOW, a township in the
TON, eastern division of the lwrtj'

Hmthﬁdhtgufthemmnf

. Scmtqmmu,

Slake, suppnsed
fell at the

e e, s partly in the

county of SourEAMPTON, but chiefly in the hundred of
TueaLs, county of BErks, 7 miles (B.Ww]fy 8,) from
Reading, containing, with the est Morti-
mer nndWokeﬁeld mmha:ganta 'I‘!;; éi:ting is a
discharged vicarage, e arc ks, and
diocese of Salisbury, rated in the 's books at
£8. 19. 4£., endowed with £200 private benefaction,
and £200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the
Provost and Fellows of Eton College. The church is
dedicated to St. Mnry,mdintheeastwmdqwisapor-
trait of William of Wykeham, in stained glass. There
is a place of worship for Independents. Fairs are held
on April 27th and November 6th.
STRATFIELD-SAYE, a parish partly in the hundred
of ReApinG, county of Berks, but chiefly in the hun-
dred of HoLnsmorr, Basingstoke division of the connty
of SoursAMPTON, 74 miles (N.E. by N.) from Basing-
stoke, containing, with the tything of Beech-Hill, 769
inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in the archdeacon-
ry and diocese of Winchester, rated in the king's books
at £24. 13., and in the patronage of the Duke of Wel.
lington, The church is dedicated to St. Mary, Lora
Pitt, and others, in 1739, ¢rected a school-house, and
endowed it with £400, now producing an annual income
of about £ 18. 18,, for which thirty-six children are in-
structed. There is also an annuity of £5, the bequest
of James Christmas, for the education and relief of
the poor. A Benedictine priory, in honour of St, Leo-
nard was founded here, in 1170, by N:cholu de Stote-
vile, as a cell to the abbey of Vallemont in Normandy,

and at the su wnsgnmedtoEbonCdlege
itltoodmthatputofﬂmpumhwhichil

Sm.ﬁTFIELDTURGIS a pamhintbehnndmd
of HoLpsnorr, Basingstoke division of the county of

6 miles (N.E. by N.) from Basingstoke,
ltlnf(ﬂ T?;) iannntou,h’




AVON, a borough ar
ket town in the parish of
OLp h;m:z, having se-

jurisdiction, though
m in the Stratford divi-

wick, 8 miles (8. W.) from
J ..\" ’—’r_..

bury, containing

habitants.  This place, originally ecalled Streat-ford
and . Stretford, derived its name from its situation on
the great north road, and from a Saxon ford on the
river Avon, at the entrance to the town. Tt was a place
of considerable importance prior to the Conquest, and
was distinguished for its monastery, founded, in the

the distant woods,
several spacious streets, intersecti
right angles, and others crossing obliquely : the honses
in that part which is called the Old Town, though rather
of mt:g:.l P ce, are¢ commodious and well built,
occasionally interspersed with modern buildings of large
dimensions and handsome appearance, and h:msome of
the streets are smaller houses of frame-work timber and
plaster; among these, part of the ancient honse in which
Shakspeare was born is still preserved in its antigue
state, and is an object of much interest. The house in
which he lived in retirement, for a few years previonsly
to his decease, was originally the mansion of the Clop-
‘ton family, and was purchased by the bard, who, after
ring and improving it, called it “New Place:" it
has been taken down by a late proprietor, who also
cut down the mulberry tree planted by Shakspeare in
the . The town is partially paved, and lighted
with oil by lamps adapted to the future introduction
of gus, and the inhabitants are amply supplied with
water from pumps attached to their houses. The pub-
lie library and -rooms are by sub-
scription ; the S library, also
private subscription, was established in 1810, and is a
and useful institution. The theatre is a
neat building of brick, within the precincts of Shaks-
peare's garden, and is internally well arranged and
elegantly fitted up ; the exterior is decorated with a
portico, and when completed according to the origi-
nal plan, will be an ornament to the town; it is ge-
nerally open for three months in the seasom, and
assemblies are held occasionally, during the winter, at
the town hall. To the south of the town is a race-

well attended ;

ceremony, was placed in a niche at
the building; this festival has been recently revived,
and is celebrated every third year.
ahounding with diversified scenery and objects of
siderable interest, afford many
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in February, the Friday £
Iast Monday in July, the second Friday after the
of - ber, and on the second Monday in De-
thmhdmammfaironthcmw
Michaelmas, The corn market is held in the
the town hall ; the poultry market in a neat
building erected at the east end of Wood-
near the spot where the ancient cross formerly
mdmrmounud-bylcupolamdme.repm-

as QE.E. g.-.-
iﬁgg’g it
5‘5

it

arca formed by the intersection of the streets
to: the London, Birmingham, Evesham, and Alcester
roads,

The town received its first charter of incor-
poration from Edward VI,, which, reciting and confirm-
ing former grants of pnvﬂeges to the “ Bailiff and Bur-
gesses of Stratford on Avon,” was extended by Jawmes L.,
and subsequently by Charles II., in the sixteenth and
twenty-sixth years of his reign. ‘Under this last charter
the government is vested in a mayor, a high. steward,
recorder, two chamberlains, twelve aldermen, and twelve

, assisted by a lwwnrd of the borough court,
olerkofthepeu-e two serjeants at mace, and subordi-
nate officers. . The mayor, who is also coroner and clerk
of the market, is chosen annually, on the first Wednesday
in September, by the aldermen and in council ;
¢ high steward, recorder, and steward of the
elected by the corporation, and hold thmr-
life ; the aldermen and the chamberlains are
common council, by the corporation.

£

g
E
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two senior aldermen, are justices of the

II., the mym,ofmorduthe nn;l the nmof mnlder--
also justices peace for part, pa-

- Stratford not otherwise within the jurisdic-
- which 'includes Old anu,mdthc
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late mayor, the high steward, the re-. large

with
inglnfthe corporation, the mayor's t'eut,
, are held here; and the celebration of the
jubﬂee eoncerln,and assemblies, take place in this suite

the

§

of rooms,

The living is a vicarage, in the jurisdiction of the
peculiar court of the Rector of Stratford upon Avon,
rated in the king's books ut £20, and in the pa-

of the Earl of Pl The church, dedi-

spire ; thew«stumnce is through a richly-
mﬁmﬂ ded and deeply-recessed archway, above which is
a large window in the later style, its lower central com-
partihent being filled up with three richly-canopied
shrines : an avenue of lime trees, with their brunches

: the mc,cfwhieht}uﬂnemkmafisrlehly
carved, andmppoﬂed on clustered pillars and pointed
arches, is very lofty, and is lighted by a range of twelve

windows enriched with tracery of the
later style. In the south aisle, which is in the deco-
rated style, is a



.. BOSCASTLE, a small sea-port, and f y & mar-
ket town, in the parishes of Forranury and MinsTER,

-4

undred of Lesnewrn, county of CornwaLL, 17 miles
(W. by N.) from Launceston, and 230 (W. by 8.) from
London. The population is returned with the parishes.
This place takes its name from a castle erected by some
of the of Bottereaux, who settled here in the
reign of Henry IL, of which only the site remains, The
town is romantically situated on the northern coast, and
contains several respectablehouses. A pilchard fishery,
¢stablished a few years since, but soon afterwards relin-
quished, contributed greatly to the improvement of the
_quay, which is accessible to ships of three hundred tons'
burdeén. The port is a member of the port of Padstowe,
and considerable trade is carried on in corn, Delabole
slate, and (of which last there is a miné in
the neighbourhood), which are sent coastwise, and coal

There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists ;
and some remains of an ancient chapel, dedicated to
St. Jumes, are visible.

BOSCOBEL, an extra-parochial district, in the Hales-
Owen division of the hundred of BrimsTrEE, county of
Savor, 74 miles (E.) from Shiffnall, containing 30 inha-
bitunts. bel House is celebrated in history as the
place where Charles 11. concealed himself in September,
1651, after the disastrous battle of Worcester, secure
in the incorruptible integrity of five brothers, named
Penderell : the house has been considerably modernised,
but the place of t, called the Sacred Hole, is
carafully preserved, in front of the house is a Latin

, traced with white pebbles in the pavement,

the % e Royal Oak, thought

to have sprung an ncorn' of the parent tree,
m the branches of which the unfortunate monarch

&. red for greater security, when his pursuers were
and out-buildings, stands near the

field adj the garden ; it is sur-
dron railing, and has an inscribed brass

it
. in the hundred of AMEsBURY,
‘2: miles (s‘.ﬁy-g)ﬁnzmm,
nhabitan! he living is a rectory,
mry and diocese of Salisbury, rated in
18. 17, 1., and in the :
. The church is dedicated to

situated at the upper extremity of a creek, to which
gives name, and. the parish is bounded én the east and

south by Chichester harbour.  Two sums of £70 each, &
one given by George Parker the elder, in 1722, and the 1
other by George Parker the younger, in 1733, have been .
laid out pursuant to a decree in Chancery, in purchas- &
ing a rent-charge of £4, which is paid to a schoolmis-
tress for teaching poor children. So early as the year

681, here was a small monastery of five or six religious,

under the government of one Dicul, a Seottish monk,
Henry I. granted the place to William Warlewast,
Bishop of Exeter, who founded a college of Secular
canons, dedicated to the Holy Trinity, which, prior to

the dissolution, was accounted a royal free chapel, ex-
empt from the jurisdiction of the Bishop of Chiches-
ter, and that of the Archdeacon.

BOSLEY, a chapelry in the parish of Prestnuny,
hundred of MaccLesFiELD, county of Crnes-
TER, 44 miles (E. N. E.) from Congleton, containing 646
inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Chester, endowed with
£800 royal bounty, and £ 1000 parliamentary grant, and
in the patronage of the Vicar of Prestbury.

BOSSALL, a parish comprising the chapelry of
Sand-Hutton, in the wapentake of BignrorTs, and the
townships of Bossall, Butter-Crambe, Claxton, Harton,
Sand-Hutton, and a part of that of Flaxton on the Moor,
in the wapentake of BuLmer, North riding of the coun-
ty of York, and containing 1365 inhabitants, of which
number, 81 are in the township of Bossall, 10 miles
(N.E.) from York. The living is a vicarage, in the
archdeaconry of Cleveland, and diocese of York, rated
in the king's books at £12, and in the pateo! of the
Dean and Chapter of Durham. The church, i
to St, Botolph, is a handsome cruciform structure,

a steeple rising from the centre. The village of Bossall
was formerly large, but it does not now comprise more
than three or four houses: foundations of buildings
have been discovered in an adjoining field, thence called
“(0ld Bossall,” Courts leet are held for the several
manors within the parish, which is bounded on the
south and east by the river Derwent.

BOSSINEY with TRE-

coust. The market is on’ id the fair, which
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" inferior officers are also appointed theburgeuum

d.

chosgen in a similar manner, as vnmcies occur,, The
freedom of the‘bom ;l:ucends to th;;ldest :sn of a
burgess possessing old property within it, and is ob-
tained by presentation of the jury. The elective fran-
chise was conferred in the 7th of Edward VI, since
which time the has returned two members to
parliament : the right of election is vested in the bur-
gesses possessing freehold property within the borough,
and residing in the parish, the present number of whom
Wm&ive, who are chiefly in the intemst of Lord
e and Edward Rose Tunno, E The town-
hall, a small building, is appropriated to the use
of a charity school, which is chiefly supported by the
mayor and burgesses, who appoint the master, and allow
him a salary of £20 per annum. There are some remains
of King Arthur's castle, on the top of a stupendous
rock, formerly part of the main land, but now connect-
ed with it only by a narrow isthmus ; the summit com-
prises an area of thirty acres of pnstnre, but the accli-
vities are so steep, that it is almost innceessible to the
) that on it.
BOSSINGTON, a chapelry in the parish of Broven-
-'ron, hundred of TrorneATE, Andover division of the
ity of Sournamperon, 34 miles (8. W. by 8.) from
w&bﬂdge, containing 75 inhabitants. The chapel is
icated to St.James. The Rmﬁmn road from Salis-
lbury to Winchester passes t the parish.
, & township in the parish of Davennam,
ih'edd‘ NorrawicH, county palatine of Caesten,
iles (N W. by w.) from Middlewich, containing 174

BOSTON, a borough, port,
market town, and parish,
having separate jurisdiction,
* %y locally in the wapentake of

\ Skirbeck, parts of Hov-

# [ | Lanp, county of Lincorw,
‘0t 34 miles (8, E.) from Lin-
coln, and 118 (N.) from Lon-
don, containing 10,330 in-
habitants, and, inclu
small extra-parochial dis-
trict, 10,373, This place
derived its name from St.

. o | | g
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endelvo to
deted the booths of the rich me :
sale at the fair, and bnrntluchgoodlu Ghuyw'em
able to carry away : 80 rich is the town repmenudto
have been at the time of this. fire, Mwm W
gold and silver are said to have run, in one

current, down them was afterwards
mkenaudhnnged ut his confederates escaped. In 1286,
Boston suffered greatly from an inundation of the river,
and the mercantile ardour of the inhabitants bemg
checked by the plunder of the fuir and the

of the town, its prosperity bc%n to decline, In the eu'ly
part of the reign of Edward it was made a staple,
port for wool, leather, tin, lead, a.nd other commodities,
which soon gave a new unpulse to the spirit of commer-
cial enterprise ; and the seitlement in Ei of the
Hanseatic mcrchauts who established aguild here, tended
so powerfully to revive the former prosperity of the town,
that, in the reign of Edward 111, Boston sent deputies
to three grand councils held athtmmm, and con-
tributed seventeen ships, and two hundred and sixty-one
men, toward the armament for the invasion of Brittany.
The town is situated on the banks of the river Witham,
which divides it into two wards, east and west, con=
nected by a handsome iron bridge of one arch, erected
by the corporation in 1807, at an expense of £22,000,
under the superintendence of Mr. Rennic. The stréets
are well paved, and lighted with gas, under an act passed
in the 16th of George I1L, for the general improvement
of the town, and many handsome buildings have been
erected ; but the inhabitants are scantily supplied with
water, which the more opulent collect from rain, in
cisterns attached to their houses, and the poorer bring
from the river, or from pits in the neighbour
Freguent attempts to procure a better supply

ing have failed ; and in February 1829, after g
ing £1800, the last undertaking was relinquished.
There are two subscription libraries ; a handsome
suite of assembly-rooms, built by the corporation in
1820; a commodious theatre, erected in 1506; and a
theatre of arts, exhibiting views of various cities, with
appropriate moving figures, which is open every Wed-

y evening : a thulfnmﬂufmmthemm
Vauxhall ens, which, during”the season, are bril-
liantly illuminated and very numerously attended.

The of the port,
frnmanaccnmlhtwnof.mlt

in the river, which
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n: the custom-house, a commodious build-

ing, was erected at the public , and the pilot-
office was built in 1811 ; the establishment of the latter
consists of a master, twelve pilots, and a few super-
numeraries. The river Witham is navigable to Lincoln,
from which place, by means of canals communicating
with the Trent, there is an inland tion to almost

every part of the kingdom. The number of vessels

to the port, according to the return made in
1828, was one hundred and 5 avernginf fifty-four
tons' burden. About forty boats are also employed in the

fishery : shrimps of superior quality, soles, and herrings,
areé taken in profusion; and in 1772, the corporation
erected a large fish market. The market is on Wednes-
day, and is abundantly supplied with poultry, a great

tity of which is sent to London every week. The
E are on May 4th for sheep, and the day following
for cattle ; August 11th, which is called the Town fair ;
November 30th, and the three following days, for horses
and horned cattle; and December 11th, for horned
cattle only.

The government, accord-
ing to'a charter granted by
Henry VIIL, and enlarged by
Elizabeth, who gave the cor- /
poration a court of admiralty, @84
isvested in a mayor, recorder, 4t
deputy recorder, twelve al- S5\

, and eighteen com-

-men, assisted by

a -clerk, judge advocate,
and marshal of the admiralty
court, two serjeants at mace,
and other officers. The mayor is appointed from among
¢ aldermen, who succeed to that office by rotation :

he aldermen are chosen out of the common council-men,

by & majority of their own body, and the common
council-men are selected by the mayor and aldermen.
The mayor is clerk of the market, and admiral of the
port, in which latter capacity, conjointly with the com-
mon council, he holds a court of admiralty, the juris-
tion of which extends over the whole adjacent coast.

* mayor, recorder, and four senior aldermen, are jus-

tices of the within the and parish, The
fréedom is acquired by birth, tude, and purchase,
The corporation hold a court of session for the

‘and a court of record for the recovery of debts
unt, at which the mayor, recorder, and town-
- The petty sessions for the e of
Kirton are held every Wed at the
‘and a court of requests for the recovery
#5 is held once a fortnight, under

gﬂahoflinlmu, wapentake of Bankston
 West riding of the county of Yorx, 4 miles
The population is returned w

BO s %
; in nufiber four hundied;’ ghe:
officer. The dhall is an

e boriugh . th reagh ol & haidaos bulidg
o I gaol is & hakidiadie bafldi
ttthe_mthmdoftheu;‘;:,mctedlulﬂll: the
;me“df correction for the parts of Holland was built

1809.

The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry and dio-
cese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £33. 6, 8.,
and in the patronage of the Mayor and Corporation.
The church, dedicated to St. Botolph, is a spacious and
Hi.ﬂcent structure in the decorated style of

itecture, with a lofty square tower surmounted by
an octagonal lantern turret, in the later English style :
it was erected in 1309, and is in an excellent state of
repair : the tower, which is three hundred feet high,
and was formerly illuminated during the night, forms
a conspicuous land-mark for mariners traversing the
North sea, Within the church, among other interest-
ing monuments, are the effigies of Sir John Tilney and
his lady, by whom the church js said to have been
foundm{ A chapel has lately been erected by subscrip-
tion, The living is a perpetual curacy, endowed with
£100 per annum by the corporation, to whom the pa-
tronage, which is now vested in the subscribers, will
revert after the expiration of fifteen years. There are
places of worship for General and Particular Baptists,
the Society of Friends, Independents, Methodists, Uni-
tarians, and Roman Catholics ; and a piece of
has been taken, on which it is intended to build a syna-

gogue. The free grammar school, founded and endowed

in 1554, by Queen Mary, is under the control of the
corporation, who appoint the master and usher, the
former having a salary of £100, and the latter one of
£60, per annum : the school-room was built in 1567,
and a convenient house for the master in 1826, A

recorder of

i

school was founded, in 1707, by Mr. Laughton, who en-

dowed it with lands in Skirbeck, producing about £50
per annum, which has since been augmented by ather
benefactors : there are at present twenty-five boys, each
of whom, at the age of fourteen, is ﬁ]ﬂl to an ap-
prentice fee of £15, provided he be out to a free
burgess. A Blue-coat school, founded in 1713, for
clothing and instructing thirty-three boys and the
same number of girls; and two National schools, es-
tablished in 1815, in which five hundred children are
instructed, are supported by subscription. A general
dispensary was instituted in 1795, Of the nmag
monastic establishments which formerly existed in

town and its vicinity, there remain only some ht
vestiges of the Black, or Dominican friary, _
in the year 1288. The ancient church of St.John, for-
merly the pm;ish sddli“::a has bel:n totally removed, but
the cemetery is as & nry&ng-;:md. id.  John
Fox, the celebrated , was a native of this
town. Boston confers the title of viscount on the Irby

BOSTON, a joint township with Clifford, in_the
(W.) fro

This village is of recent the first house
been built in 1763, Owing to the dgeovery,iu 1744,
2E?Q




BOS

ce of fashion:
“viver Wharfe, is extremely picturesqne, An episcopal
chapel, built on land given by Mr. Samuel Tate, was
consecrated in 1814, Thmisnplmofwmm‘-
Wesleyan Methodists. A charity school was
by Lady Elizabeth Hastings. o 0]
BOSWORTH (HUSBAND'S), a parish in the
hundred of GartTrer, county of Lercestew, 6 miles
(W.8.w,) from Market-Harborough, containing 817 in-
habitants, The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
of Leicester, und diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books at £24. 15. 74, and in the of the Rev,
J. T, Mayne. The church, dedicated to All Suints, had
y damaged during a storm of thunder
y in July 1755. There are places of wor-
ship for Particular Baptists and Wesleyan Methodists,
The river Welland bounds the parish on the south
and south-east, and the Avon on the north-west ; and
the Grand Union canal crosses the western part of it,
being here conducted through a tunnel, one thousand
one hundred and seventy yards in length, to the north-
ern side of the vi N
ORTH ( KET), a parish in the bhun-
dred of SearkrxBOE, county of LEicksTER, compris-
 ing the town of Market-Bosworth, the chapelries of Bar-
| x‘:m, Carlton, Shenton, and Sutton-Cheney, the town-
of Barton in the Beans, and part of the township
of Osbaston, and containing 2677 inhabitants, of which
. number, 1117 are in the town of Market-Bosworth, 114
(8.W.) from Leicester, and 107 (N.W.) from Lon-
"~ don. This place, in Domesday-book called Bosworde,
(takes the prefix to its name from a market granted to

|
1
;
:
:

which took place on the 22nd of August, 1485, between
ITI. and the Earl of Richmond, afterwards

enry VIL: this battle, the last of those sanguinary con-
~fliets between the houses of York and Lancaster, which

had for so many years disturbed the internal tran-
quillity of kingdom, and del its plains with
- a moor, miles from the

219,
‘in the vicinity itlu*-wtmx v
ble resort.. A pump-room, with hot

ng in avale, on the southern “’th'

¥ BOT
’ -

at £55. 18, 4., andin the M A Mok il
B3l g s Al m -

‘structure, with a be _spire ; !
teresting monuments, among the v
to certain members of the Dixie family,

ty-five years, during which period, its
mulated to the amount of £15,000 : of
in contemplation to appropriate a part to the.
tion of additional scholarships.  The premises, includ-
ing commodious residences for the masters, have been
handsomely rebuilt in the later style of English ar-
chitecture, at an expense of £5000: the management
is vested in ten governors, including the rector and
churchwardens of the parish : the total income arising
from the endowment is £700 pﬁ mmnd’l::.f;i
Anthony Blackwall, a distinguished critic and classical
scholar, was master, and the celebrated Dr. Johnson,
and Thomas Simpson, the eminent. mathematician, were
ushers, in this school ; the latter, who was a native of
the town, became Professor of Mathematics at Wool-
wich, and died here in 1761.

BOTCHESTON, a joint township with Newton, in
the parish of Rarey, hundred of Srarxennos,
of Lercesrer, 6 miles (E.N.E.) from Market-Bos-
W, with Newton, 87 inhabitants,

SDALE, a chapelry (formerly a market town)

in the parish of Reperave, hundred of Harrissens,
county of Surrorx, 26 miles (N.N. W.) from I
and 86 (N.E. by N.) from London, on the roat
wich, contuining 584 inhabitants, The name, ®on-
tracted from Botolph's Dale, is compounded of m&
the name of the tutelar saint of the chapel, and -

dale in which the town is situated. The town consists
prh_:cip:llgf of one I

street, which e;tend- into k.
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erpetual curacy of Hebburn annexed, in the arch-
eal of Northumberland, and diocese of Durham,
rated in the s books at £25, and in the patronage
of the Duke of Portland, The church, dedicated to
St. Andrew, contains a fine alabaster tomb, representi
some member of the family of Ogle, and his lady, in
a recumbent position, and at the head four ecclesias-
tics in ‘miches decorated with tabernacle work. The
miant parochial church stood at Sheepwash, where
the parsonage-house now is. Between the village and
the river Wansbeck, which bounds the parish on the
mth,mtharuiunfmmtary dedicated to the
Virgin Mary. A school-room, with a house for the
master, was built in 1817, by the Duke of Portland, who
allows the master £10 per annum, in addition to the
interest of £ 80 left by the Rev. Mr. Stafford, in 1716.
There is also a school at Causey Park, built and endowed
'with €15 a year, by one of the Ogle family, in 1740.
* Coal #hounds within the parish. Bothall was made a
barony by Richard I., and was some time in the pos-
session Mtheﬁmdyofmbutpusedbymr-
riage to Sir Robert Ogle, who bequeathed his paternal
_ estate to his son Robert, and the barony of Bothall to
his gon John ; but the former, with a force of
two h m,ohﬁmedpnm-ionofl!uthlﬂ.fmm
-~ which, however, he was ¢ Jec’bedhythe parliament :
having subsequently disti ed himself in the cause
of the house of York, he was created baron of Bothall,
ullﬂntl.md.ﬁgle,ongk. The barony is now the
of the Duke of Portland, who holds a court
biron for it. The castle, which was situated
ice of a rock, at the foot of which flows

the river Wansbeck, is in ruins, tow: »
i i o el g e

ﬂlll' i
W‘m&m, a parish in the Hatfield division
wapentake of Basserraw, county of Norrineg-
mt}nnu (W. N. W.) from Tuxford, containing 310

inhabitants, The 1i is & perpetual curacy, in the
o, ; and diocese of York, and
‘of the of Newcastle, The church
is dedicated to St. Mary. The parish is bounded on the
the river Poulter, and intersected by the Meden,

‘two rivers, whhthel[mn,fwmthenm
Idle, about two miles north of the parish. Henry Wal-
- ters, in 1692, founded a free school at Houghton, in this
m is endowed with €25 per annum. The
are entitled to the privilege of sending a
mmwm.w the school at West

(W) ﬁampé‘:dmm and mmmtm

the »ﬂf’%n o
ﬂ.l.mncy in “‘ﬂﬂdﬂcanr ﬂf e
b g sy of the iour
Abingdon. mchmhudadmwdmm Jolv T
This parish is bounded on the west bymuﬁnww

B()‘H{-HERGESTS a township in the parish of
Kingrox, hundred of Hunminagrow, county of Here-
Forp, containiog 145 inhabitants,

BOTLEY, a tything in the parish of Cumyer, hun-
dred of llmmsn, county of Brrks, 1} mile (W.) from
Oxford, containing 118 inhabitants,

BOTLEY a parish in the hundred of ManssriDGE,
Fawley division.of .the county of Sovrmamrron, 3§
miles (8. W.) from Bmhops Waltham, conuiumg 690
inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in the archdeas
conry and diocese of Winchester, rated in the l:i'ngs
books at £5. 10. 24, and in the patronage of the
Duke of Rutland. The church, dedicated to All Saints,
and consisting only of a nave and a chancel, stands
nearly a mile to the south of the vi , and contains
an ancient and curious font. Consi le trade in
flour is carried on: the mills are worked by the river
Hamble, which 'is navigable up to this place for boats.
Fairs, chiefly for toys and pedlary, are held on Shrove-
Tuesday, Whit-Tuesday, and the Tuesday before St.
Bartholomew's day; for cheese, on February 20th and
May 28th; and for cattle, on July 23rd, August 20th,
and November 13th. A strong chalybeate spring near
:‘he church was formerly in great repute, but is now

isused.

BOTOLPH-BRIDGE, a parish in the hundred of

Norman-Cross, county of HunTingpon, 2 miles (8. W.

by W.) from Peterborough. The population is returned
with Orton-Longyille. The living is a rectory, united
in 1721 to that of Orton-Longville, in the archdeaconry
of Huntingdon, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the
king's books at £8, 6. 104. The church, now dese-
crated, was dedicated to All Saints,

BOTTESFORD, a parish in the hundred of Fram-
LAND, county of Lricestem, 7 miles (W.N.W.) from
Grantham, containing, with Normanton, 1070 inhabit-
ants, The living is a rectory, in theafnhduwm‘yuf
Leicester, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books at £51. 5., and in the patronage of the Duke of
Rutland. The ehmh, dedicated to St, Mary, is a spa-
cious cruciform structure, with a tower supporting a
spire at the western end : it hus been the burial-place
of the noble family of Manners since the dissolution of
monasteries, at which period several monuments to the
memory of deceased members of that family were re-
moved hither from the conventual church at Belvoir,
There is a place of worship for Particular Baptists, The
Grantham canal crosses the From thedueo\wq
of various relics of antiquity, this is supposed to
hvebmoccupmdbythenom In 1711, the Rev. *
Abel Ligonier and Anthony Ravell bequeathed laud for
the instruction of twenty. children.

BOTTESFORD, a paris the hwnlhﬁn

: ofhbb;nndwlﬂl mm’m‘amm

ip.gtbemmdmim ‘and the
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of Lincoln, rated in the king's
at £

The church is dedicated to St. Peter.
W, a township in the parish of S‘ron
upon TRENT, northern division of the hundred of Pirx-
n':&n,thcoumy of Starrorn. The population is returned
with the  §
BOTTISHAM, a parish in the hundred of Sraune,
county of CamnringE, 64 miles (W, 8, W.) from New-
market, containing 1128 inhabitants. The living is a
discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Ely, rated in the king's books at £16,and in the patron-
age of the Master and Fellows of Trinity College, Cam-
bridge. The church, dedicated to the Holy 'I'rimty,
contains the tomb of Elias de Be , justiciary of
d in the reign of Edward 1. Aconsidmblepm
village was destroyed by fire, in 1712, Sir Rﬁer
Jenyns, Knt, founded a school in 1730, and endowed it
with £20 per annum, for the gratuitous instruction and
clothing of sixteen boys and four girls: the master
and scholars are appointed by the proprietor of Bottis-
ham Hall. A moiety of the income of an endowed
almshouse at Eastham, founded by Giles Breame, Elql
in 1621, ispmdtathepoorofthwplace Henry
founded & small priory of Augustine canons at A
sey, in this parish, and dedicated it to the Blessed Virgin
and St, Nlcholwl, the revenue of which, in the 26th of
enr&m »was £149. 18, 6. ©* the site is now occupied
by -house, in the walls of which a portion of the
conventual bmldmgs is visible. The pétty sessions are
held here. At Bottisham Lode there is a place of wor-

. ship for Particular Baptists,

BOTUSFLEMING, a parish in the southern division
of the hundred of Easr, county of CornwaLr, 3 miles

liﬂhghlmtm’y in the archdeaconry of Cornwall,
and diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at
#£16. 15. 74., and in the patronage of the Rev. William

_ Spry. In the centre of a field, on the northern side of

the village, stands a pyramidal monument, erected to
the memory of Dr, William Martin of Plymouth, who
died in 1762,

BOUG N, a parish in the hundred of Crack-
me. county of Nom, 14 milgrén.!)’ from dek:

'y, containing 185 itants. e living is a dis-
charged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and
diocese of Narwich, rated in the king's books at £10,
and in the of the Rev. G. Hunt. The church
is to All 8.

BOUGHTON, a hamlet in the parish of WeekLEY,

, hundmd of Corny, county of Nontaamrron, 2} miles

(_N. is returned

, BOUGHTON,lpullhh:thehnndndafml,
munty«uf Nowrruamrron, 3% miles (N.) from North-
containing 851 inhnhtuntl. The living i;io‘-

214

" the

i
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mwutMMMWi‘ to
the south of the village. %
BOBGENN.(W&&& fi
1§mﬂa(ux¢yx)fm0nm mﬁﬁhgm
habitants. The living is a perpetual cm‘ng?withﬁﬁ
carage of Kneesall, in the archdeaconry o N@}M-

BOUGHTON under BLEAN, a parish in the hun

dred of BoveaTonN under Bruaw, lathe of .Scray,
county of Kenr, 3 miles (8, E. by E.) ﬁnm&vuﬁm
containing 1237 inhabitants, The living is a vi

in the peculiar jurisdiction and of the Arc]
bishop of Canterbury, rated in the ‘s books at
£9. 4. 9. The church, dedicated to St. ~and St,

Paul, contains several ancient monuments ¢ the tower
formerly supported a spire, which fell down about the
close of the sixteenth century. There is a place of
worship for Wesleyan Methodists, Here are two charity
schools for boys and girls, and an almshouse compri

two tenements. In 1716, a human skeleton, by the side
of which lay a sword, and a brass coin struck in the
reign of Antoninus Pius, was dug up in the vicinity,
Blean Forest, from which Boughton has obtained its

adjunct, was anciently the haunt of wild boars, wolves,

and other beasts of chace. Boughton hill, about three

quarters of w mile distant, is stated to command a more

extensive prospect than any other hill in the kingdom.

= BOUGHTON (GREAT), a township in that part of
e

of the hundred of Broxron, county palatine of Cazs-

TER, 14 mile (E.) from Chester, containing 911 inhabit- -

ants.

BOUGHTON (SPITTLE), an extra-parochial liber-
ty, within the county of the city of CaEsTER, contain-
ing 150 inhabitants,

BOUGHTON-ALUPH, a parish in the of
Wy, lathe of Scray, county of KenT, 4 miles (NJN.E.)
from Ashford, containing 453 inhabitants. The é‘l.zg
terbury, rated in the king's books at £6. 5., and in the

of Whitfield Breton, Esq. The ehurch dedi-
cated to All Saints, is a spacious cruciform

mndsy,ltwhzch place there is an llmhumfm-six

BOUGHTONMALHERB a parish in the
of Eystonrxe, lathe of AyLesronrp, county of Kent, 1
mile (8. W. by 8.) from Lenham, containing 475
ants.  The is a , in the

archdeaconry
and diocese of Canterbury, mulinﬂukhglbmkl
of Earl Cornwallis. The'.

-

sh of Aruprorp which is in the lower division




-HONCH.ELSEA,.u parish in the
mdreﬁ of E'riomm, and into the hundred
of Maidstone, lathe of Ammnn, county of Kenrt, 4
mﬂu{ﬂ.%&)mwm containing 828 inha-

isavi in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Canterbury, ‘in the king's books at
£7. 13, 4, and in the of the Dean and Chap-
ter of Rochester, The church is dedicated to St. Peter.
The parish is intersected by a ridge of hills, the sum-
mit of which forms the northern boundary of the Weald
of Kent, and on the southern declivity of which there
are of rag-stone,

BOULBY, a hamlet in the parish of Easincron,
eastern division of the liberty of Laxcsaureu, North
riding of the county of Yorg, 11 miles (N. W. by w.)
from Whitby. The population is returned with the pa-
rish, This place is noted for its extensive alum-works,
which were begun in 1615; they contain verious
-pch'iﬁchm of ammonite, or sunake stones, trochite,
and shells of the bivalve kind.

BOULDON, a township in the parish of HoLbcaTe,
hundred of H.lmlmw, county of SAror, containing 60
inhabitants.

BOULGE, a parish in the hundred of WiLrorn,
county of SurrorLk, 8 miles (N.N.w.) from Wood-
bridge, containing 44 inhabitants. The living is a dis-

rectory, with that of Debach annexed, in the
archdeaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated
in the king's books at £8. 12, 1., endowed with £200
priv benefacﬁan, and £ 600 royal bounty, and in the
A 2 of Mrs, B.ey'mld& The church is dedicated
" to

BOULMER, a jomt township with Seaton-House,
in the parish of Lone Houemron, southern division
of Bammrouen ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND,
64 miles (E. by N.) from Alnwick, containing, with
Seaton- Huule 104 inhabitants, "nns village lies on the
sea-shore, and is chieﬁy inhabited by fishermen, whose
hoats are moored in Boulmer bay, a natural basin en-
vironed by rocks, eight hundred yards long, and four
lundred broad, the entrance to which is twelve feet
deep at low water.

JOULSTONE, a parish in the upper division of the

of WorMELOW, of Hegreronn, 6 miles
(8. s.n.) from Hereford, containing 75 inhabitants. The
living is vpupetulmwy annexed to the vi of
. L‘H the' archdeaconry and diocese of

.- MW .p-hhlnﬂ:ehmdivisionofthe
mwum parts of KesTEVEN,
, m%o;rbys.z‘&omlamln
uﬂng Iﬁw

. uﬂﬁmdlheoh.

benefaction, and £600 mynl z mﬂ l.u
agaufthepmprietonofhndinthechnpe

BOURN, a parish in the hundred of Lommw,
county of C;unama:, 1} mile (8. E. by E.) from Cax-
ton, containing 752 inhabitants. The living is a dis-
charged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Ely, rated in the king's books at £0, 15. 10., endowed
with £200 private benefaction, and £200 royal bounty,
and in the patronage of the Master and Fellows of
Christ's College, Cambridge. The church is dedicated to
St. Mary. Bourn castle was destroyed in the reign of
Heury IIL, during the war with the barons. A mineral
spring here was formerly in high repute, but it is now
neglected.

BOURN, a joint tything with Wrecklesham, in the
parish and hlmdred of FArnuAM, county of Sunney.
The population is returned with Wrecklesham.

BOURN-MOOR, a township in the parish of
HovGaron le SprinG, northern division of Essincron
ward, county palatine of Durmam, containing 1139
inhabitants. At New Lambton, in this township, is @
brine well ninety-seven fathoms deep, where salt-works
were established in 1815, There is also a place of wor-
ghip for Wealeyan Methodists, with a Sundny school
attached, in which about one hundred and sixty chil-
dren are instructed.

BOURNE, a parish in the wapentake of AVELAND,
parts of Kesreves, county of LincoLwn, comprising
the market town of Bourne, and the hamlets of Caw-
thorpe and Dyke, and containing 2242 inhabitants, of
which number, 2029 are in the town of Bourne, 36 miles
(8.) from Lincoln, and 97 (N.) from London. This
place takes its name from a stream of remarkably pure
water, issuing from a copious spring a short distance to
the south of the town, which is so powerful a¢ to tarn
a corn-mill within three hundred yards of its source,
about half a mile from which it becomes navigable, and
is called the Bourn Eau ; it joins the river Glen, which
runs on the eastern border of the parish, at a place
called Tongue End, and thence the Glen shortly joins
the Welland at Pinchbeck. Though little of its early
history is known, it is supposed, from the discovery dof
Roman coing and tesselated pavements, to have been
anciently a place of some importance. When the Danes
invaded England in the ninth century, Marcot, the
Saxon lord of Bourne, with a few of his own vassals
and a detachment from Croyland abbey, after an ob-
stinate ent, defeated a party
made an inroad into this purt of Lincolnshire. Prior to
the time of Edward the Confessor, a castle was erected
here, of which only the ##enches and mounds are discern-
ible, nppu.rlnfnto have included an area of more than
eight acres. 1138, Baldwin, a descendant of Walter
Fitz-Gilbert, to whom the town was o%iven' by William
Rufus, founded a priory for canons of the order of St.
Augustine, the site alone of which, maﬂedﬂu
Trenches, is visible: the revenue, at the

:Bowe

was £197. 17. 5. In the seventeenth century,

was twice nearly destroyed by fire. The town, consisting
principally of one very long street, the houses in which
are in general modern and well huﬁt,km-im-

of them, who had



B
BOU -

ﬂwﬂnymn&mm The
is y in leather and wool; for the former

ated,
trade
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canal has been constructed from this town to Spalding posed

and Boston, by which means it is supplied with coal,
timber, and other commodities. The market is on
Saturday : the faire are on April 7th, May 7th,and Qcto-
ber 29th. The county magistrates hold a meeting every
Saturday : courts of session for the parts of Kesteven
are held quarterly. The town-hall, recently erected at
an expense of £2500, on the site of a former one, built
by William Ceeil, Lord Treasurer in the reign of Eliza-
beth, is & spacious handsome edifice, under which is the
mrkq;t—phce
e living is a discharged vicarage, under sequestra-
tion, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated
in the king's books at £8, and in the patronage ‘of the
Earl of Pomfret. The church, dedicated to St Peter
and St. Paul, though spacious, appears to be only part
of a larger structure: it is principally in the Norman
style, but contains several ions in the early and
later styles of English architecture, and has two towers
of mixed character, of which the southern is consider-
ably higher than the other, and is crowned with pin-
nacles, Within are some interesting monuments, a
finely enriched font of the later style, and a stoup under
a crocketed canopy : the western entrance is a fine spe-
cimen of the later style, and over it is a large window
of good composition. There are places of worship for
Baptists and Wesleyan Methodists. A school for thirty
children was founded in 1653, and endowed by Thomas
Trollope, Esq., who also endowed an hospital for six
aged men, and an almshouse for the same number of
women. There is a mineral springin the town, which
was formerly in great repute. William Cecil, created
B::an Burleigh by Queen Elizabeth, was born here, in
1521
BOURNE (EAST), a parish (formerly a market
town) in the hundred of Easrrounrse, rape of Prven-
sey, county of Sussex, 7 miles (8.) from Hailsham,
containing 2607 inhabitants, The living is a vicarage,
in the archdeaconry of Lewes, and diocese of Chiches-
ter, rated in the king's books at £26. 1. 8., and in the
of the Treasurer in the Cathedral Church of
Chichester. The church is dedicated to St. Mary.

sorted to for bathing, that part called Sea Houses being
iated to the reception of visitors, for whose

alibrary and reading-rooms, and a small theatre,
+ have been established, and there are assembly-rooms at
the Lamb Inn. The bold y, of

town,hachdybm-pring.thnﬂw ofwhichhll
similar to the Clifton Wells.

BOURNE (ST. MARY), a parish in the hndlld of
Evincar, Kingsclere division of the county of Sours-
ampron, S miles (N. W. by W.) from Whitchurch, con-
taining 1053 inhabitants, The living is a perpetual
curacy, annexed to the vi of Hurstbourne-Priors,
in the archdeaconry and diocese of Winchester,

BOURNE (WEST), a parish in the hundred of
Wesrsourne and SINGLETON, rape of CHICRESTER,
county of Sussex, 74 miles (W. N. W.) from Chichester,
containing 1852 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Chichester,
rated in the king's books at £10. 10, 5., and in the

patronage of the Rector ¢ the living is a sinecure, rated
at £24. 14, 4., and in the patronage of the Rev. Lewis
Way. The church dedicated to St.John the Baptist,
is a neat commodious structure, in the later style of
English architecture, with a well-proportioned spire
of British oak, erected by the Earl of Halifax, for-

merly the munificent proprietor of Stansted Park, in
the adjoining parish. The parish is situated on tha*an_-
shore, and contains ‘several hamlets; it abounds with
pleasing scenery, studded with an unusual number of
genteel residences, particularly in the hamlet of Prin-
sted, the houses in which, each situated within a small
slm:bbery.ur ﬂmgardm,m in the form of a cres-
cent. On its western side is a small wstuary, which is
crossed by a bridge, uniting the hamlet of Hermitage
with the small brisk sea-port of Emsworth, in the
county of Sonthampton. On the south is Thorney
chanmel, which at low water is passable for mrnagea

to nnd Thorney island,
N, a tything in the pm-mh nndhun&ed of

anmnmu, county of Berks, 7 miles (8. W, by 8,)
from Great Farringdon, containing 275 inhabitants,

BOURTON, a hamlet in the parish, hundred, and

county of BuckinGgaam, 14 mile (E.) from Buckingham,
containing 50 inhabitants,
- BOURTON, a chapelry in the parish and liberty of
GILLINGHAM, Shaston (West) division of the county
of Dorsxr, 24 miles (S.W. by W.) from Mere, contain-
ing 513 inhabitants. There is a place ul’worlhipfor
Wesleyan Methodists.

BOURTON (BLACK), a parish in the I of
Bampron, county of Oxvorn, 54 miles (8. 8. E.),
Burford, containing 336 inhabitants. The living is a

vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Oxford, and in the patronage of the Dean and C
ofﬁhﬁltchmh Oxford. Thenhmhu ledicate
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BOURTON (GREAT and LITTLE), o chapelry in
Wﬂmwhb of Cropreny which the
dmmmmtxufﬁmn s:ﬂ:(n.)

441 inhabitants. The

wiﬂt land by Mr. Thomu Gill, in 1666, pro-
E&f‘m“"‘“‘;i‘ s

on , & partly in the

dlvhim of thé hundred of Tewkessunry, and

‘of the hundred of West-

CESTER, 2 miles (W, by N.)

, containing 354 inhabitants,

in the king's books
was patron in 1810,
St.l’..awmee Sir Thomas
‘in the reign of James L,

whilst apﬂoon:rin the'l‘ower,wn
born heke, in 1581,

BOUB.TONmthaWATER, a parish in the lower
division of the hundred of Svivemrer, county of
Grovoester, 4 miles (8. 8. W.) from Stow on the Wold,
containing, with the chapelry of Clapton, 876 inhabit-
ants. The living is a rectory, with the perpetual curacy
of Lower Slaughter annexed, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Gloucester, rated in the king's books at
£97. %%.MEwemMBnmeme,
Esq. The church, dedicated to St. Lawrence, is a
modern edifice, hnvingatomatthemmd,
rising from a rustic basement, with Ionic pilasters at
the angles, and surmounted by a balustrade, urns, and
cupola ; within the church is a colonnade of the Ionic
order.m‘l':misnrphce of worship for Particular Bap-
tists Roman Fosse-way passes thmughthepmh
and about & quarter of a mile from the
uaamli:mhment,whmmmm

have been discovered npavedaqueduct
visible on one side of it,

URTONHOLD, a hamlet in the parish, hundred,

and emty of Buclmom, containing 553 inhabit-

%

N.w.) from Caxlisle, containing 80

BOVENY (LOWER), a in the parish and
ndred of Burxnam, ﬂmtynhmtmmn,amden
- Eton, with Upper Boveny, 202

L7

, in the

¥
-

purpose.
BOVEY-TRACEY, a parith in the hundred of
Teinesrince, county of Devown, 4 miles (W. by 8.)

from Chudleigh, containing 1685 inhabitants. The
living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Totness,
and diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at
£26.2. 1., and in the patronage of the Crown, The
church, dedicated to St. Thomas & Becket, contains
some i ing monuments. There are places of wor-
ship for Baptists and Wesleyan Methodists. A charity
schoal, in which twenty-four children are instructed,
is endowed with about £40 per annum, arising from
land purchased with the aggregate amount of various
benefactions. Bovey Tracey is under the superintendence
of a portreeve and a bailiff, the latter of whom is chosen
at the court leet of the lord of the manor, and, having
filled the office of bailiff, is appointed, at the expiration
of the period, to that of portreeve. Here are manufac-
tories for earthenware on an extensive scale : Indiho,
once a priory, and subsequently a private mansion, was,
in 1772, enlarged and .converted into a manufactory.
Coal is obtained in this district, but itis of an inferior
quality, and is divided into two species, distinguished as
stone coal and wood coal, the latter, thought to be com-
posed of a fibrous vegetable substance, presenting the
appearance of charred wood. Antimony is alse found
to an inconsiderable extent. Bovey-Heathfield is an
extensive tract lying below the level of the see, by which
it is supposed to have been formerly covered. A canal
extends hence to the river Teign, athwton-Ahbots a
distance of five miles and a half, by means of which
coal, sea-sand, and lime, are brought hither, and Bovey
coal and pipe and potters' clay are conveyed away. The
Stover 'railway also in the vicinity. A market
and a fair were to the lord of the manor, i
1259 ; and fairs for cattle are still held on Easter-Mon-
day, Holy Thursday, and the first Thursdays in July and
Novem

BOVWGDON achapeiryinthepuhhnfﬂnm
HemrsTeAn, hundred of Dacoruvm, county of Henr-
rono, 44 miles (W. by N.) from King's Langley, con-
taining 954 inhabitants. The chapel is dedicated to St..
Lawrence.

BOW, or NYMETT-TRACEY, a parish (formerly a
market town) in the hundred of Norra Tawron with
WinkLy, county of Devox, 74 miles (W. by N.) from -

$72 inhabitants, m&m
ofBlmshple,md
hoonums.m and

Crediton, e
rectory, in the
dmwz’}h

=
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a school £8. 10. per annum, and o house for the of the rectors of St, Mary, Stratford le Bow,
use of the master, who instructs ten children gratui- Mlﬂw AN .dm;_

g ported by su Sir John Jolles also founde

BOW, or STRATFORD le BOW, a parish in the and endowed almshouses for ecight poor le ; a

Tower division of the hundred of Ossursroxe, county there are other charitable bequests for relief of
of MionLesex, 44 miles (E.N.E.) from Londen, con- the poor,
taining 2349 inhabitants. This place derives its name BOWDEN (GREAT), a in the hundred of

“Stratford” from an ancient ford over the river Lea,
on the line of the Roman stratum, or road from London
to Durolitum (Layton in Essex). It is said that Matilda,
queen of Henry L., passing this dangerous ford, narrow-
1y escaped bei ; and consequently ordered a
bridge to be erected, from the arched form of which the
_received the adjunct to its name. This bridge,
is to have been the first of its kind
erected in the kingdom, is by some referred to the time
of the Great, whose arms are carved on the cen-

is pleasantly situated : the streets are paved, and
lighted with ﬁ.‘md the inhabitants are supplied with
water by the East London Company's works. The ma-
nufacture of porcelain, formerly carried on to a con-
siderable extent, has been discontinued ; and the fur
annually held at Whitsuntide has, within the last few
years, been entirely suppressed. Bow is within the ju-
risdiction of the court of requests held in Whitechapel,
for the recovery of debts under 40s : three headbo-
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Robert Atkins.

BOWDEN (LITTLE), a parish in the hundred of
RornweLl, county of Nowrmamperon, § of a mile
(E.S.E.) from Market- , containing, with the
hamlet of Little Oxenden, 314 inhabitants. The
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Northampton, ani
diocese of Peter h, rated in the king's books at
£15, 4. 2, and in the patronage of the Rev. John
Barlow, The parochial school has a small endowment.

BOWDEN'S-EDGE, a township in the parish of
Cuaren en le Frorn, hundred of Hicu Prax, county
of Densy, 14 mile (N.E.) from Chapel en le Frith, con-
taining 1093 inhabitants. This township is i the
honour of Tutbury, duchy of Lancaster, and within the
jurisdiction of a court of pleas held at Tutbury every
third Tuecsday, for the recovery of debts under 40s,

BO N, a parish in the hundred of Buckrow,
county of Crester, comprising the market- -
town Altrincham, the chapelry of Carrington, and
the townships of Agden, Ashley, Baguley, Bolli 4
Bowdon, Dunham-Massey, Hale, Parti , and Tim-

, and containing 7442 inhabitants, of which num-
g:, 433 are in the lnwns!';}: t;lf Bowdon, 1 mile (8.W.
by B.) from Altrincham. The living is a vicarage, in the
¢ and diocese of Chester, rated in the king's
books at £24, and in the patronage of the Bishop of
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Cuark, comnty of Wirrs, 74 miles (S.w.hys,) from

‘Wilton, containing 358 inhabitants, The living is n dis-
- charged vicarage, united to the consolidated vicarage
‘Broadchalk and Alvediston, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Salisbury, endowed with £200 private bene-
faction, and £200 royal bounty, The church is dedicated
to the Holy Trinity,

© BOWERS-GIFFORD, a parish in the hundred of
Banstanre, coomty of Essex, 44 miles (8. W. by w.)
from Rayleigh, containing 221 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Essex, and diocese
of London, rated in the king's books at £25, and in
the patronage of John Curtis, Esq. The church is dedi-
cated to St. Margeret. This parish is bounded on the
south by Holly and East havens, which afford a naviga-
ble communication with the Thames.

BOWES, a parish (formerly a market-town) in the
western division of the wapentake of Gruring, North
riding of the county of York, comprising the townships
of Boldron, Bowes, and Gillmonby, and containing 1438

inhabitants, of which number, 1095 are in the township
- of Bowes, 6 miles (W. by N.) from Greta-Bridge. The
living is a al curacy, in the archdeaconry of Rich-
mond, and diocese of Chester, endowed with £200 pri-
vate henefaction, and £ 1500 parliamentary grant, and in
the of T, Harrison, Esq. The church, dedi-
cated to St, Giles, contained, in the time of Camden, a
hewn slab, bearing an inscription dedicatory to the
Roman emperor Adrian, and at that time used for the
communion table, From this and other circumstances,
particularly its situation on a military way, and the dis-
covery of an agueduct, on a late enclosure of waste land,
Bowes evidently oceupies the site of a Roman station,
which antiquaries identify with the Lavutris tonine.
At the time of the Conguest here were the remains of a
town, which had been destroyed by fire. A castle was
built goon afterwards by Alan, first earl of Richmond, on
the clevated site of the Roman fort, and there are still
considerable remains of the building and its intrench-
ments, There is a place of worship for Wesleyan
Methodists. Bowes, consisting principally of one street,

quarters of a mile in length, is bleakly situated on
verge of Stanemoor, and on the banks of the river
Greta, The market, which was on Friday, and a fair on
the 1st of October, have dwindled into insignificance. A
‘ wmmar school was founded, about 1693, by William
' ‘who assigned for its support an estate
& per annum, for which all children
 entitled to | tous instruction,
a8 the scene of Mallet's puthetic

e uﬂ:m-inhmbla
ent, died of
‘parish
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in the hundred of

lationt is veturned with the parish. A’

turned p by the plough, several years ago, at Bowesden-

Hollins; and in the year 1800, some - e
levelling a barrow in the neighbourhood, Pz o

inverted nrns, containing ealeined human bones. -

BOWLAND, n joint township with Leagram, in that
part of the parish of WaarLey which i8 in the lower
division of the hundred of Brackpurs, county palatine
of Laxcaster, 9 miles (W.) from Clitheroe, containing,
with Leagram, 370 inhabitants. ;

BOWLAND-FOREST (HIGH), a township in the
parish of StarpBURN, western division of the wapentake
of Starxncrivye and Ewcnoss, West riding of the county
of Yonk, containing 237 inhabitants. Here was an-
ciently a forest, but the greater part of it has been
enclosed ; the office of master-forester has long been
in the tenure of the family of Parker, of Browsholme
Hall, an adjoining manorial residence.

BOWLAND-FOREST (LOW), a township in the
parish of Srarppurs, western division of the wapen-
take of Starncuirre and Ewcross, West riding of the
county of Yonrx, containing 360 inhabitants,

BOWLING, a township in the parish of Branrorp,
wapentake of MorLey, West ri of the county of
Yonrk, 13 mile (8. by w.) fmm% containing
8570 inhabitants, The spinning of worsted, and the
manufacture of worsted goods, are extensively carried
on in this township, in which there are also some iron-
works. Bowling Hall, an ancient and stately mansion,
was the head-quarters of the Earl of Newcastle, during
the siege of Bradford, in 1642.

BOWNESS, a parish in the ward and county of
CumseErLAND, comprising the townships of Anthorn,
Bowness, Drumburgh, and Fingland, and containing
1220 inhabitants, of which number, 471 are in the town-
ship of Bowness, 124 miles (W. N. W.) from Carlisle.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Carligle, rated in the king's books at £21. 18. 114,
and in the pa of the Earl of Loasdale.
church is dedicated to St. lﬁ'ehn;};]‘ ﬁin:mv?g: ﬂn
on a rocky promontory, comman a e
Solway Frith, on the coast of which it is situated, and
occupies the site of the Roman station Twunnocellum,

where, according to the Notitia, a marine cohort feohors

prima Alia Classice) was placed. At the distance of
ahout a mile was the western extremity of the Picts’ wall,
vestiges of which are conspicuous in various parts of
the parish, as well as of Gabrosentwm, another Roman
station, Coins and various other relics of the Romans,
among which was an image of the god Terminus, have
been discovered ; and from the foundations of houses
and streets which cultivation has exposed to the view,
this place has evidently been of greater extent than it
is at present. The ship canal from Carlisle terminates
near the village. Thomas Pattinson, in 1785, gave

£610, directing the interest to be applied for the in--

struction of children belonging to this and some neigh-
BO m.wmm-h:;mw&_ bl

, village in- righ o RMERE,

Kexpar ward, county of WesTMORLAND, O miles (W,

R
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within it. A few fishing vessels, and several pleasure
boats are kept here ; and there is sgome traffic in slate
and charcoal. A small custumarymm'ket,pﬂnw{m'
butchers' meat, is held on Wednesday : a fair, formerly
on the 18th of October, has been discontinued. A free
school has been established by subseription among the
inhabitants of Applethwaite and Undermilbeck, who,
about 1637, erected a school-house, placing the insti-
tution under four trustees and ten feoffees ; the endow-
ment, arising from land, is about £50 a year.

BOWOOD, a tything in the parish of Nermer-
sury, hundred of Beasminsrer-Forum and Repnone,
Bridport division of the county of Dorser, 2§ miles
(W.8.W.) from Beaminster, The population is returned
with the parish.

BOWOOD, a liberty in the parish and hundred of

_ Carxe, comty of Wivrs, 3% miles (8. E. by E.) from

Chippenham, containing 63 inhabitants.

BOWTHORP, a joint township with Menthorp, in
the parish of Heminesroven, wapentake of Ouvze and
Derwent, East riding of the county of Yonrk, 7 miles
(E. by N.) from Selby. The population is returned with
Menthorp.

BOWTHORPE, a parigh in the hundred of Forg-
Hox, county of Norvork, 34 miles (W. by N.) from
Norwich. The population is returned with Bawburgh,
The church, dedicated to St. Michael, was, at the be.
ginning of the seventeenth century, used as a store-
house for grain; but, by a decree in Chancery, obtained
in 1635, it was restored to its original The

purpose.
living was formerly a rectory, in the patronage of the
Dean and Canons of the College of St. Mary in the
Fields, at Norwich, who, in 15292, petitioned the bishop
the

There is a place of worship for Wesleyan

BOXFORD, a parish y in the hundred of Cos-
rorp, but chiefly in the hundred of Baseren, county
of Surrork, 16 miles (W.by 8.) from Ipswich, contain-
ing, with the hamlet of Hadleigh, 944 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Sudbury, and
diocese of Norwich; rated in the king's books at £20,
and in the of the Crown. The church is de-
dicated to St. Mary. Two fairs are held, one on Easter-
Monday, and the other on the 21st of December.

BOXGROVE, a parish in the hundred of Box and
Srocknripee, rape of CaicursTER, county of Susskx,
34 miles (N, E. by E.) from Chichester, containing 568
inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, in the :
and diocese of Chichester, rated in the king's books at
£9. 5. 5., and in the age of the Duke of Richmond.
The church, dedicated to St. Mary and St. Blase, is a
cruciform structure, and was the conventual church of
an Alien priory, subordinate to the abbey de L'Essay
in Normandy, the revenue of which, in the 26th of
Henry VIIL., was £ 145, 10. 2.; there arc other remains
of the buildings, part of which has been converted into
dwelling-houses. In 1740, Mary, Countess Dowager of
Derby, granted in trust some land and a rent-charge of
£140 1 year, for the erection and endowment of alms-
houses for twelve women, and a dwelling-house for a
schoolmaster, who, with the aid of one of the alms-
women, was to teach six boys and six girls, who are
also clothed : two other children are clothed and educa-
ted under an endowment now producing £13 a year,
‘given by Mrs, Eliz. Nash, in 1716 ; and two ave
under an endowment by Barnard Frederick, in 1752,
In addition to the almshouses, two school-rooms have
‘heen built, in which these children, together with others
from the udjucent parishes, amounting in all to about
one hundred of each sex, are instructed, the ldﬂ.ltiun*,
expense being defrayed by subscription,

BOXLEY, a parish in the hundred of Marpsrons,
latheof AvrLesrorn,county of Kenr, 24 miles (N.E. by N.)
from Maidstone, containing 1166 inhabitants. The liy
is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Can-
terbury, rated in the king's books at £12, 19. 2., and in

Bochmmie Sy, Tas chroeh f i
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cot, and the abbot was to nt
of Edward I. Edward IL, resided here during

mwia !,.! " | u .“ .;.I- ’.I'I. ﬁme he mﬁ .
Mﬁ rter for the citizens of L At the dissolution,
the revenue was estimated at £218.'19, 10.; and the

site, with a portion of the estates, was to Sir
Thomas Wyatt, the poet. The abbey contained a cele-
brated rood, which, together with the image of St. Ram-
bald, was taken away, and publicly destroyed at St.
Paul’s cross, in 1538 : there are still some remains of the
buildings. An extensive rabbit-warren, part of the pos-
sessions of the abbey, lies beneath the chalk hill ; and
thu'eml:mther nml’%hwabom half of

ich is in this parish), but it brought into
{gﬁvaﬂm. A mllhsht::m, which mrt!lm just bdeluw the
church, runs throug village, is stated to pe-
trify wood with an incrustation resembling brown un-
polished marble,

BOXTED, a parish in the Colchester division of the
hundred of Lexpen, county of Essex, 5 miles (N.) from
Colchester, containing 798 inhabitants. The living is a
discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Colchester,
and diocese of London, rated in the king's books at
£7. 13. 9., endowed with £ 200 private benefaction, and
£200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Bishop
of London. The church is hd}csted to St. Mary. The
navigable river Stour runs on the northern side of this

"~ BOXTED, a parish in the hundred of Bapercn,
county of Surrork, 6 miles (N.E.) from Clare, con-
taining 196 inhabitants, The is a rectory not in
charge, consolidated with that of

deaconry of Sudbury, and diocese of Norwich.

" BOXWELL, a parish in the upper division of the
hundred of GrumpALp's Asm, county of GLOUCESTER,
5 miles (E. by 8.) from Wootton under Edge, containing,
with the of Lei 207 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Gloucester, rated in the king's books at £23. 4. 94,

“in the patronage of the Rev. R. Huntley. e
urch is dedicated to St. Andrew. There are quarries
of freestone within the parish, which is intersected by
river Froome,
destroyed by the Danes; the possessions were
M annexed to the abbey of Gloucester.

BOXWORTH, a parish in the hundred of Par-

WORTH, of Camsrine, 6§ miles (N.E. by N.)
from containing 317 inhabitants. The living
is @ rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Ely,
rated in the

king's books at €18, 12. 3}., and in the
eorge Thornhill, The church, de-

- of
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BOYLSTONE, a parish_in mw of ArprE-
TREE, county of Dermy, 74 miles (8.) fram Ashbourn,
containing 330 inhabitants. The living is a

rectory, in the of Derby, and diocese of
Lichfield and ,ubedtnthektn%sboohtt
£6. 0. 2., and in the of John Toples, Esq.
The church is dedicm:gtoSt. ohn the Baptist. There
is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists,

BOYNTON, a parish in the wapentake of Drickxk-
1§G, East ﬁw county of York, 24 miles (W.
by N.) from Bri , containing 123 inhahitants, é'he
living is a disc vicarage, in the archdeaconry of
the East riding, and diocese of York, rated in the king's
books at £7. 14. 2., and in the patronage of Sir W. Strick-
land, Bart. The church is dedicated to St. Andrew.
On an eminence, south of Boynton Hall, is a lofty build-
ing, which was erected by the late Sir George Strick-
land, Bart., the upper story of which is encircled by a
colonnade, and it commands very extensive land and
sea views,

BOYTON, a parish partly in the hundred of Brack
TorrinaTON, county of Devox, but chiefly in the hun-
dred of StraTroN, county of CorNwarLt, 5 miles (N.
by w.) from Launceston, ining, with the hamlet of
Northceott, 489 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry of Cornwall, and diocese
of Exeter, endowed with £ 200 royal bounty, and £ 200
parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of the Rev,
G. Prideaux. The Bude and Launceston, or Tamar,
canal crosses the parish. A fair is held annually on the
5th of August. The old mansions of Bradridge and
Beardon have been converted into farm-houses, Be-
tween this place and North Tamerton there is an ancient
thatched building, called Hornacott Chapel, now occu-
pied by a labourer.

BOYTON, = parish in the hundred of WivLronn,
county of Svrronk, 3} miles (W.S.W.) from Orford,
containing 284 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in
the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich.
rated in the king's books at £5. 12. 1., and in the pa-
tronage of the trustees of the late Mrs. Mary Warner.
The church is dedicated to St. Andrew, The river Alde
runs through the parish, and communicates with Butley
creek or Eye. An almshouse was built in 1743, and
liberally endowed by Mrs. Warner, for six men and six
women : this number has been lately inm:lud to sixteen,
each having two apartments, a garden, and an allowance
of 7s. a:egek,withamit of clothes and one chaldron
of coal yearly.

BOYTON, a parish in the hundred of Hevresnuny,
county of Wirrs, 3 miles (8.E.) from Heytesbury, con-
taining, with the township of Corton, 254 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Salisbury, rated in the King's books at £27. 17. 3§,
and in the of the President and Fellows of
M'Sgt.ddm l’E:llage,
to

i

The church is dedicated

BOZEAT, a parish in the hundred of HiGmAm-
Frnrers, county of NorTHAMPTOX, 5§ miles (N.) from
Olney, containing 754 inhabitants, The living is a di

‘harged vicarage, with that of Strixton ated, in
Torough, rated in the king’s books at £8, endowed with

DL e



BRA

worship for Wesleyan

BRABOURNE, a parish in the franchise and ba-
rony of Bincuour, lathe of Snerway, county of Kent,
64 miles (E. by 8.) from Ashford, containing 599 in-
habitants. The living is a vicarage, With the rectory
of Monk's Horton consolidated, in the
and diocese of Canterbury, rated in the king's books
at €11, 12, 6., and in the patronage of the Archbishop
of Canterbury. The church, dedicated to St. Mary, con-
tains numercus ancient and in monuments.
At Brabourne-Lees there is a rabbit-warren, the rabbits
in which are noted for their flavour. Extensive bar-
racks, both for cavalry and infantry, were erected here
a few years ago, A fair for toys and pedlary is held on
the last day in May.

BRACEBOROUGH, a parish in the wapentake of
Ness, parts of Kestevew, county of Lincorx, 6 miles
(W.N.W.) from Market-Deeping, containing 198 inha-
bitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
£9.10., and in the patronage of the Crown. The
¢hurch is dedicated to St, Margaret.

BRACEBRIDGE, a parish in the liberty of the
city of LincoLn, county of Lincorn, 24 miles (8. by W.)
from Lincoln, containing 1565 inhabitants. The living
is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Lin-
coln, rated in the king's books at £3. 9. 94., and in the
patronage of the Rey.J. Penrose. The church is dedi-
cated to All Saints. Edward Wells, in 1604, bequeathed
@ house and land for the instruction of poor children.

BRACEBY, a parish in the soke of Grantmam,
parts of Kestevex, county of Lincoun, 4% miles
(W. by N.) from Falkingham, containing 97 inhabitants,
The living is a vi , united to that of South Gran-
tham, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln. The
church is dedicated to St. M :

BRACE-MEOLE, a parish within the liberty of the

h of Smruwsnury, county of Savor, 14 mile
(8.) from Shrewsbury, containing 1348 inhabitants. The
living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry
of Salop, and diocese of Hereford, rated in the king's
books at £5, and in the patronage of Mrs. Bather. The
church is dedicated to All Saints. The Shrewsbury
house of industry, a noble and spacious Luilding, stands
in this parish.
 BRACEWELL, a parish in the eastern division
of the wapentake of Srarncrirre and Ewcross, West
riding of the county of York, 9 miles (W. by 8.) from
Skipton, containing 176 inhabitants. The living is a
digcharged vicarage, in the and diocese of
York, rated in the king's books at £2. 9. 9., endowed
with £600 private benefaction, and £ 1200 royal bounty,
and in the of Lord Grantham. The church
is dedicated to St. Michael. There are

‘eee
church s dedicated to St. Mary. ‘There is a place of i
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contained a chapel, the cemetery belonging to which re.
mains undisturbed. : e
BRACKENBOROUGH, a chapelry in the parish of
Lirrie Grimsny, of Lupsoroven, parts of
Lixpszy, county of Lixcory, 2L miles (N.) from Louth,
3 54 :

BRACKENFIELD, a chapelry in the parish of
MorToxn, hundred of Scamspane, county of Derny,
44 miles (N.W.) from Alfreton, 353 inhabit-
ants, The chapel is dedicated to the Holy Trinity.

BRACKENHILL, a township in the parish of Ar-
tourer, Eskparx ward, county of Cumnerrann, 4%
miles (E. by N.) from Longtown, containing 441 inha-
bitants. In this township is the small hamlet of
Easton, which anciently gave name to a parish, |
since included within the parishes of Arthuret an
Kirk-Andrews upon Esk.

BRACKENHOLME, a joint township with Wood-
hall, in the parish of HeminesrouGH, wapentake of
Ovze and Derwent, East riding of the county of
York, 34 miles (N.N.W.) from Howden, containing,
with Woodhall, 90 inhabitants. It occupies a pleasant
site near the river Derwent.

BRACKENTHWAITE, a township in the parish of
Lorrton, Arterpare ward above Darwent, county of
Cumnerraxp, 84 miles (W. by 8.) from Keswick, con-
taining 140 inhabitants, The neighbourhood abounds
with beautiful scenery, being picturesquely diversified
with the lakes Loweswater, Crummock, and Butter-
mere, and the lofty mountain Grassmoor : lead-ore has
been obtained in the townghip.

BRACKLEY , a borough,
market town, and parish, in ()4
the hundred of Kinc's Sur- #2381
ToN, county of NorTuame- M AR
ToN, 20 miles (8. W. by 8.) J{f/ N
from Northampton, and 64 o\ e} E‘J ' \

from the Anglo-Saxon Brac- . 3

ken, i fern, with ° |

which the neighbourhood il

formerly abounded : it was Seal and Arms.

a Saxon h of considerable importance, but was

my' by the Danes. In the reign of John,
de Quincy, Earl of Winchester, joined the con-

federate barons at Stamford, who marched to Br: .
whence they sent a remonstrance, setting forth )

grievances to the , who was then at Oxford. In
the reign of Henry IIL, two ndid  towrnaments
wmmmaphinmledm s Green, pear the
town. Edward IL, who conferred n:l:y
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pe ty of a hill, near a branch of the river Ouse,
which has its source ﬁim;mmmama“ﬁﬁ&

into office at his annual court leet, which is also a court
baron and . port-mote, on the Monday after September
29th, when two constables, two thirdboroughs, and other
officers, are also chosen, The aldermen are selected
from among the burgesses, the mayor and the lord of
the manor each ing one candidate, whose elec-
ion is decided by a majority of the rest: the sses
are chosen from householders residing in New Brackley
only, by the whole body, as vacancies occur. The cor-
poration have power to hold a court of record for the
recovery of debts under £20, but do not exercise it ;
and the mayor is not vested with magisterial authority,
the town being wholly within the jurisdiction of the
county. magi The elective franchise was con-
ferred in the first of Edward VL, since which time the

has returned two members to parlinment : the
right of election is vested in the mayor, aldermen, and
bT& in number thirty-three, who are principally
in the interest of the Marquis of Stafford : the mayor
is the returning officer. The town-hall, a handsome
building in the centre of the town, supported on
arches, under which the market is held, was erected in

1706, by Scroop, Duke of Bridgewater, at an expense

of £2000
3 the parishes of St. Peter and St.
James, which, ecclesiastically united, are distinct
as regards civil irs. The living is a consolidated
arage, in the archdenconry of Northampton, and
of rated in the king's books at

£19,1. ., and in the patronage of the Marquis of Staf-
ford. The chureh, dedicated to St. Peter, is an ancient
‘with a low embattled tower; it contains a

its dissolution: there is a A
has a salary of £18 per annum, and _ of
mdw to the“.lsnihaol. A’Nhﬁ:;nl school
or was elhhlllhed, 'W , by nw
tion. Almshouses for six aged widows were founded
by Sir Thomas Crewe, in 1633, and endowed with a rent.
charge of £24, which was increased in 1721, by his
descendant, Nathaniel, Lord Crewe, Bishop of Durham,
with an additional rent-charge of £12. The site of a
castle, built by one of the Norman barons, is still called
the Castle hill. Samuel Clarke, an eminent orientalist,
and one of the coadjutors of Walton in publishing the
Polyglott Bible, was born here, in 1623, ) :
- BRACON-ASH, a parish in the hundred of Humsre-
YARD, county of Norrorx, 5% miles (E. by 8) from
Wymondham, containing 260 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and dio-
fmsethof Norwich, r:ftc';‘l in the king's books at £10, and
in the patron . T. Berney, Esq. The church is
dedieated to S?Nichalu. %

BRADBORNE, a parish comprising the chapelry of

Atlow in the hundred of Arvnnnl?gnnd the Pcinpd_
ries of Ballidon and Brassington, the township of Ald-
wark, and the hamlet of Lea-Hall, in the hundred of
Winksworth, county of Demsy, 5 miles (N.N.E.)
from Ashbourn, and containing 1818 inhabitants. The
iving is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of
Derby, and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated
in the king's books at £8. 8. 4., and in the patronage
of the Duke of Devonshire. The church, which is in
Wirksworth hundred, is dedicated to All Saints, The
parish abounds with limestone. Tissington Hall was
garrisoned for the king by its owner, Col. Fitz-Herbert,
in 1643. ' Bradborne is in the honour of Tuthury, duchy
of Lancaster, and within the jurisdiction of a court of
pleas held at Tutbury every third Tuesday, for the re-
covery of debts under 40s.

BRADBURY, a township in the parish of Sroce-
FiELD,north-eastern division of Stockron ward, county
palatine of Durmam, 104 miles (8. by E.) from Dur-
ham, containing 152 inhabitants. Mr. Cade, the anti-
quary, considered the name of this place to be a corrup-
tion of Brimesbury, where King Athelstan encamped
in 937, when he gained a decisive victory over the
Danes : but it is more probable that this battle was
fought at Bramby in Lincolnshire. Here was formerly
a chapel of ease, dedicated to St.Nicholas, of which
there are no vestiges : the curate's house is still stand-
ing. In this township is a place called the Isle, environed
by two branches of the Little Skerne; it is a distinct
manor, comprising two farms,

BRADBY, a chapelry in the parish of Rerrox,
hundred of Rerrox and Gresiey, county of Demsy,
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Mhlished and supporfed by the late Earl
~ut‘Chuurﬁdd. andm-ﬁimﬁuued.
Bmdbyh in the honour of Tutbury, duchy of
ter.mdwlthmthejumd:ehanofnem&
held at Tutbury every third Tuesday, for the recovery

BRADDEN, npanshmthekmdmidﬁgnua
Nonrrox, county of NorTuamrron, 83 miles (W.) from
Towcester, containing 135 inhabitants. The living is
a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Northampton, and
diocese of Peterborough, rated in the king's books at
£14. 6. 8., and in the patronage of C. Ives, Esq. The
church is dedicated to St. Michael.

BRADENHAM, a parish in the hundred of Dus-
BOROUGH, county of BuckiNeraMm, 4% miles (N. W. by
N.) from High Wycombe, containing 220 inhabitants,
Tbelmngundm:hnrﬁdncmrymtheuvhqu

and onueufhmo!n.mtedinthe
king's books at £5. 3.

bmefachon,mﬂi%ﬂmyalbomny and in the pa-
tronage of J. Hicks, Esq. The church is dedicated to
St. Botolph. Catherine Pye, by deed dated in 1713, gave
land for the instruction of children in this and four
other parishes.

BRADENHAM (EAST), a parish in the southern
division of the hundred of GrEENHOE, county of Nor-
voLx, 53 miles (8. W.) from East Dereham, containing
340 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the arch-
dumryofﬂmfolk.md of Norwich, rated in

‘s books, at £12. 2. 8}., and in the
of'!'homOxley,qu The church, dedicated to St.
Mary, is composed of flint and stones.

BRADENHAM (WEST), a parish in [the southern
division of the hundred of Grerxnoe, county of Nonr-
¥oLK, 5§ miles (8. W. by W.) from East Dereham, con-
taining 385 inhabitants. The living is a
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese
of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £7.1.1
of the Bishop of Ely. The church,
dedicated to St. Andrew, is an ancient edifice built of

gjrli

'%

flint.

BRADESTON, a parish in the hundred of Brog-
¥iELy, county of Norrork, 44 miles (W.8. W.) from
Acle, containing 142 inhabitants. The living is a dis-
charged rectory, with*that of Strumpshaw united, in
themhdnennrymdcﬁoouedemh,nud the
king's books at £5. 6. 6, and in the patronage of the
Rev. T. Woodward, The church is dedicated St.
Michael. This is bounded on the south by the
river Yare, Three Roman urns, containing calcined
bones, were found in digging a sand-pit near the site

of a demolished
BRADFIELD, a /in the hundred of Turave,

in
of
to

by

county of Berks, 8 miles (W.) from Reading, contain-
ing 946 inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in the

archdeaconry of Berks, and diocese of Salisbury, rated
in the king's books at £19. 7. 8., and in

the
of the Rev. H. Stevens, mm&dm

Andrew. A monastery was King

was founded here by
mm,mmm is mam

o
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wich, rated in the king's

the pal of Lord Suffield. -
cated to St. Giles. The other mediety is a donative
annexed to the vicarage of Thorpe-Market.
BRADFIELD, a chapelry in the parish of Eccres-
FiELD, northern division of the wapentake of Srrar-
rortH and Trickmiun, West riding of the county of
Yonk, 6§ miles (N.W. by W.) from Sheffield, nmhining
5208 inhabitants. The living is a
the ‘and diocese of York, endowed wrth
£400 private benefaction, £400 royal bounty, and
£1000 grant, and in the patronage of the
Vicar of Ecclesfield. This chapelry lies in a mountain-
ous part of the county, and is surrounded by unculti
vated and barren moors. There is a place of worship
for Wesleyan Methodists. Many of the inhabitants are
employed in different branches of manufacture con-
nected with the trade at Sheflield. Fuirs are held on
June 17th and December 9th. An estate, called the
Feoffees' estate, produces about £172 per annum, which
is chiefly applied in repairing the chapel, and in defray-
ing those loeal expenses for which a rate is nsually im-
A school at Lower Bradfield is endowed with a
house (in which the master resides), a croft, and a gur-
den, besides a rent-charge of £10, for which eighteen
children are instructed. There is a school at Bolterstone,
endowed with about £40 per annum and a house oe-
enpied by the master, chiefly from n bequest by John
Hodgkinson, in 1780, for the free instruction of all
children within the chapelry. The school &t Onesacre
has an endowment of about £14 per annum. and a re-
gidence for the master, who teaches mduldun

s“‘mh,%“-])(ﬁl‘ GLARE).npnmhhthehmdnd

of TuepwrsTry, county of Surrorx, 6 miles (8, E, byﬁm
The m’a-&:eﬁ;n?;iu mmmm Sudbury,
a of
mddwdﬁmwh,mdinthnhhgnbmhﬂ
£7. 4. 7.,and in the patronage of the Rev, F "
'Dm'e ha.pbud woulnp for Wesleyan
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mmmhm of ,and
diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £13. 8. 4.,

and in the patronage of the Trustees of Bampfield's

The church is dedicated to All Saints. The
m Bickford, in 1745, gave a small endow-
ment for the instruction of six poor children,

BRADFORD, a township in the parish of Man-
cupsTeR, hundred of Sanrorp, county palatine of
Laxcaster, 13 mile (£ by 8.) from Manchester, con-
taining 95 inhabitants.

BRADFORD, a township in the parish of Bam-
prOUGH, northern division of BAmsrovea ward, county
of NowrnuMsERLAND, 44 miles (E. 8. E.) from Belford,

i 48 inhabitants,

FORD, a township in the parish of Bovram,
north-eastern division of Tixpave ward, county of
NorTHUMBERLAND, 12 miles (W. 8; W.) from Morpeth,

48 inhabitants.

BRADFORD, a parish in the hundred of Tavunron
and TAUNTON-DEAN, cnu‘nty of Somzrser, 4% miles

Thélivin'gmm
of Taunton, and dmoueofBathandWelh rated in
‘the king's books at £10. 17. 6., endowed with £200

, and £300 parliamentery grant, and

BmmnD,lpuﬁshinthmpmkeof Monvey,
West riding of the county of Yomrxk, comprising the
market town of Bradford, the chapelries of North Bier-
ley, Hawarth, Heaton, Horton, Shipley, Thornton, and
Wilsden, and the townships of Allerton, Bowling, Clay-
ton, Eccleshill, and , and containing, at
the census of 1821 (since which timeﬂupnpulahon
hias considerably increased), 52,054 inhabitants,
which number, 13,064 were in the town of Bradford,
34 miles (8. w.) from York, 10 (E.S.E.) from Leeds,
‘and 196 (N.N.W.) from London. This place derives
its name fron tMnﬂwﬁmm atthewizsm
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aﬁnelprh:gatthedm:mce ofﬂu'eemﬂu. ‘mir,
thmgh.bm;uvmaﬂuhnm; and the mighbmn“
with pleasing and picturesque scenery.
Assemblies are held in rooms in the Exclunge, a hand-
some building of freestone, recently erected, and con-
taining also a subseription news-room and a library.
Music meetings of the Philharmonic Society are held
monthly in the Exchange buil Bradford is in
the centre of the manufacturing cts, and the in-
habitants are employed prlnc!pally in the manufacture
ofwoollmcloch worsted stuffs, and cotton goods, in
the spinning of worsted yarn, and in making ivory and
horn combs. The neighbourhood abounds with coal
and iron-stone ; and about three miles to the south-east
of the town are iron-works on a very extensive scule.
A branch of the Leeds and Liverpool canal has been
brought to this place, and affords great facility to its
commerce, The market is on Thursday : the market-
liouse is a handsome stone building, enclosing a spa-
cious area for the sale of provisions and varionskinds
of merchandise. Fairs are held on June 17th and the
two following days ; December 9th and the two follow-
ing days, for pigs; and March 3rd and 4th, for cattle,
&ec. The town is within the jurisdiction of the magis-
trates for the West riding ; two constables are ap-
pointed annually at a vestry meeting held in the parish
church ; a court of requests is held under an act
passed in the 33rd of George IIL, for the recovery of
debts under 40s.; and a court for the recovery of
debts under £5, within the honour of Pontefract, on
the Wednesday in every third week, The court-house
is a handsome stone building in Darley-street. The
Midsummer quarter sessions for the West riding are
held in the Piece-hall, a spacious building in
divided into twe apartments, one of which, besides
being used for holding the courts, is for the exhibition
and sale of stuffs and other afticles of manufacture,
which are deposited in the other.

The living is a vi , in the archdeaconry and
diocese of York, mahi:r:lhe king's bnoks;thﬁﬂﬂ, and
in tha of Ricl Fawcett, e church,

p. E Peter, is an moientn:guctm in the
decorawd style of ‘architecture. Christ-church,
a chapel of ease erected in 1814, by parliamentary grant,
is a neat building in the decorated style, with a low
tower crowned with ﬂ‘l‘hm are places of
worship for Baptists, the Society of Friends, Independ-
ents, Primitive and Wesleyan Methodists, Uniudug
and Roman Catholics. The free grammar school, found-
“?&3&?‘%?&:&2;3‘&?&
was act 1 isa
cious and handsome edifice, with a neat house a
master, and a library for the use of the students. ~ The
muusgement is vested in thimm. ernors resident
in the town snd , by a charter of
Charles IL, bearing date October lﬁ d
Hlbay-nf+'fwk was Wdﬁﬁ;‘;ﬁ




wymﬂmﬁm Tlhelmmedmddmdhiohn
, Archbishop of Yarkmthumlgaofmlﬂ.,
was at. in the year 1644. =
BRADFORD (GREAT), n mrk*mlnﬂpmlh
in the hundred of Bravrorp, county of Wivrs, 8
miles (8. E.) from Bath, 31{ (N.W.) from Salisbury,
and 102 (W. by 8.) from London, containing with the
of Atworth, Holt, Wi with Limpley-
, and South Wraxall, and the t; of Leigh-
Wooley, 10,231 inhabitants. This place, a ford
over the river Avon, was called by the Saxons Brad-
enford, of which its present name is a contraction, Dur-
ing the Octarchy, a battle took place here, between
Cenwalh, King of the West Saxons, and a formidable
of his own subjects, who had rebelled against
, under the command of his kinsman Cuthred,
when the latter were defeated with slanghter.
706, Aldhelm, Bishop of Sherborne, founded an
abbey at this place, which he dedicated to St. Law-
rence, and which, after its destruction by the Danes,
was rebuilt and converted into a nunnery, by Ethel-
red, who annexed it to a larger establishment of the
same kind at Shaftesbury, in 1001. The town is
buunl’n]lydmtedonthe nccliwtyofamephm
of a line of eminences on the northern
river Avon, over which are an ancient bridge
and a modern bridge of nine, arches, both af-
@ most agreeable prospect. The view of the
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town, which consists of three regular streets ranged
above each other at different elevations on the side of
the hill, is y picturesque : the houses, built of
stone, are in handsome, and many of them
elegant ; and the inhabitants are amply supplied with
‘water from springs, Various designs have recently been
mudinh effect for the improvement of the town :

i
g,

the streets have been widened, and consider-
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tarn. mwmmm&m _
Trowbridge ; and a court of requests for the recovery
mma&,mmdmmw
the hundreds of Bradford, Melksham, and Whorwels-
dnwn,uhdd,unﬂud“mdhﬂw‘ﬂhm
I1L, every third Tuesday, alternately with % 4

and Melksham. A small oratory on ‘the south. Y
mdeofﬂwhddgn formerly belw i
of St. ummmwrim-m@m
finement for offenders, P y to their committal to
the county gabl. The ving is a discharged v:lm
in the archdeaconry and diocese. of Salisbury, rated in
the king's books at £10. 1. 3., and in the of
the Dean and Chapter of Bristol. The church, d
tedﬁo the Holy Trinity, is a spacious hudaomcmc

ture ; it suffered greatly from fire in 1742, and has un-
dergone extensive repauir ; the windows contain some
modern stained glass, and the altar is embellished with
a good painting of the Laust Supper ; within are several
stately monuments of marble, Thmmmaplmuof
worship each for Baptists and Independents, and one
each for the Society of Friends, those in the connexion
of the late Countess of H on, Wesleyan Metho-
dists, and Unitarians. A free school for sixty boys is
endowed with an estate at Holt, purchased with £250
given by Mr. Francis Smith; and with the. dwid?d-
on £240 three per cents,, given in 1805, by Mr
Shawbridge, who a.lao beqnenﬁhcd £400 in the same
stock, directing the interest to be distributed annually,
mmmmdhulf-mm,ammgthepoor. There are
two almshounses, one founded by Mr. John Hall, for
men, the echu'furlgedwomea they are sup
have been an to the monastery, ofwhlch,mdg.
also of other religions establishments formerly existing
here, there are still some slight remains. Many curious
fossils have been fonnd in the quarries adjoining the town.

BRADFORD (WEST), a township in that part of
the parish of Mirron which is in the western division
of the wapentake of Staincrirre and Ewconoss, West
riding of the county of Youx, 2 miles (N.) from Clis
theroe, 5064 inhabitants. Thomas Tarrand,
in lfﬂl,beqmthad a rent-charge of £ 10 for instruct-

r children of the township. -
FORD-ABBAS, a parish in the hundred of

E

m&}mﬂu (W.8.w.) from Sherborne, 588
inhabitants, The living is a vicarage, with whieh»é_l_ihl
of Clifton-Mabank was in lﬂli.

~archdeaconry of Dorset, and diocese of
Mw&glbmkllt.ﬂ'? 17.11,,and inthe
tgcd'ﬂn of Anglesey. The church: s
cated to St. Mary. mnw.wnnumm
gave £14 per annum for the endowment of a
m,m&w am.mwmu&h n Re

.*.\I' @ ;‘1“:1. wi ‘|..
g B AR



libatynf Easr Mmmu, Isle
i division of the coun-

ql'h:gﬁde The town consists principally of one long
street, the houses in which are irregularly built; the in-
habitants are plen with water from public
we]ll Fairs are held on May 1st and September 21st.
The government, by charter of incorporation granted
phrhtherdguofEdwlrdVl is vested in a senior
and a junior bailiff, a recorder, and thirteen jurats, assist-
ed by a town-clerk, who is also steward : the bailiffs are
mhhdht:n?em hetoftheiordtb:flthemm
sa small building; ower part is
wuammmmm The living is a
discharged . , in the archdeaconry and diocese of
w&m tnthe ‘s books at £20, and in
'pltruugeafthe Master and Fellows of Trinity

College, Cambridge, The church, dedicated to St. Mary,
is one of the most ancient in the k said to

hﬂ'hmmin‘ro&,bywm'ld Buhupof
. : his' first converts to Christisnity : it

: .mm.uwm

= : ¥4

e Ll 'r* . Jl""_‘

rin ﬂw’pﬂﬂl of Cmen~
mmdfml ('Smth}

BRADLEY, a in the pﬂhb of Cm
hundred of Homn county of Berxs, 5 miles (N.mw )
from Abi n, containing 5 inhabitants, -

BRADLEY, a township in the parish of Mavras;

division of the hundred of Broxrton, county
:ﬁﬁmof(}m 2 miles (S.E. by x.) h‘man!Jll,
containing 78 inhabitants.

BRADLEY, a parich in the hundred of Apnmll.
county of Dlnn'r, 3% miles (E. by 8.) from Ashbourn,

320 inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in
the archdeaconry of Derby, and diocese of Lichfield and
Coventry, rated in the king's books at £5. 19. 94, and
in the of the Dean of Lincoln. The church,
Within mwpﬁhsgm alybea nprmg,mcm;:ltm

I e ac te it is not
much used. 7

BRADLEY, a tything in that part of the parish of
Creprron which is in the western division of the hun-
dred of Bubpreics, county of Devoxn, 2} miles (N. E.)
from Crediton, with which the population is returned.

BRADLLEY, a tything in the parish of Worron
under Ence, upper division of the hundred of Benke-
LEY, county of Grovcesrer, 4 a mile (W.8.W.) from
Wotton under Edge, with which the population is re-
turned.

BRADLEY, a hamlet in the chapelry of Hour,
parish of Mepsounye, hundred of GanTrEE, county of
LercesTeRr, 24 miles (N.N.W.) from Rockingham, The
population is returned with Holt. A small priory of
A canons was founded here, in the reign of
John, by Robert Bundy, or Burneby, the revenue of
which, at the time of the suppression, was £20, 15. 7.

BRADLEY, a parish in the wapentake of Brapuey-
Haverston, parts of Linpsey, county of LincoLn, 3
miles (8.W.) from Great Grimsby, containing 78 inha-
bitants. The living is a dise rectory, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books at £5. 10, 10., and in the p nﬁeufﬁirm
Nelthorpe, Bart, Theehureh isd:dmnt to St. George.
The children of this are entitled to instruction at
Laceby school, founded and endowed by Sarah Stam-
ford, in 1720,

BRADLEY, a parish situated in a detached portion
of the hundred of Overron, Kingsclere division of the
county of SouTHAMPTON, 6 miles (wnw ) mm-
canwmng 100 inhabitants, The living is

and diocese of Winctl;:m rated :l‘
t.lak 's hooks at £8. 13. 4., and in the patronage
J Bl::‘ibum Esq. The church is dedicated to Al
Saints, Bmdluy is within the of the Chey-
ney Court held at Winchester every Thnndly, l!r ﬂh

of debts to any amount.
BRADLEY, a mmmdm

nf’WmM



: BRA ’
s a m-:w ry of Sudbury, and dio-
aﬁ:ommmdmm ing's books _"ﬁ;l';?‘ll.ﬂ.-,

and in the patronage of the Archbishop of Dublin and
others. The church is dedicated to St Mary,
‘BRADLEY (LITTLE), a parish in the hundred of
Rissriner, comty of SyrroLk, 6 mlu_l‘g E.) from
Huverhill, containing 31 inhabitants. The living is o
dis rectory, in the archdeaconry of Sudbury, and
iﬂm{ of Norwich, rat-edfin the king's books at £5. 0. 10.,
n the patronage of F.Dickens, Esq. The church
is dedicated to All Saints, . n'q”'
- BRADLEY (LOWER and UPPER), a township in
the parish of Kiuowrok, eastern division of the wapen-
take of StaincrLivve and Ewcnross, West ri of the
county of York, 24 miles (8.8.E.) from Skipton, con-
taining 506 inhabitants. Theré is a place of worship
for Wesleyan Methodists, i
BRADLEY (MAIDEN), a parish partly in the hun-
dred of Norron-Ferris, county of Somerser, but
chiefly in the hundred of Mere, county of Wiurs, 53
miles (N. by W.) from Mere, containing 620 inhabitants,
The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Salisbury, endowed with £800 royal
bounty, and £600 parliamentary grant, and in the pa-
tronage of the Dean and Canons of Christ Church,
Oxford. The church is dedicated to All Saints. Fairs
are held on April 25th and September 21st.  Aun hospital
for poor leprous women, under the superintendence of
some Secular priests, was founded by Manasseh Biset,
about the close of the reign of Stephen, or the begin-
ing of that of Henry 1I. About the year 1190, Hubert,
ﬁﬁop of Salisbury, changed the Seculars into a prior
and canons of the A
time of the dissolution, was £197. 18. 8,
BRADLEY in the MOORS, a parish in the western
division dsmhw ())f Cumrr«iun:, county of
ATFORD, | N.W.) from Penkridge, containing,
g:ththellbertiuofmmngwnmd'Wm n, part of
Alstone, Brough, and Rule (the three last having been
heretofore deemed extra-parochial); and part of Apeton,
728 inhabitants. The living is a curacy, in
the deaconry of Stafford, and diocese of Lichfield
and Coventry, endowed with £400 private benefaction,
and €400 royal hounty, and in the patronage of Thomas
The church is dedicated to All Saints,

Anson,

ine order : the revenue, at the

and in the patronage of the Warden and Fellows of

Winchester " The church is dedicated to 8t.
Nicholas. An elegant chapel, called Christchurch, hus
been lately erected on Road hill, at one extremity of the
parish, by the present vicar, Dr. Daubeny, Archdeacon of
Sarum, aided by voluntary subscriptions and & gran
from the commissioners and  enlax
churches ; it is endowed with G.;%ﬂg pﬂ;l:ebm
tion, £3400 parliamentary grant, in the patronage
of the Vicar of North Bradley. The I So-
ciety for the enlargement of churches and chapels have
ulso granted £1000 for the erection of seven hundred
additional sittings, of which five hundred and fifty are
free, There is a place of worship for Particular Bap-
tists. The parish is bounded on the west by the river
Frome, which here separates Wiltshire from Somerset-
:hire, and is intersected by a small stream, called Brad-
ey river. ’ -

BRADLEY (WEST), a parish in the hundred of
Graston-TweLve-Hipges, county of Somerser, 4§ miles
%s.n.} from Glastoubury, oomininge;u lt:ha‘.dhthnts.

eli is a perpetual curacy, annexed to the
of Ea:ti.n%muﬂ, in the archdeaconry of Wells, and
diocese of Bath and Wells.

BRADLEY-FIELD, a hamlet in the chapelry of
UxperBarrow, in that part of the parish of Kennar
which is in Kenpar ward, county of WesTMORLAND,
4 miles (W.) from Kendal. The population is returned
with Underbarrow. :

BRADMORE, a parish in the northern division of
the wapentake of Rusncrivre, county of Norrincuam,
64 miles (8.) from Nottingham, containing 410 inhabit-
ants. The living is a vicarage, annexed to that of Bunny,
in the archdeaconry of Nottingham, and diocese of Yor
The church was destroyed by fire, and has not since been
rebuilt : the steeple still remains. : AL

'BRADNINCH, a parish
(formerly a borough and
market town), hnvi!l:g se-
parate jurisdiction, locally | ({
in the lmndr;? ﬂ.: Hay- |
r&dga,-. VON, 8B
miles (N.E.) from Exeter,
and 170 (w.) from London,

ping 1511 inhabit-

the Saxons: in the reignof . |




Thomas’ dsy,bythaeorponﬁun at large, from among
the twelve masters, who nominate two of their own
hody to that office ; the mayor, the late mayor, and the

E

coepbehtit. Hold, e e e
old a court q y: emsyors
court, for the recovery of debts undlr 40s, is held
monthly ; and courts leet and baron for the dnchyare
also held here. The dhall is a small building, pos-
to’ notice. The living is
, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
endowed with £300, and a messuage worth
, private benefaction, £200 royal bounty, and

, and in the patronage of

:
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\DON (NORTH and SOUTH), a parish in the
:wf Ln:bm and Bursronk, county of So-

nts I
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‘their dead at W
1527, they were %ﬂa in- mw«m\#

yard, on a small mhowkdmm t:i
the rectnrp:f Bndpoxt.w’

- BRADSHAW, a chapelry indwwhlm‘ Bmml
hundred of Su.mu, palatine of L.nwmu,
3 miles (N.E.) from Bolton le Moors, containing 713
inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy,in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Chester, endowed vriﬂt
£200 privute benefaction, £800 royal bounty, and £
parlinmentary grant, and in the of the Viear
of BoltonleMom A collection of hooks given ik
Mrs, Isherwood, for the use of the inhabitants, is ﬁ
in the chapel. Here are extensive bleaching-gro

A school for the education of children has lately
been erected. Bradshaw Hall was the property and re-
sidence of John Bradshaw, who presided at the trial of
the unfortunate monarch, Charles I.

BRADSHAW-EDGE, & township in the parish of
CuareL en le Frita, h of Hica Peax, county
of Dersy, 1§ mile (W,) from Chapel en le Frith, con-

taining 1708 inhabitants,

BRADSTONE, a parish in the hundred of Lirrox,
county of Devoxn, 44 miles (8. E. by E.) from Launces-
ton, containing 115 inhabitants, The living is a dis-
charged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Totness, and
diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £6, 7. 2.
and in the patronage of the Bishop of Exeter. The
church is dedicated to St. Nun.

BRADSTONE, a hamlet in the parish, and upper
division of the hundred, of Berkerey, county of
Guovcester, 2§ miles (E.N.E.) from Berkeley, con-

ining 152 inhabitants.

BRADWELL, a parish in the hundred of Newronr,
county of Buckineguam, 34 miles (E. by 8.) from Smny-
Strat.fard. containing 271 inhabitants. The living is a

c.nnge, in the archdeaconry of Buckingham, und dio-

Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £5. 11. 04.,

and in the patronage of the Crown. The church is de-

dicated to St. Lawrence. The sum of £13, 13. is ap-

plied annually in relieving the poor, and toward in-
structing six or seven children.

BRADWELL, a township in the parish of Sum-
BacH, hundred of Nomruwics, county palatine of
Cnester, 2 miles (N. by W.) from Sandhach, contain-
ing 282 inhabitants,

BRADWELL, a hamlet in the parish of Holt,
hundred of Hign Peax, county of Denrasy, ﬁ miles
(N.N.E.) from Tideswell, containing 1130 i i
who are chiefly engaged in the lead and calamine works
in the vicinity, the manufacture of these articles b
carried on to a considerable extent, There are
of worship for Wesleyan Methodists and Unitarians.
Elias Marshall, in 17065, assigned a small of
hndn»wproduamgi.?.pummfurwh: five chil-
dren are . About \‘.hﬁ yur 1807,




'.BRADWELL, npnrlﬂ:iathehmﬂndofﬂw-
vorp and LoTHiNGrLaND, county of Surrork, 3 miles
&W A ﬁmhﬁthmouﬁn , containing 272 inhabitants,

living is & rectory, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk,
r&dﬁm@dﬂ;ﬁcb nﬁ:fdinthakingcboohg

King, by reason of lunacy, was patron
1810. The church is dedicated to St. Nicholas.
water is navigable on the northern side of this parish.

BRADWELL ABBEY, an extra-parochial liberty,
in the hundred of Ntwmrr,omtyof BuckinGrAM,
3‘ (E.8.E.) from Stony-Stratford, containing 20

b ..&.]n'loryofBlackmm&adedzcatedto

by a farm-house.
RADWELL juxta COGGESHALL, a parish in
the hundred of Wirmam, connty of Essex, 2 miles

(w.bys)fromﬂreat 317 inha-
bitants. The li uare intheurchdeaconry
of Colchester, and an,ratedmthekmgs
hoohl‘.ttl? and in the of the Rev. M. J, Brun-
win. urch is dedicated to the Holy Trinity.
B near the SEA, a parish in the hundred
of DENGIE, county of Essex, 12 miles (B.) from Mal-

containing 904 inhabitants. The

living is a rectory,
archdeaconry 3

of Essex, and diocese of London,

;?
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sea is on the cast, near which stand the remains of an
ancient chapel, dedicated to St. Peter, now converted
into a barn. Camden considers the Saxon city Ithan-
cestre to have stood at or near this place, and identifies
it also with the Roman station Othona, where the
Numerus Fortensium, under
of the Saxon shore,
Roman empire,

ig

erected muﬁng-hmahont m& school«
mm:bum Mhlﬂiwﬂe&w
endowed with £12 per annum by the Diocesan Society.

BRAFFERTON, a parish the
of Thornton-Bridge in the -  HALLIKELD,
the township of Brafferton in the wapentake of Buimer,
and the ip of Helperby, /in the same
wapentake (but included within the liberty of St
Perenr of Yonrk, in the East riding), Nmﬁtﬁdﬂguﬁ
the county of Yorg, and containing 832 iy , of
which number, 178 mh!d:elonﬂhipdﬂ»m
4 miles (Nn)fmml!nmghbndge. Thehvinghu
di vicarage, in the uvhdmomy ‘Cleveland,
and diocese of York, rated in the king's books at
£9. 15. 6., endowed with £200 royal bounty, and in
the of the Crown. The church is dedicated
to St. Peter. The village of Brafferton lies on one side
of the road, and that of Helperby on the other; a
school on Dr. Bell's is connected with both, and is
supporhsdcbleﬂ by subseription.

BRAFI on the GREEN, tparlshmthnhm-
dred of WymensLey, county of Norruamerox, bmiles
(E. by 8.) from Northampton, containing 424 inhabit~
ants. The living is a discharged vicarage, annexed to
that of Little Houghton, in the of North-
ampton, and diocese of , rated in the
king's hooks at £6. 18. 6. The church is dedicated
to St. Lawrence.

BRAILS, a parish in the Brails division of the
hundred of Kincrown, county of Wanwick, 4 miles
(E. by 8.) from Shipston upon Stour, containing 1233
inhabitants, The li is a viearuge, in the archdea
conry and diocese of Worcester, rated in the king's
books at £25, and in the patronage of J. Bailey, Esq.
The church is dedicated to St. . Here is a
manufactory for livery shag, plush, &c. A free school
was endowed, in the 23rd of Elizabeth, with an annuity
of £8. 1. 8., which was ted by Barnubas Bishopp
and others, in the 18th of James L; the anmual in-
come is £64. 8. 2., for which the school is unlimitedly
gu for poor children: the school-room was uhpi!t

1819,

BRAILSFORD, apsrishinthelinnﬂnﬂufm

TrEE, county of Derey, 74 miles (N.W. by W.) ﬁm‘
containing i .

£9.19.2, and in the
church is dedicated to All Saints,
mh!phwwymll% 1
mnmm.p.m

s, though
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described  TiSMERE,

| II. Owing toits si as a great thorough-
WM leading from London into the counties
: ~and Norfolk, it is supposed to have derived
‘benefit from the numerous pilgrims who
m on their way to the shrines of St.
nund, at Bury, and Our Lady of Walsingham : the
population having consequently increased, it was made
4 market town in the veign of John, The bishops of
Imﬂmrfambﬂyhﬁ-aphoe here, but there are no

; early part of the reign of Eliza-

fmm the persecution of the
, and introduced the

i formed and inconvenlenﬂy narrow ; the
houses are in general ancient, and many of them are
built of wood. The woollen trade has given place to the
manufacture of silk, which is carried on extensively.
'ﬂumnkmuonWe : the fairs are on May 7th
and October 2nd, each for three days. The govern-
ment was formerly vested in twenty-four of the princi-

pd“pﬂahimarl who in 1584 were styled “ governors

B session here for the division every Wednesday.
living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdea-
%of Middlesex, and diocese of London, rated
hng‘i books at £12, 13, 4, endowed with

, and £200 royal bounty, and

 of Mr. and Mrs. Olmins.  The church,
dedicated to St. Michael, is a spacious structure,
erected on the summit of a mount, apparently the site
of an ancient camp; it is pmncrpo.lly in the later style
Q'Muhwuh with a tower in the early En-
style, munnt;lll ‘I;y a shingled spirevoIfI‘Ilat;r

1 it was enlarged e reign of Henry the
been ed out of the proceeds of

mhm-hg

three plays performed in the church, of which some cu-

rious particulars are recorded in the parish register.
|+ Thereare places of worship for Baptists, the Society of

de , Duke of Norfolk, for the protection of th
of bownan.d from the expeeted attack of the I
who were hovering off the coast. ‘The town is sit

RTH,a arish in the hundred of Han-
county of SurroLK, l{-mﬁn(&&wd rom.
Eye,mnmn[nglro h:hnbitanh The liy 'haﬁ

rectory, in the of
diocese of Norwich, rated in the King's
£4.8. 14, andinthepntrm.genfEarlCamwnﬂm

AITE, a township in that purt of ¢

parish of Cmmwuﬂ which is in ALLerDALE
above Darwent, county of CumpERLAND, 2§ miles W
by N.) from Keswick, containing 214 inhabitants, The
village lies at the foot of Winlatter-Fell, the summit of
which, gained by & steep ascent of two miles and =
quarter, embraces prospects of a most sublime charac-
ter. A woollen man is carried on; and lead
mines have been worked in the township,

BRAITHWAITE, a detached hnmlet in that part of
the parish of Sr.Mary, CarvisLe, which is in
ward, county of CumserrLAND, 6§ miles (E. N. E,) from
Hesket-Newmarket. The population is with
the hamlet of Middlesceugh.

BRAITHWELL, a parish in‘the southern division
of the wapentake of StrarrorTs and Tickuriy, West
riding of the county of Yonxk, comprising the town-
ships of Braithwell and Bramley, and containing 739 in-
hubitants, of whieh number, 438 are in the to of
{Srmthwelld'r miles (8. W. by Bi)nfzhom :;gnW; The
iving is a disc vicarage, e Cezaconry and
diocese of York, rated in the king's books at.£7, 7, 6.,
and in the patronage of the Crown. The church ii,l‘le—-
dicated to St. James. There is a place of worship for
Wesleyan Methodists, The school owes its fo ion
to Mr. John Bosvile : in 1818, the Rev. Thomas Bosyile
gave £250 for the instruction of ten children : the in-
come is £10. 10, annum, and there are fourteen
children on the foundation.” Twenty-two human skele-
tons, supposed to be those of Roman soldiers who fell

in battle with the ntes, and an urn, that probubly
contained the ashes of a Roman were disco-
vered some years ago, in a field , in which a va-

;i::‘yoginommcomnhudmbemfmdatdim
BRAKES, ‘a township in the parish of Leintwan-
piNx, hundred of Wremone, county of Hm:m,
containing 125 inhabitants,
BRAMBER, a borangh{{humeﬂyumket
in the hundred of Smmm.n]ﬁnam
of Sussex, 4 a mile (F.8. E) S&yﬁing,ﬁd‘ﬁﬁ
miles (8. by w.) from London, containing
ants. This lacewasfomer}ynmdfornmsﬂc
by the descendants of William de Braiose, nptmw‘hom
nmmadbywuummcmw ﬂ:«t
ufEddeII. this castle was garrisoned by John

EATH




 Norwich, containing 184

] .i'.-
4 mount whereon stood the keep, and a noble window in

moat : the remains
v of part of the entrance gateway, some
. portions of the walls to the north-west, the

:ﬁgmp.ﬂut contained the state ents : the pre-

“ﬂhmk of architecture is the Norman.
~ BRAMCOTE, a chapelry in the parish of Arrexno-

ROUGH, southern division of the wapentake of Brox-
“7ow, county of Norrincuanm, 4 miles (W.8.W.) from
Nottingham, containing 441 inhabitants, The living is
a perpetual curacy, annexed to the vicarage of Attenbo-
rou#:, in the archdeaconry of Nottinghum, and diocese
of York. The Nottingham canal passes through the
chapelry. Coal is obtained on the moor.

BRAMCOTT, a hamlet in the parish of BuLxing-
710N, Kirby division of the hundred of Kmieurrow,
county of Warwick, 4 miles (8. E) from Nuneaton,
containing 35 inhabitants,

AR EAN, a parish in the hundred of Bisnor's
Svrrox, Alton (North) division of the county of
Souraamrron, 4 miles (8. hm.)&omﬂewumﬁrd,

252 inhabitants. living is a rectory, in
and diocese of Winchester, rated in

4

 the king's books at £8. 14. 94, and in the patronage of
e Bishon

shop of Winchester. church is dédicated to
St, Simon and St. Jude. Bramdean is within the juris-
diction of the Cheyney Court held at Winchester every
Thursday, for the recovery of debts to any amount.
~ BRAMERTON, a parish in the hundred of Hex-
sTEAD, county of NorroLx, 5§ miles (S.%. by B.) from
The living is a
rged rectory, in the of Norfolk, and
of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £6, and
patronage of Rgbert Fellowes, Esq. The church
r, The Rev. W' Berney, in
£100 for the instruction of children,

BR&ALL.- township in the parish
rort, hundred of'mw, county

Curster, 3 miles (8. by W.) from Stockport,
1859 inhabitants. The lord of this manor, in

tion with “the Tosds of 'the mances'of Bredbm ‘

nington, and Norbury, has, from time immemorial, ap-
pointed the churchwardens of the parish. The :

mansion ig a curious ancient edifice of timber and brick,
on elevated ground: at the

plaistered over,
is the domestic chapel, y of

south-east angle

of Davenport. e ¥
BRAMHAM, a parigh partly in the liberty of Sr. Pe-
TeR of Yorxk, East riding, but chiefly in the upper divi-
sion of the wapentake of Banksrone-Asn, West riding,
of the county of York, compriging the townships of
Bramham and Clifford, and containing 1987 inhabitants,
of which number, 970 are in the township of Bramham,
44 miles (8.8.8.) from W . The living is a dis-
vicarage, in the peculiar jurisdiction of the Dean
and Chapter of York, rated in the king's books at
£6. 7. 6., endowed with £400 private benefaction, £400

royal bounty, and £600 parliamentary ogrn.nz.nulh the

the possession of the crown was secured to

There are visible remains of the glﬂhlt -
Bramham moor, a mile north of the

middle of this moor is #n extensive
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weﬁﬁem, but will soon be made available to
hqlﬁﬁt of the institution. Another allotment was
:;ﬁ?

t, prod £6 annum, for the instruction
i

mmnw,amwmmp in the parish of Brarrm-
wELL, southern division of the wapentake of STrAr-
ortH and Trekuiy, West ri of the county of
K _ (E.) from Rotherham, containing 301
There is a place of worship for Wesleyan
RD-SPEKE, a parish in the hundred of
, county of Dev u.i}mﬂi?(u by E.) from
308 bitants. The living is a
‘the archdeaconry and diocese of Exeter,

e king's books at £10, and in the patronage
The church is dedicated to St. Peter.

,n plnhh in EskpaLe ward, connty of
‘the market town of Bramp-
of Eashy' and Naworth, and
m inlnb:hnts, of which number, 2448 are

thheQSrﬁof d ea
tle, houea,md sheep. The eo\mty'
petty session every alternate W Ly eourts
leet and baron for the barony of Gilslmd are’ held, at
Easter and Miclinelmes, in the town-hall, a neat octa-
gonal edifice, with & cupola, erected by'the Earl of Car-
lisle, in 1817, on the site of the former hall, in the mar-
ket-place, the lower part being formed into a piazza, |
under which butter, eggs, poultry, &c., are sold on the
market-day. The living is a vicarage, in the lrchdu-. .
conry and diocese of Carliele, rated in the e
at £8, and in the patronage of the Earl of Cnrliale The
present church was bnl.lt, in 1788, out of the chapel and
four tenements of gn almshouse, and with the mawrillu

of the old church, dedicated to St. Martin, the chancel

of which is still remaining on the southern bank of the

river Irthing, about a mile west of the town, being only

used for the performance of the funeral service for '

thosewhonremterrcdmﬂzecaneta'y the new church |
Eea enlarged in 1827, at an expense of giaﬁ

on which occasion the Rev. Mr. Ramshay, vicar, pre-

sented the parish with six bells and an orgm,‘mdm

pays the salaries of the organist and the rvingers: he

also, on every alternate Sunday, gives one -himngto

each poor person attending divine service.

places of worship for Independents, Primi

Wesleyan Methodists, and Presh A Niﬂbm.l

school, built by the Earl of Carlisle, in 1817, 18 support-

ed by voluntary contributions: an infant school was es.

;abiixhed foi:-‘ 1825, Edward, Earl of Carlisle, :;uilt an

six men and ag many women,

tomzitc:lof whom he Mmgmd £5 per anuum, beggg :

fuel, and, by will dated in 1691, biquuthedimto

purchase lands for its endowment ;

purpose was never carried into all'act.

taken down to make room for the enhrgen;eat

church, at the east end of which a room has been b |

and is used for a achuol;themummdv.u

an annuity of £5 from the present earl. eI et
Two miles east of anptan and about a

of the river Irthing, fine vie

vale of St. Mary, through w
Naworth castle, the ancient
of Gilsland, the earliest notice ofwhi
18th of Richard II. The walls,

b -
’srw

f*w ,Jﬂ

o O

LSRN S



the south of the town ie a fine guarry
the Romans obtained part of the ma-
the great wall, vestiges of which are
“on the rocky banks of the Gelt are
ons, of the time of Agricola, one
 was stationed near Brampton.
)N, a parish in the hundred of Scarspavre,

-mimr s}mﬂes (W. by N.) from Chester- -

2632 inhabitants. Tha is a per-

ofintmmmtoftheﬁnmﬂlﬁonn urgh

posite side of the riv
BRAMPTON, a |
county of Norruampron, 3% miles (E. by
Market- Harborough, containing 113 inhabi
living is a rectory, in the of N
ton, und diocese of Peter! rated in
books at £21. 6. 8, and in the patronage
sident and Fellows of Corpus Christi Colleg 3
The church is dedicated to St. Mary. S
BRAMPTON, a parish in the hundred of Bryru-
1N6G, county of SurroLk, 44 miles (N. l.) om Hale;
worth, containing 255 inhabitants, The.o

BRAMPTON, a township in the pnrmhgdlﬁw
Manrox, Easr ward, county of WestmoruAND, 2f
miles (N.) from Appleby. The populatioq s rétur:
with the parish, 4
BRAMPTON (CHAPEL), a parish in‘
dred of Nosorrue-Grove, county of N'

miles (N.N.W.) from N

bitamts, The church has long been d;

BRAMPTON (CHURCH), a parish
dred of Nosorrie-Grove, county of
44 miles (N.W. by N.) fram Nos
179 inhabitants. The is a recto




y in lmd June 11&. RS [
BRAMWITH (KIRK), n parish in the upper.
of the wapentake of OscoLbcross, West ridi

d of Wicmore, munty of Hnman, and
3‘1 inhabitants, of which nm:_nber 101 are

county of Youxk, 4} miles (W, by 8.) f
taining 252 inhabitants, The living
arch and diocese of York, rat
houktneazli 18, t,nnd in the patro

Mary. ,
BRANCASTER, a parish in the
DON, wunty &Nn:mu. 44 mﬂu

dmmafNorwleh mwdinﬁnhug
nndinthepntmmgenftheDukzo!' !
is dedicated to St. Mary. Hu‘emﬂul

Brannodu

, at which an eminent con
Count, or -

of the Saxon shore, p

_of Dalmatian cavalry, for the

wof the outer
m the church is Cornwall Knoll,
vestiges of a camp anciently
- rbumm now overgrown with
for horned cattle, sheep, &c., are held
Amn Sth. A school is endowed with
by the Hon. Edward Harley, in 1720.
mparlahh the southern division of
| Tormonsrow, county of Srarronp, 2
~from Uttoxeter,

against the Saxon invaders, The
cupied about eight acres of ground, n
from the where numerous
other relics have been found. A ca




""""u‘“"v—ﬂ«'-'—M"?"1,‘“Wm =

%,.ﬁl m‘ uarries in the parish,

D paﬂnhinf.hehnndmdofhu,

'C .hnlles S.W.
vl m,\: o grhe)ﬁvni‘mﬂnshm
'hthenmhdmom'yofSnﬂb}k,mddhl:Haof
- ...' the

nWillimField,Elq The church is

[STONE, apmhlnthehmdnddm
nty of Non.!'ol.x 9* miles (E.S:E.} m

tory, in the arch
“the.king's books at £7.12, 84, and

in the paﬁlh:of-Eomé-
f Coaurrpane ward, county
ND, BQ miles (8. 8. B.) from Wooler,

' Mammmhmhu.
; of Surrorx, 40 miles (N.W.)
i London, contain-

king's books at £8. 18, 4., and

.;' L - .
bequeathed, in 1664, by Joanna, w

~ for keeping the school-room in ré
'ofl.vitrwlic ‘and lulphm-'

Bravinium of the Romns
by Ostorius Scapula
which he obtained
Duke of Hamilton
from this place.

BRANDON, a joint hamlet with m
part of the parish of Worston which is in
_division of the hundred of Kwigurrow,
Wanwiox, 6 miles (E.8.E.) from Covenw,
with Bretsford, 351 inhabitants,

BRANDON (LITTLE), a parish in the b
Fonrenog, county of Nonrouk, 5 miles (N.N. ¥

ining 236 inhabitants, T
rectory, in the archdeaconry of
mddmme of Norwich, rated in the king's
£8. 3. 9., and in the patronage of F. R. Reynold
The church is dedicated to All Saints.

BRANDSBURTON, a parish in the horthorn di-

vision of the wapentake of HoLprrnEss,
of the county of Yonx, comprisi
Brandsburton and Moor-Town, an
habitants, of which number, 562 mhit‘lsa
of Brandsburton, 84 miles (N 1) from Be
living is a rectory, in the nruhdeaeonry
riding, and diocese of York, rated in

at £24. 13. 4., and in the patronage of

Fellows of St. John's College, Cambridge, ' m £

dedicated to St. Mary, is principally in the
English architecture. There is a place Of ‘

: Wuluyml&ethodtm This is a




s inthepaﬂzhuf

ohinﬂyinﬂut aﬁ:
s of PErRsnoRe, county uf WoncesTER,
{Tarw)ﬁumem 264 in-
‘The «chapel is dedicated to St. John the

,nd-pelryinthepmshmdhun-

Yot , New Forest (West) division
ggfﬁoumumn,ﬂmﬂu(ux.byn)

arch, with which the is re-

' Jiﬁngillperpemllmh;theuch
i i - of Winchester, and in the patron-
j Vm:haf(mﬁstc:fm m%wgy?
23, at the expense of £2800, defra e

: Wmmﬂm it is a neat edifice, inv.
| M l&ﬁlnglishnzehmeture,mtham
1' , mfmhnndmlmdnhty-wo
‘ Ny a

-w
_fmwnmlnthnpmd the parish of
REN is in the northern division
hundred of OrrLow, county of Starrorp, 2 miles
by | erupmhm containing 412
\ fun esish in the hundred of Fasz.ao,
TER, 8 miles (N, E, by N.) from Mel-
z 262 inhabitants. The living
onry of Leicester, and dio-
ﬂngu»hokutms.m 5.,

lower division

-mill, and two corn-mills,
RANTINGHAM, a parish

ship of Thorpe-Brantingham, in the Hiu
division of the wapentake of HarTaiLl,
pelry ofsEllerker in the wapentake of Hown
East riding of the county of York, and cont:
inhabitants, of which number, 174 are in the
of Thorpe-Brantingham, l}mla(s.x. y E.) frox
Cave. The living is a | ;

ction of the umrtofﬂw sl
in the king's books at £12. 9. 2., and in the |
of the Dean dehapterofDnﬂ:am.




-Amhbwhup of Canterbury, rated in

hooks at £22. 6. 8. The church s dedi-

5t. Martin, The parish iz divided into Bras-

and Brasted-Weald, and connected with it

lled Brasted-Ville, not dependent on any

wing a high constable of its own. The

‘and Darent flow through the parish. A
annually on Holy Thursday.

TLEBY, a parish in the wapentake of Law-

Lanoszy, county of Lancowx, miles

w.) Lincoln, containing 157 ts.

ug is & discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry

amd diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's

1;10.. and in the patronage of the Master

Balliol College, Oxford. The church,

thbert, has been rebuilt, but part of

tmi]el N. I2.) from

containing 1228 inhabitant

gurvey called Brachnga,‘ﬂﬁ _

frogn the streams u.nd 5

anciently a town of

demesne of the Saxon kings: by

supposed to have been n Roman stad
mains of a camp be disting

is pleasantly si the small river Qul
confinenceswith the § , and mnazhﬂ:lu y
former greatmess. The market, which wa
the reign of Stephen, has beep disconw;
is held on Whit-Monday and the f

living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Lmﬁon rated in the -.---'-
£19. 13. 4., and in th of E. Hu
and others. ‘The ch 1o St, 3

‘handsome and spacious. edtﬁce, with a squ
zlfed tower, surmounted by a spire : on the

the chancel is a building, formerly
chapel of the Brograve family, now Jﬁdﬂ%:
school-room and & vestry-room. There is a
has o small

worship for Independents, The
endowment ; and -« National school ? _
supported by sul on.  Mr. Jennings e
chargeofﬁﬁ.l.‘ll; of which twentysblgmga

charitable uses; he also gave a mt‘hge, M
containing one acre, for the residence dmﬁuﬁme,
on cundition that they should take cape

in order that the fruit should be dist)

among the poor, by the lter and

Near the chiurchyard is an «




,'n&mj'

+—on the death:

to appear at the

a t, wherchy
w?:nawnl of her appearance every
Dr. Edward Reynolds, Bishop of Norwich,
po!emical writer, was curate of this pamh

'_ UNBTON a_parish in the auke of Oaxmam,

pof R _l;'rl-um, 24 miles (8. w.) from Oakham,

423 inhabitants.” The living is a perpetual cu-

hthe vicarage of Hambleton, in the arch-

pton, and diocese of Peterborough.

icated to All Saints. . There is a small

it !or the instruction of twenty children, given
;in 1614,

hm 'a chapelry in the parish of Gren-

of SparkeNuOE, connty of Leicesren,

(8. Lby W.) from Leicester, containing 214
chn:pel is, dedicated to St. John the

L-FRITH, a liberty in the parish of
ndred of SPanxenmor, county of Lei-
(w. l.'ﬂ;} from Leicester, containing

lptriahh the hundred of Braun-
,‘6{ (W.N.W.) from Barn-
ts, The living is a

i jurisdiction and patronage

r, rated in the king's books at
h is dedicated to St. Brannock,
8 s %o derive its name.

" dents. A free

BRAXTED (GREAT), a pamh in tha
Wrrnam, county of Essex, 2 miles (v
Witham, 508 inhabitants. 'I'he livin
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Colchester, and d ;
of London, rated in the king's books at £19, and
in the patronage of the Master and Fellows of Corpus
Christi College, Cambridge. The church, ﬁediuted o
All Saints, has some Norman remains. m pha
of worship for Independents. A priory o 7
nons, in honour of St. Nicholas, was fo&nded at Tip-.
tree, in this , in the time of Edward I, whieb,lﬂ'
the time of its dissolution, had a revenue of £22.6. 4.

BRAXTED (LITTLE), a parish in the hundred
Wrraam, county of Essex, 1 mile (E.) from ham
containing 117 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Colchester, and dlwﬁt
of London, rated in the king’s books av 53 6.8, and
in the patro of Francis *h
dedicated to St. Nicholas, is an ancient ediﬂf.ﬂ;ﬂiﬂgi
circular chancel.

BRAY, a parish in the hundred of Baay, county
of Berxs, comprising the divisions of Bray, m" A
Water-Oukley, and a part of the town of Mai '
and containing 3159 inhabitants, of which number, 961
are in the division of Bray, 1} mlhst.), from ﬂlt-*"
denhead. “The living is a vicarage, in
of Berks, and diocese of Salish l\iedinﬂi!_
books at £25. 4. 4., and in the
Bishop of Oxford." The church
chael, is a spacious ediﬁea, with smnﬂ
side. Bnym,bysome.eonlidmdw :
the Roman station Bibracte, A

n default uf male heirs,




8} alles (AR fx;lm
containing 379 inhabitants, The
in*the archdeaconry of Northampton,

h, rated in the king's hooks
. and in the p of Luke Young,

q.  The churell is dedicated to All Saints, There
“place of worship for Particular Baptists. A small
for the instruction of poor children arises
1 e thbbequm of £50 each, one by John Mapletoft,

o Rn lﬂﬂ, and the other by Samuel Hawes, in 1722.

raybrook gives the title of baron to the family of

ﬁ‘

w YDON, a hamlet in the parish of Purron, hun-
dred af IGEWORTH, CRICKLADE, and STAPLE, county
of Wirts, 45 miles (8.8.W.) from Cricklade, containing
“aﬁb",!ﬁhabim :

- BRAYFIELD (COLD), a parish in the hundred of
i , county of Buckinguam, 2§ miles (E. by N.)

om Olney confmning&ﬂmhnbltanu The living is 4

of chkthiggnm nngft]!:;w f

f il ocese 0O

- mﬂh dedicated to St,

YTOFT, a parish in thevz';alﬂdiwaiuuof the
if CANDLESHOE, parts 1NDSEY, county

“miles (E. by 8.) frﬂmﬁpﬂ!w,mnﬂhhgh

YTON, a omtwmhq)with.upw-h,inthe
Agumi Arverbare ward below Darwent,
nm.omnu(unn)&om(}ockm
population is returned with-

family of Dethick.

Eatonmmnlmdraﬂnypuu
Hieron, a nonconformist divine ¢ §i

brity, was incumbent of this pcriihﬁ'am Iﬂqﬁ
A school-room was on the waste, in 1
the expense of Sir Haqmramime__"ﬂi
rishioners ; it is
aﬁlmgfromabequestof &'ioobythalhv phin
ton, in 1745, for which seventeen scholars al m 1
mdmg Here was anciently a house of friare hermits,
afterwards converted into a small priory of
the Augustine order, the entire revenue of w chfw-ﬂie
dissolution, was mot more than £13.0. 8. : it is sup-
posed to have been founded by some ﬁanberofthe

BREAGE, a parish in the hun of KHM;R. o
county of CornNwaLy, 8 miles (W, by N.) from Helston,
containing 3668 inhabitants. The livmg is a rectory, -
with the perpetual curaciés of Cury, Germoe, and Gun-
walloe annexed, in the archdenconry of Cornwall, and
diocese of Exeter, rttadinthekingsbqohat 3&, d
and in the patronage of the Crown. - The parish, -
is con to the English chammel, contains: u.bule
Brated tin mine, called Wheal-Vor. There is & small
endowment, arising from various benefactions, fo th
support of parochial schools. On Tragon&l

of a circular encampment, o LW

BREAMORE, a parish and liberty in the Ne WH
(West) division of the county of SovrmAmerox, 5
miles (N.N.E.) from Fordingbridge, containing 549 fn-
habitants. The living is a donative, in the patrc
of ‘the Duke of Manchester, The church is dedis
St. Mary. The river Avon is navigable on"
side of this parish. Apnowofmnckmmﬂm
to St. Michael, was founded by Baldwin de Redveriis
and his uncle , about the end of ﬁ
Hwyl.;attheﬁmeofitsmppnﬁﬁh -

ment consisted of a prior and nine
umm‘immudtomoo 5 1/ e




in the parish ulqs;wm,
hundred e! Kot‘um and Lircmuncsm, county of
mq}mﬂu (n.s.a.) ﬁ.'umDatby, containing 579
inhabitagts. The curacy, annexed
to thﬂ. of RH'& in

peculiar jurisdiction of the
in the Clthednl Church of
mdqwed with £200 private benefaction,
ﬁ‘i!m royal bounty, and asltm purliamentary grant.
The chapel is dodleated(o S
BRECCLES (LITTLE), a linmlet in the parish and
hundred of Sarorrawm, county of Norrorx. The po-
pulation is returned with the parish. This was enci-
ently a distinct parish, the living of which was a rec-
tory, but it was finally annexed to Shropham before
1382. The church has long been demolished.
BRECKENBROUGH, & joint township with News-
ham, m that part of the parish of Kirsy-Wisk which
is in the wapentake of Birpronts, North riding of the
cmmyonon,imilel (w.) from Thirsk. The popu-
lation is with Newsham.
B S, a parish in the hundred of Wayranb,
county of Nonmnx, 5 miles (8. B, by 8.) from Watton,
140 inhabitants. The living is & discharged
_viearage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Norwich,
“rated in the king's books at £7. 17, 11., endowed with
£1000 royal bounty, and in the pah-onage of Sir R.
Gardner, Bart. The church, dedicated to St, Mar.
gavet, has a tower circular at the base and octangular

. mDBURY,: township in the parish of Srocx-
voxr, hundred of MaccLeseieLp, county palatine of
 Capster, 24 miles (N.E.hyk.} from Stockport, con-
taining 2010 inhabitants. The Peak Forest canal passes
in the vicinity.
?RBDE. 4 parish in the hundred of GosTrow, rape
of Hmewntyof Sussex, 6 miles (E.N. E.) from
Battle, containing 902 inhabitants, The living is a

m in the archdeaconry of Lewes, and diocese of

_ qurl;inthe s books at £12, 10. 5.,

and in the of Mr. Mund&thnl:a:rhm
il]ﬁlllﬁplllyln @

. M The parish is bounded on the

Brede channel, over which there is a bridge.
cub-hw.

church, dedicated to 8t, John the Baptist, n part

Nao architecture, and, prior to the dissoluti
3 llege attached to jt. There is a |

wurshnp for Wesleyan Methodists.  Eight

n are
instructed in reading by a schoolmistress, fori&‘pu

annum, arising from an investment in land of GLOO
given by William Thatcher, in 1718,

BREDHURST, a parish in the hundred of Ltnoms.
lathe of AvLesrorp, county of Kunr, 44 miles (8,5.5.)
from Chatham, containing 134 inhabitants. The living
is a perpetual curacy, in the peculiar jurisdiction of the
Archbishop of Canterbury, and in the patr of the
Rector of Hollingbourn. The church, dedicated to St,
Peter, consists only of one aisle and a chancel, with &
tower, surmotinted by a low spire : a small ru.tnm cha-
pel, formerly the burial-place of the family of Kemsley,
adjoins it. The ancient. village is said to have stood
a short distance off, near a wood, where there are
several wells visible.

BREDICOT, a parish in the lawer division of the
hundred of OswaLpsiow, county of Worcrster, 33
miles (E,) from Worcester, containing 37 inhabitants.
The living is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry

and diocese of Worcester, rated in the king's hooks
at £8. 18. 14, and in the patro of the Dean and
Chapter of Worcester. The church is dedicated to St.

James.
BREDON, a parish comprising the chapelry of
Norton,andthehunlets of Bredon, Hnrdmckwith
Mittons, Kinsham, and Westmancote in the middle
dwmon,mdt.hechapelryofCu&sdunintheuppq
division, of the hundred of OswarLpsiLow, county of
WorcesTER, and containing 1239 inhabitants, 3§ miles
(N. E. by N.) from Tewkesbury. The living is a rectory,
in the jmwgﬁd&e&m nteq,in;lp
king's books at £72. 11 in the '
Rev. John Keysall. The church, dedicat g:}Gﬁ
has some specimens gf Norman srchil.echnn,
tains, among other monuments, one to the 3
Dr. Prideaux, who was dismissed from the




BRE

“of St. Petu;, which, prev
annexed to the binhapdd;d'
this. the ruins of nahppd.

- ARDINE, a parish in the h
'rui, emty of Herrrorp, 114 miles (w N.W.} from
Hereford, containing 379 inhabitants.  The living is a

' vicarage, in the. archdeaconry and diocese of
Hereford, rated in the king's books at £7. 8. 14., and in
the of the Rev.W.T. The church
is dedicated to St. Andrew. On the banks ef the Wye,
about two miles abavehlm are the ruins of.Bred-
wardine castle,

BREDY (LITTLE), a chapelry in that part of
the parish of Loxe Brepy which is in the hundred
of Usescomnr, Dorchester division of the county of
Donrser, 63 miles (W. by 8.) from Dorchester, con-
taining 126 inhabitants. The chapel is dedicated to St.
Michael. Ter® is a large quarry, from which the stone
for erecting Winterborne abbey was obtained, The river
Bride, or Brede, has its source in a small lake here,
called Bride Head, near which is a Druidical circle of
stones. A Sunday school is supported by Robert Wil-
liams, Esq., at whose expense the chilgren are also

BREDY (LONG), a parish in the hundred of Eg-
GERTON, ,Bridport division of the county of Dorser,
8 miles (W.) from Dorchester, contaimng 291 inha-
bitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
| of and dioeese of Bristol, rated in the king's
books at £19. 12. 1., and in the patronage of R. Wil-
um"Bap Esq, The church is dedicated to St. John the
tist.
| BREEDON, a purish in the western divigion of the
| hundred of Goscore, county of LricesTer, 5{» miles
(N.E. by N,) from Ashby de la Zouch, comprising the
chapelries of Worthington and Staunton-Harrold, the
hamlets of Tongue and Willson, and the liberty of New-
hold, and containing 2630 inhabitants, The living is
& discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Leices-
ter, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
£6. 2. 8., endowed with £600 royal bounty, and £ 1000
parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of the Earl
‘of Stamford and Warrington. The church, dedicated to

e ——

Stllnrymd St. Hardulph, stands on the summit of
mw limestone rock, at the foot of which lies the
village, where are considerable lime-works. There is a
vmhi meuleyanMethodistn. Breedon is

ToN, hundred of SALFORD, MMndm
un,%mles (E. by N.) from Great Bolton,

963 inhabitants. In 1729, William Hulton gave

for the erection of a school-house, which was built in
1750+ it is endowed with £10 per annum, being the
interest of £200 given by William Baguley, in 1725,

and £ 10 per annum arising from and land
by an unknown benefactor, for which twenty-
nine children are taught reading.

BREIGHTON, a township in the parish of va,
Holme-Beacon division of the wapentake of HantaiL,
East riding of the county of York, 5% miles (N, W.
by N.) from Howden, mnmini:;gk 179 inhabitants. The
village lies on the eastern b of the river Derwent,
opposite to the ferry of Menthorpe,

BREINTON, a parish in the hundred of G-nnu-
wontn, county of Hemrevorp, 24 miles (W.) from
Hereford, containing 259 inhabitants. The living is a
vicarage, in the peculiar jurisdiction and patronage of
the Dean of Hereford, rated in the king's books at
£1.10. The church is dedicated to St. Michael. The
school has a small endowment,

BREMHILL, a parish in the hmdmdnme

HAM, county of Wn.'rs, 4} miles (E.) from Chippenham,

contaming, with the chapelry of Foxham, 1443 inha-

‘Wilts, and diocese of Salisbury, rated in the king's’ '

at £15. 15, and in the patronage of the Bishop of Salis- Wl

bury. The church, dedicated to St.Martin, is a vener-

able and interesting edifice, with n massive square tower,

adorned with battlements and pinnacles : between the

aisle and the chancel is a handsome and entire rood-

loft, beauntifully carved; the chancel contains several |

monuments, and in the churchyard are numerous epi- |

taphs written by the present vicar, the Rev, Mr. Bowles, i

the poet, who, in 1827, published an historical descrip-

tion of this parish. He has also partially altered and
hellished the
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dial, on the sides of which are monitory inscriptions
in Latin, which have been translated into English verse
kyﬂn-!;lvht. ﬂmofﬁn& church are the ivy-mmt:;d
remains of a portion e tenements belonging to the

-of the abbotof Malmesbury. The meizgt man-

sion of the H here has been converted into a
farm-house. |
BREMILHAM, a parish in the hundred of MaLmzs-

nuRry, county of Wivrs; 2 miles (W. by 8.) from Malmes-
bury, containing 25 inhabitants. The living is a dis-
charged rectory, in the arch of Wilts, and dio-
cese of Salishury, rated in the king's books at £4. 1. 8,,
endowed with £200 royal bounty, and in the patronage
of Lady Northwich. s
BRENCHLEY, a parish in the hundred of Brexcu-
vey and HorsemonpEn, lathe of AviLesrorp, county

of KEnT, miles (N.) from Lamberhurst, containing
2264 i nts. The living is a vicarage, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Rochester, rated in the king's

books at £12. 18. 9., and in the patronage of G. Court-
hape, Esq. The church, dedicated to All Saints, is an
ancient ¢ruciform structure, built chiefly of sand-stone,
with a lofty tower. There is a place of worship for Par-
ticular Baptists. A rent-charge of £3 was given by
John Porter, in 1763, for which five poor children are
taught by a schoolmistress, .
- BRENDON, a parish in the hundred of SaerwiLy,
of Devox, 154 miles (E;) from Ilifracombe, con-
. taining 275 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Barnstaple, and diocese
of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £9. 4., and in
the of Sir A. Chichester, Bart. The church
is dedicated to St. Brendon.

BRENKLEY, a township in the parish of PonTe-
LAND, western division of CasrLe ward, county of
NORTHUMBERLAND, 74 miles (N, by W.) from New-
castle upon Tyne, containing 87 inhabitants,

w, a parish in the hundred of Brext
with N, county of Somurser, 4§ rmiles (W.

_ 820 inhabitants. The

from Axbridge, containing 520
is.a ge,

1)

%

ground to the south retains

robably from ““w
Cornua ammonis and other fossils have ﬁm~m
found. Herc wus aunciently a cell to the abbey of
Glastonbury. - b=’

BRENT (SOUTH), a parish (formerly a market
town) in the hundred of StaxsoRrouGH, county of Dx-
voN, 74 miles (8. W. by 8.) from Ashburton, contain-
ing 1401 inhabitants. The living is a vi , in the
archdeaconzy of Totness, and diocese of Txeter, rated in
the king's books at £20. 14. 41, and in the pa
of the Rev. George Baker. The church is dedicated to
St. Patrick. There is a place of worship for Wesleyan
Methodists, The manor anciently belonged to the abbot
of Buckfastleigh, who possessed the power of inflicting
punishment for capital crimes. The river Avon pursues
its course for six miles through the parish: there were
formerly tin-works on Brent moor, But they have
ceased operation. The market was held on Friday, but
it has fallen into disuse : there are fairs for cattle on
the last Tuesday in April and September, A court leet
and a court baron are held for the manor. About fifty
poor children are taught reading, for an annual sum
of £13, 4., arising from land given by John Wilcocks,
and subsequently by Thomas Acland, in 1783.

BRENT (SOUTH), a parish in the hundred of
Brunt with WrineToN, county of SomMERrsET, 6 miles
(8. w.! by w.) from Axbridge, containing 764 inhabit-
ants. The living is a vicarage, in the arch of
Wells, and diocese of Bath and Wells, rated in the
king's books at £25. 17. 84., and in the patronage of
the Archdeacon of Wells. The church is dedicated to
St. Michael. There is & place of worship for Wesleyan
Methodists. © A fair for cattle was formerly held on Old
Michaelmas-day.

BRENT-ELEIGH, or ELY, a parish (formerly a
market town) in the hundred of Basercs, county of
SurroLk, 14 mile (E. by 8.) from Lavenham, containing
208 inhabitants, The living is a vi , in the arch-
deaconry of Sudbury, and diocese of Norwich, rated
in the king's books at £8, and in the pa of
Robert Frost, Esq. The church is dedicated to St.
Mary: at the end of the chancel an npartment was
built by Dr. Colman, Fellow of Trinity College, Cam-
bridge, in which he placed a collection of books
for a parochial library. Edward Colman, Esq., 4 mem-
ber of the same family, assigned, in 1730, an almshouse
compri twelve apartments, with a small endowm
for six widowers and six widows. Henry IIL
permission to hold a market here, but it has long been
discontinued. ¥

BRENTFORD, a market town comprising Ol
Brentford, in the parish of Eaving, Kensington i
of the hundred of OssvnsTong, and New B Cin
parish of Hanwery, hundred of EvtanonNe, ﬁ
of MippLesex, 7 miles (W. by 8.) from Hg’dﬂ-_ :
Corner, on the ~western road. New Brentford
contains 2036 inhabitants, and the population of Old
Brentford is returned with Ealing. This place, anciently
called Brainforde, takes its name from an ancient ford
on the small river Brent. In 1016, Edmund

]
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of Henry V1, an hospital, for a master and seéveral bre-
thren, of the Nine Orders of Angbh, in a

chapel beyond the bridge, at the western end of the
“town, mciontly known as West Brainford : the revenue

tohavcbeeniio,mdthentam""' d to
ward, Duke of Somerset, in the 1st of Edward V1.
In 1558, six Protestants were here buiﬂ-n”thamh,

on account of their religious tenets. ﬁepulflmm-

tary war during the reign of Charles  place was
theaceneofahatﬁebetwemtheml" parties ;
the royalists, h vietorious, were o to retire
from the field, by the sudden arrival of a strong rein-

forcement to the enemy from London. For his services
in this battle, whichzookp!meunthe l!th of No

peer, by the title of Earl of
Brentford, which title was subsequently conferred, by
William 1I1., upon Mareschal Schomberg, who accom-
panied him to England at the Revolution. Several
skirmishes also took place, in 1647, between the royal
guards stationed here and the parliamentary troops
quartered at Hounslow. The town consists principally
of one street, upwards of a mile in Tength, partly paved,
and lighted with gas under an act of parliament ob-
tained in 1825 The river Thames, on which are seve-
ral wharfs, tes it from Kew Gardens on the south ;
and over this river, at the castern extremity of the
town, is a handsome stone bridge leading to Kew : the
Brent, uniting the Grand Junction canal with the
Thames, crosses it on the north, and over this is a neat
stone bridge, erected by the county in 1825, rep
one of t antiguity, which was at one time
by a toll levied chlshpanengeuexclnlirely In
Old Brentford is & large malt-distillery, an extensive
brewery, and a soap-manufactory, which afford employ-
ment to many of the labouring poor; but the chief
trade of the town is derived from its its sitaation on the
great western road, and from the union of the Grand
Jmctlunmdwith the Thames. The market is on
ﬁllmm held on May 17th, 18th, and
lDt.h, f{r cattle, and September 12th, 13th, and uth
for toys and pedlary.
" The town is within the jurisdiction of the county
magistrates, who hold a petty session for the division
every alternate week : the township of New Brentford
is within the manor of Boston, but counsists only of cus-
tomary frecholds, Acourtofrequmfm&ammy
mdnhhmdm‘w: , the jurisdiction of which extends over
"hltndrcﬂsuflﬂthme and orne, is held here
; the summer half year, and during the winter at
dge. parliamentary elections for the county
place at New Brentford, it being the county town.
ving of New Brentford is a curacy, in
_ L 'y of Middlesex, and diocese of Lon-
) wﬂimﬁmm GQ?:_

vem-

£100, producing £5. 14, per annum. - | human
skeletons have at various times been dug up in the
neighbourhood. ¥, ‘eronpeiy g A e
RENTINGBY, = y in the .
of Tuorve-ArNoLp, and partly in the parish of Wy-
roroey, hundred of LAND, county of LeiczsTER,
24 miles (E. by 8.) from Melton-Mowbray. The popu-
lation is returned with Wyfordby. The chapel is de-
pendent on the church of Thorpe-Arnold. 'l’hal[dton
Mowbray and Oakham canal crosses the chapelry.
BRENTOR, a parish in the hundred of 'l‘numol.,
emtyofDuvou,drmﬂu(N) from Tavistock, contain-
ing 151 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy,
in the archdeaconry of Totness, and diocese ofE:eter
endowed with £1000royalbcmnty, and in the
of the Duke of Bedford. The church, dedicated to St.
Michael, occupies the summit of a lofty isolated rocky
eminence, and serves as a land-mark for vessels en-
tering Plymouth harbour. The small river Lid runs
through this parish, in which there is also a fine sheet
of water, called Stowford lake. Here are mines of

BRENTWOOD, a chapelry (formerly a market town)
in the parish of Sovrs Wrarp, hundred of Caarronro,
county of Essex, 11 miles (B.W] from Chelmsford, and
18 (E.N.E.) from London, on the road to Nomch,m
taining 1423 inhabitants, The name, which is of

& burnt wood ; the woods which pre-

,A"" :

origin, signifies .
viously occupied the site having been burnt down, The

town is pleasantly situated on & commanding eminence,
and mnsim principally of one street, the houses im
which are, in general, ancient and irregularly built: the
inhabitants are supplied with excellent water from wells,
Races take place occasionally on a common near the
town. There are cavalry barracks at Warley, about a
&nd a half distant. The market has been discon=
&afﬁr;.:o:&JulylathudOlibﬂkfm
Courts baron are held

: of the manor of South Weald. m&wz
division take place hm Thwdl
of&eo

-

.§§§E

EE
%a
LH
%




BRE

wﬁwwﬂn‘mhpﬁh&tw
mmumafl per aunum cach to five

~and to the expenso of the school
nlluhnhmuhuplir the school is under
he direction of a , the master, and two guardians.
1 exhibition of £6 per annum to Caius Cam-
-m'hmded Dr. Plume, with preference to
: , and Maldon,

‘in the hundred of

sh partly
l‘mt m in the liberty ‘of Romney-

m ofotMr.wuntyofKnn miles
(N.W. by W.) from Romney, containing 238 inhabitants.
The isavi inthe and diocese
of Canter , rated in the king's books at £7. 18, 114.,
u:d!n-ﬁe of J. D, Brockman, The
church is dedicated to St. Eanswide. Thmmuphce
dwﬂhipﬁ!rWuleyuMethod:m

BREOCK (ST.), a parish in the hundred of Pyper,
county of Comnwarr, 1 mile (W.8.W.) from Wade-
, containing 1225 inhabitants. The living is a
, in the peeuliar jurisdiction of the Bishop of
Exeter, rated in the s hooks at £41. 10. 10., and
in the patronage of Sir 'W. Molesworth, Bart. The
river Camel flows on the northern and eastern sides of
the parish, and is navigable as far as Wadebridge, where
there is a fine bridge of sixteen arches over it, and a
canal has been projected to extend the navigation to
Bodmin, There is a cromlech on the summit of an
eminence in this parish, which commands an extensive
view of the coast.

BREREHURST, a hamlet in the parish of Woz-
STANTON, northern division of the hundred of PirzriLy,
county of STa¥rorp, containing 714 inhabitants.

'BRERETON with § CK, a parish in the
hmdred of Norruwrcs, county palatine of CresTER,

98 miles _(N-%lbr (AT A iy B¢ ke

o5
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BRETFORTON, a in the upper division of
the hundred of Bracs wonst, county of Wonces
ﬁmliiles(ki)‘ﬁ-uml:m comahh:gtslm

. LR

, in the peculiar
diction of the Bishop ofWoropﬂer rated in the
mkzat £6. 5., endowed with £600 prhdebmeﬁcﬁcm

1100 parlhmmtary t, and in the patronage
of the Rey, Dr. Timbrill, gl":: church is dedicated to
St. Leonard,

BRETHERTON, u township in the parish of Cros-
ToxN, hundred of- Lnt.mn, county palatine of Lancas-
TER, 10 miles (NNE)fanrmskh'k containing 748
inhabitants. There is a place of worship for Wesleyan
Methodists, A free school was built, in 1654, at the
expense of Mr, James Fletcher, who endowed it with
£230, to which various donations have since heen
added : the annual income is now about £112, for
which the boys and girls within the townshlp are
taught reading gratuitously.

BRETSH)RD a joint hamlet with Brandon, in
that part of the parlsh of Woursron which is in the
Kirby division of the hundred of KnieurrLow, county
of anmcx, 61 miles (E. by 8,) from Coventry. The

is returned with Brandon.

BRETTENHAM, a parish in the hundred of Saror-
HAM, county of Nonmr.l, 4 miles (EXby 8,) from
Thetford, containing 50 inkabitants. The living is a
disc rectory, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk,
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£5, 12, 6,, and in the patronage of the Bishop of Ely.
The church, dedicated to St. Mary, was; with the

-house, burnt down in 1693, but the nave of

the er was rebuilt soon after,
BRETTENHAM, a parish in the hundred of Cos-.
rorp, county of SurroLk, 3§ miles (N.N.W.) from Bil-

deston, containing 280 inhabitants. The living is &
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Sudbury, and diocese of
Norwich, rated in the king's books at £11. 3, 114., and
in the patronage of the Crown. The church is icated
to St. Mary. This was probably the site of the Roman
station Combretonium; though some have endeavoured
to fix it at Brettenham in Norfolk, where some Roman
coins have been found.

BRETTON (MONK), o chapelry in the parish of
Roysrox, of Sraincross, West riding of
the county of York, 2 miles (N. E) from Bm'neaky

containing 916 inhabitants. A Cluniac monastery, de
dicated to St. Mary was founded at tha

Magdalene,
commencement of the reign of Henry IL, the
of which, in the 26th of Henry VIIL, amounted
£323. 8. 2.

8

An almshouse, com six tenements,
pﬂmum i

; mﬁenh
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The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeacoory some edifice, in the later style of English architectare,
of vall, and diocese of Exeter, « in the ‘s with a fine spir g
books %,m in the Jﬂ.‘;m mu'}.i of h:hmw;n{ wm sittings, m&mm“%

ing 989 inhabitants, of which nmumber 389 are in North
Brewham, (E.N.E), and 600 in South Brewham,
3} miles (E. by N.), from Bruton. The living is a per

petual , in the archdeaconry of Wells, mddmceue
of Bath and Wcll.l endowed with £400 royal bounty,

and £1200 parlismentary t, and in the
of Sir R. C, Hoare, Bart. 'ﬁl.:church, dedicated to St.
. John the has heen by the addition of

one hundred and ninety-eight sittings, one hundred and
forty of which are ﬁ;ﬁ,md towards defraying the ex-
pense the Incorpora for the enlargement of
churches and chapels gnnwd £130. In the churchyard
is the shaft of an old cross. The parish takes its name
from the river Brew, which rises here. A chapel for-
merly stood at North Brewham, the remains of which
have been comverted into a barn.

BREWHAM-LODGE, an extra-parochial liberty, in
the bundred of Nortox -Fernis, county of SoMERsSET,
5 miles (E. by N.) from Bruton. It consists only of one
estate, comprising nearly eight hundred acres, and ac-

its extra-parochial privﬂef from having been

one of King John's hunting memory of whom,
awoodmtheﬁdnltymthcnm?‘fgxungswod
it is now the by purchase, of eminent
antiquary, &r{m Bart. The river Brew has
m-mceatthedhtmoeoflbouthalfamﬂe. A
tower, called Alfred’s tower, was erected by Henry Hoare,
Eq. in commemoration of a victory obtained here by
over the Danes : it is a trlnngulnr brick

buﬂ one hundred and fifty-five feet in height,
surmounted at each angle by a turret, one of which
is surrounded by a gallery : over the entrance is an
inscription recording the good qualities and noble ex-
ploits of that renownhed monarch. About balf a mile
toward the north-east there is a small oval encamp-
ment, called Jack's Castle, which is thonght to be of
Danigh construction : human bones, ' heads, and
ums containing the ashes of burnt , have been
m in the neighbourhood, which was the scene of

conflicts between the Saxons and the Danes.

- BREWHOUSE-YARD, an extra-parochial liberty,
in the southern division of the wlpentlke of Brox-
Tow, county of NorriNGuasm, containing 90 i:nlmbitp
ants.

STAFFPORD, com-

BREWOOD, swhhhﬁsmsrmdhﬂnndﬁe

of several of houses and well sup-
plied with water from springs, e market, formerly
held on Friday, has been and the ancient
market-house pulled down, butter and eggs are

still exposed for sale, on that day, on its site : a fair for
live stock is held on the 19th of September. A branch
of the Peak Forest canal communicates with this place,
and an act has been lately obtained for constructing a
new canal. Here is a small manufactory for stock locks.
Brewood is within the jurisdiction of the court of re-
quests held at Wolverhampton, for the recovery of debts
not exceeding £5. Courts leet and baron are held an-
nually., The free schnolumppoledtohnve
been founded by Dr. Knightley, whose endowment, in-
crmedbysubneqmtbentfncmu,nowpmdumnbout
£412 per annum. Dr. Hurd, Bishop of Worcester, who,
with other distinguished persons, was educated here, ap-
propriated, in the year 1800, two houses for the benefit
of the school, one of which was for the usher ; at this
period also the trust was renewed, and new
were adopted by the trustees and visitors. In 1527, it
received a bequest of £1000 four per cents,, pursuant
to the will of R. Hurd, Esq., of Worcester, one-half for
augmenting the master's stipend, and the remainder for
It is free for the reception of children unli-
mitedly : the system of education is strictly classical,
but there is an English free school in connexion with
it ; and a National school is supported by s
A bank for savings has been established. A small Bes
nedictine nunnery, dedicated to the Blessed Vi
Mary, is first noticed in the time of Richard I.; "%
dissolution its clear revenue was only rated at £ 11.
Chillington Hall, a noble mansion in this parish, is ap-
hed by a fine avenue of trees, nearly two -lllihi
E::iu u direct line : there are two Roman
clupell on the estate, one at Birch, and the other at
Black-Ladies, In the neighbourhood are two mineral
&p , now disused, »
VELL'S (S'l‘),aparuhinthnhmﬁnduf&
BriaveLL's, county of GLOUCESTER, 8 miles (w.byl.) '
ifrmm Blukeney, containing 1112 inhabitants. The living -
sa
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been disused, and ‘exemptedthiem fron the payment of having been held here in 1658+ the gallows stood mq‘
toll throughout the kingdom: they still enjoy the heath, about half a mile distant. The market has been
of cutting wood in the ufnun,whightheyr{f-}'g &imﬁnued.but:&irhhaldmchI%ofOcﬂ&..'

into hoops and other articles, and send to Bristol,
There are several coal-works in the vicinity ; and a court
is held fm; ‘regulating matters in dispute among the

- BRICETT (GREAT), a parish in the hundred of
Bosmenre and Craypox, of SurroLk, 3} miles
(E.N. E,) from Bildeston, containing 200 inhabitants.
The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of
Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich, and in the patronage of
the Provost and Fellows of King's College, Cambridge.
The church is dedicated to St. Mary and St. Lawrence.
A priory for Augustine canons was founded, about
1110, by Ralph Fitz-Brien, in honour of St. Leonard,
the possessions of which, on the suppression of Alien
priories, were given by Henry VI. to the Provost and
Fellows,

BRICETT (LITTLE), a parish in the hundred of
Bosmere and Craypon, county of SurroLk, 44 miles
(8.8.W.) from Needham-Market, with which the popu-
lation is ‘réturned. The living, @ disch rectory,
has been united to the rectory of Offton since 1503,
when the church fell into decay : it is endowed with £200
private benefaction, and £200 royal bounty, and is in
the arch of Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich.

BRICKENDON, a liberty in that part of the parish
of Avn Sarnts, HErtrorp, which is in the hundred
of Herrronrp, county of Hernrronp, 3 miles (8. by w.)
from Hertford, containing 647 inhabitants.

BRICKHILL (BOW), a parish in the hundred of
Nuewronr, county of Buckinenam, 2 miles (E) from
Fenny-Stratford, containing 438 inhabitants, The liv-
ing is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Buckinjgham,
and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
£15. 0. 24., and in the patronage of John and T. R.
Ward, Esqrs, The church ig dedicated to All Saints,
Muny of the females in this and the adjoining parish
are employed in lace. Charles Purrett, in
1633, gave a portion of land for the benefit of the
poor, and for teaching and apprenticing poor children;
cight boys are instructed gratuitously, The Roman
Watling-street passes th the parish.

BRICKHILL (GREAT), a parish in the hundred of
Newronrr, county of Buckineuam, 24 miles (S.E. by 8.)
from Fenny-Stratford, containing 558 inhabitants, The

living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Buckingham,

‘and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at

£18, 2. 11,, and in the of P.D.Pauncefort,

Thes e plnces of weesip for Baptiste aad Wesieyon
iere are places of worship ptists es

(LITTLE), a parish in the hundred of
, county of BuckinGmam, 2 miles (E.8.E)
-Stratford, containing 485 inhabitants. m
Rkt crracy, y

royal bounty, an

. meron, liberty of East Mepixa, Isle of Wigh m

Here was fi

county of Devox, 6 miles (5. W.) from

Fine specimens of sulphate of lime have been found in
the vicinity, There is an endowment of £5 per annum,
for which twelve boys are tanght to read.

BRICKLEHAMPTON, a chapelry in the parish of
St. ANpREW, PERSHORE, upper division of the hundred
of Persuone, county of Worcester, 4} miles (8.E.)
from Pershore, containing 156 inhabitants, The curacy,
annexed to the vicarage of St. Andrew, Pershore, is in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Worcester, and rated in
the king's books at £2. 14. 2. The chapel is dedicated
to St. Michael,

BRIDEKIRK, a parish in AuLerpare ward below
Derwent, county of CoMBERLAND, comprising the town-
ships of Bridekirk, Great Broughton, Little Broughton,
Dovenby, Papcastle with Goat, Ribton, and .Tallentire, '
and containing 1694 inhabitants, of which number, 144
are in the township of Bridekirk, 2miles (N, by w.) from
Cockermouth. The living is a discharged vicarage, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Carlisle, rated in the
king's books at £10. 13. 4., endowed with £600 par-
linmentary grant, and in the pa of J.D.B. Dykes,
Esq. The church, dedicated to St. Bridget, from whom
the parish takes its name, is an ancient tﬂiﬁee. prin-
cipally in the Norman style, containing a si
font, which, according to Camden, was brought from
the Roman station at Papeastle: it exhibits in rude
relief various designs symbolical of the serpent and
the forbidden fruit, the expulsion of Adam and Eve
from Paradise, the baptism of Christ, &c.; likewise a
Runic inscription which has been variously interpreted
by different antiquaries, There are quarries of lime-
stone and white freestone within the parish. Sir Jo-
seph Williamson, secretary of state in the reign of
Charles I1.; and Thomas Tickell, the poet and essayist,
born in 1686, were natives of this place, each during
the incumbency of his father,

BRIDE (ST.) WENTLLOOG, a parish in the upper
division of the hundred of WENTLLOOG, county of Mox-
mouTH, 5% miles (8.) from Newport, containing 193
inhabitants, The living is a perpetual curacy, with that
of Coedkernew united, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Llandaf, rated in the king's books at £4. 18, 1},
endowed with £600 ‘royal bounty, and £200 parlia-
mentary grant, and in the of the Bishop of
Llandaff. The'parish is bounded on the east by the
river Usk, and on the south by the Bristol channel.
Here is o lighthouse,

BRIDE'S (ST.) NETHERWENT, a parish in the
lower division of the hundred of Carpicorr, county of
Moxsours, 7 miles (E.8.E.) from Caerleon, containing,
with the hamlet of Llandevenny, liBIi themh.b‘mhmdueolnn;
i is a discharged rectory, in
mvf'l‘gdiooele of Llandaff, rated in the king's books at
£6.16. 3., endowed with £200 royul bounty, and in the

T. Matthews, :
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of the caunty of SouTrAMPTON, 24 miles (E.N.E.) fi

BRIDESTOWE, a parish in the hu



St, Peter, is principally in the Norman style. There is
u place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. The Little
Stour runs through the parish.

BRIDGEHAM, a parish in the hundred of Sunow-
HAM, county of NorvoLk, 2% miles (W. by 8.) from
East Harling, containing 294 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory, in the of Norfolk, and dio-
cese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £11, 1. 04.,
and in the patronage of the Crown. The church is de-
dicated to St, Mary,

BRIDGEMERE, a township in the parish of Wy-
sUNBURY, hundred of Nanrwicn, county palatine of

BRIDGENORTH, a
and market town,

i
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ncnrlydmolilhdtt,md in this state it
reign of John : he afterwards mnﬁmnd

bitants all the pﬁvﬂx;ywd whinh
had enjoyed md-'ﬂ‘; Llnh 1216, %{ns
passed a day in town, on -march to Worcester,
where he was soon nﬁerwdl{lnnni
civil war in the reign of Charles L, Bri
a royal garrison, was, in 1646, attacked by the
mentariang, whose infmlryfowed an entrance on the
south side of St. Leonard's churchyard, that part being
not so well defended as the rest of the town, and a
gharp skirmish ensued. Another party of them broke
through a narrow defile in the rock leading to the north
gate, where many of their men were killed, not only by
the fire of the garrison, but by great stones rolled down
upon them from the summit of the rock. The
having gained an entrance through the churchyard,
opened the gates to the cavalry, and the royalists retir-
ing into the castle, set fire to the town, which was nearly
consumed.  The limnentarians havi de
church of St. Leonard their magazine, royalists
planted cannon on the round tower of the castle, and
ing fire to the church, the flames spread to an ad-
joining college, and entirely consumed it. The castle
was now closely invested, but being strongly fortified
both by nature and art, it sustained a siege of three
weeks without receiving any material injury. The be-
siegers, despairing of success, had begun to undermine
the rock on which it was built, when the garrison,
having exhausted all their ammunition, capitulated on
honourable terms, and retired to Worcester.,

The town is most romantically situated on the hnnkn
of the river Severn, which divides it into two parts,
called the Upper and the Lower Town. The Upper
Town is built on the summit and steep acclivities of
a rock, rising abruptly to the height of one hundred
and eighty feet from the western bank of the river, and
pregents an appearance singularly picturesque. Crown:
ing the summit of the rock, at the southern extremity,
are the small ruins of the square tower of the castle,
declining considerably from the perpendicular line, and
the handsome modern church of St. Mary Magdalene;
and at the northern extremity is the venerable church
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is a handsome stone bridge of six arci:u, leading into
“the Lower Town, the streets in which contain some

wherein Prince Rupert resided, in 1642, when he ad-
dressed a letter to the jury‘empannelled for the choice
of town officers, entreating them ““ to select such men
for their bailiffs ns were well affected to his Majesty's
service,” The town is partially paved, and the inhabit-
ants are supplied with soft water raised by machinery

from the river into the reservoirin the Upper Town,
and ce conyeyed by pipes into their houses ; and
with witer from Oldbury, at the south-

ern extremity of the town, into several public conduits,
The publie library, in St. Leonard's churchyard, a hand-
some brick building lighted by a dome, was
founded by the Rev, Mr, Stackhouse, to whose memory
a marble tablet has been erected over the fire-place :
it has been extended by subscription from a theological
to'a general , and contains more than four thou-
sand volumes, The theatre, a neat und commodious
edifice’ of stone, was erected in 1824, on part of the
site of the ancient moat of the castle, accidentally dis-
; this being from thirty to forty feet deep, it
“became mnecessary to build strong piers, and to turn
urches, to ﬁm a foundation : it is opened every alter-
three months during the winter. The
.m he.ld in July, but they are not so well sup-
, the course having become damaged
- divided by moveable fences, and let out to
' nt tenants the interval.
- Th ) ariuu from the navigation of
facility for the transit of
‘l.hil a thriving inland port :

'i
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* _-'mudm” :m&&duu .

‘\. ::nd .mh' “m dn
edifice in the Grecian style of archi
‘tower, Ww&mv\ {
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officers, The bailiffs, who
are justices of the peace, and the senior of whom acts as
coroner for the borough, are chosen, on the 21st of Sep-
tember, from among the aldermen not having served
that office for three years preceding, by & jury, who are
sworn not to eat or drink till they have made choice
of proper persons; this oath has frequently compelled
them to long abstinence, and, in 1739, subjected them
to fast for seventy-four hours. The aldermen are chosen,
as vacancies occur, either from the common council-men,
or from such of the burgesses as have filled the offices
of chamberlain and bridge-master two years previously,
who are thus qualified to become either common council-
men or aldermen. The recorder, who holds his office
for life, appoints the deputy-recorder, who must be a
barrister ; all other officers are appointed by the bailiffs
and burgesses in common council assembled. The frec-
dom of the borough is inherited by birth ; acquired by
servitude for seven years and a fine of £1; by resi-
dence, paying scot and lot and a fine of £5; and by
purchase, on paying a fine of £10. The corporation
hold a court of petty session every alternate Monday, at
which the bailiffs preside ; and on the same day, a court
of record, for the recovery of debts to any amount, is
held by the bailiffs and deputy-recorder : as lords of the
manor, they also hold courts leet in May and October,
at which the town-clerk presides as their steward.  The
borough received the elective franchise in the 23rd of
Edward I., and from that time has continued to return
two mmbm to parvliament : the right of election is
vested in all the burgeases, whether resident or not ;
the bailiffs are the returning officers. The town-hall
erected about the year 1646, is a spacious bui]dlnﬁ.::
timber frame-work and plaister, supported
and arches of brick, forming a covered area t'or the
use of the market ; whove this is a large room, wherein
the public business of the corporation is transacted,
besides two smaller apartments, in one of which the
several courts are held.
Bridgenorth comprises
Magdalene and St. Leonard, which, with Claverley,
Bobb , Al ; and Quatfard, are within the juris-
diction of the court of the royal peculiar

of
morth, belonging to Thomas Whitmore, %
of St. M ary Mugdalene's is a perpetual curacy i
-wiﬁ:émpﬂuubu&nﬂmndﬁlmlnﬂmmy

grant, and in the patronage of T,

am,mm mthe«h»&

the parishes of St. Mary
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two of lofty pillars of the Lonic order,s nghwug is part of an arch which the
Kmnﬁqammw&s is also a perpetual trance to e:?e-hm ions of the s
curacy, endowed with £600 private tion, £400 which enclosed an area of fourtech acres ; and at the

royal bounty, and £700 parliamentary grant, and in the
pltronngeg'l‘. Whitmore, Esq. The church, formerly
collegiate, was erected in 1448, on the site of a structure

in the reign of Richard I : it was i a
very magnificent and spacious edifice, seven
different chapels, the arches leading into which from

the present nave, and now walled up, are still discernible,
It suffered greatly while in the possession of the parlia-
mentarians, during the civil war, and now consists only
of a nave, one aisle, and a chancel ; the last, parted
from the nave by a screen, is used only as an entrance :
its modern still exhibits vestiges of the ancient
roof of pd oak, and some of the corbels on
which its supporters rested are still remaining on the
“n.lnd . There are places of worship for Baptists and
ts.

The free grammar school, founded in 1503, by the
corporation, in whom the management is vested, is sup-
ported partly by an endowment of £34, and partly by
contributions from the corporation and others, produ-
cing about £160 per annum, which is paid to the mas-
ter: it has three exhibitions to Christ Church College,
Oxford, founded by Mr. Careswell, in 1689, who en-
dowed eighteen in that college, for the benefit of six
free schools of this county; viz., four for that of
Shrewsbury, three for that of Bridgenorth, four for that
of Newport, three for that of Shiffnall, two for that of

and, in 1820, the estate, including property in the funds,
produced an annual income of nearly £1500, subject to
certain deductions. The sums allowed to the exhibi-
tioners, ing to successive decrees of the court,
are £60 to each under- £70 to each under-

a commoner, £21 to each bachelor of
arts, £60 to each bachelor of arts resident, and £27 to
cach master of arts, leaving a considerable surplas at
The Blue-coat charity school,
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the windows, though the lights are stopped
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are still in entire preservition.
mile south of the Lower Town was
for lazars, converted, in the reign of Edward
a priory, and now a private mansion. In _
shrubberies to the north of the house, in 1823,
seven bodies were discovered lying in rows, wi
eighteen inches from the surface, having evidently been
buried in winding sheets and without coffins; th
were in good preservation, the teeth still retaining thei
enamel : some slight vestiges of the church may be

E
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on the eastern bank of the river, is a large mount, with
:idtru‘;ﬁ :yn nrli;du except the west, on which it is -

en a y precipice overhanging v
whefcnobendeMmtgufneryhad: ' lyortig:;’
palace, About half a mile castward lay the ancient
forest of Morfe, which, in Leland's time, was “a hilly
ground, well wooded ; a forest, or chase, having deer,”
und for which a forester and steward were appointed
from the time of Edward 1. to that of Elizabeth, The
brother of King Athelstan is stated to have passed the
life of & hermit here, and a cave in a rock, still called
the Hermitage, is supposed to have been his solitary
abode., On a portion of this tract are five tumuli in
quincunx, under some of which the remains of human
skeletons have been discovered. The sylvan features
of the place have long since disappeared, and the
whole, comprising between five wnd six thousand
acres, was enclosed in 1815. Dr, Thomas Percy, Bi-
shop of Dromore in Ireland, and compiler of “ Re-
lllq::u of Ancient English Poetry,” was born here, in
748,

BRIDGE-RULE, e parish comprising East Rule in
the hundred of Brack TorringTON, county of Devon,
and West Rule in the

of CorNwaLL, miles {W.) from Holsworthy, con-
tnhlng{aehhttinﬁu. The o
vicarage, in the

of Exeter, rated in the ki

with £500

Rev. T. H. Ki



ndowed with £260
terell, Bart. The church is dedicated to St, Andrew,

BRIDGFORD (EAST), a parish in the northern
division of the wapentake of Binguaw, county of Nor-
TINGHAM, 8 miles (E. N. E.) from Nottingham, contain-

768 inhabitants.  The living is a rectory, in the

deaconry of Nottingham, and diocese of York, rated
in the king's books at £19. 8. 61., and in the alternate
of the President and Fellows of Magdalene
College, Oxford, and J. Musters, Esq. The church is
dedicated to St. Mary, There is a place of worship for
Wesleyan Methodists, The village is pleasantly situated
on the eastern bank of the Trent, near the spot where
was anciently a ford, and where there is now a ferry,
Here was the ancient Margidunum of the Romans, nu-
merous relics of which le have been discovered in
the vicinity, particularly gold, silver, and brass coins
of various emperors. At a place called Castle Hill,
on the Fosse-road, which passes through the parish, a
Roman fibula, in preservation, was found in 1528,
There is an abundance of a fine species of gypsum
ha-it;l:tg parish. A charity school is supported by sub-
s
nlaamnp (WEST), a parish partly in the south-
ern division of the wapentake of Blmu, but chiefly
in the northern division of the wapentake of Rusa-
cLi¥ee, county of NorrinGram, 14 mile (8. 8. E.) from
Nof am, containing, with the hamlet of Gampston,
310 itants. The living is a rectory, in the arch-
deaconry of Nottingham, and . diocese of York, rated
in the king’s books at £16. 14. 2., and in the patron-
age of J. C. Musters, Esq. The church is dedicated
to St. Giles. At each of the hamlets of Basingfield
and Gampston is a place called Chapel Yard, the sup-
posed sites of ancient chapels. The Trent forms the
northern boundary of the parish, which is intersected
by the Grantham canal. The Rev. William Thompson,
late rector, endowed a school with £30 per annum, of
which the rector and patron are etual trustees.

- BRIDGHAMPTON, a tything in the parish of Yeo-
virroN, hundred of Somerron, county of SoMERSET,
w (E.N, E.) from Ilchester, containing 105 inha-

u.:

BRIDG-WATER, a port,
h, market town, and

h, having separate ju-
risdiction, l‘:fxlly in the
537 4 northern division of the hun-
¢y~ dred of Petherton, county

> of Somerser, 35 miles (8.
W.) from Bristol, 20 (W.S.
w.) from Wells, and 137
(W, by 8.)%from London,
it 156 inhabitants,

.~
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dour of @ haronial residence, mdobﬁhedw
John the grant of a market and a fair. He founde

the hospital of St. John, for a master, brethren, and
thirteen poor persons of the order of St. A ¢, the
revenue of which, at the dissolution, was £ 120, 19. 13.
He also constructed the haven, and began to erect a
stone bridge of three arches over the river Parret, which
was completed by Sir Thomas Trivet, in the reign of
Edward I. His son William founded a monastery for
Grey friars, abont 1230, and dedicated it to St. Francis.

The barons, during their revolt-against Henry 1I1., took

possession of the town in 1260. In the parliamentary

war, the inhabitants embraced the royal cause, and the

castle was garrisoned by the king's forces. In this cas-

tle, on account of its being strongly fortified, and abun-

dantly supplied with ammunition, the inhabitants of the

surrounding district deposited their money, plate, and

other articles of value, as in a place of security. The

parliamentarians under Fairfax soon afterwards in-

vested the town, and laid close siege to the castle, which
was resolutely defended, till the town having been fired
on both sides of the bridge, the garrison capitulated on
terms of personal indemnity, and surrendered the for-
tress, with all the treasure in it, and one thousand
prisoners, into the hands of the enemy. The castle,
which had sustained considerable damage during this
siege, was demolished in 1645 ; the sally-port and some
detached portions of the walls are all that now remain.
In the reign of James II. the inhabitants favoured the
pretensions of the Duke of Monmouth, who, on his ar-
rival from Taunton, was received with great ceremony
by the corporation, and proclaimed king. He remained
for some time in the town, and having from the tower
of the church reconnoitred the royal army encamped
on Sedgemgor, he rashly resolved to hazard the battlé
that terminated so fatally to his ambition. His adhe-
rents in the town suffered severely for their attachment
to his cause, under the legal severity of Jeffreys, and
the military executions of Kirke. .

The town is pleasantly situated in a well-wooded and
nearly level part of the county, the view being bounded
on the north-east by the Mendip hills, and on the west
by the Quantock hills : the river Parret divides it into
two parts, connected with each other by a handsome
iron bridge of one arch. The western part is particu-
larly clean : the streets are spacious, well paved, and
lighted ; the houses, chiefly of brick, are vniform and
well built ; and there is an ample supply of excellent
water from springs. The eastern part, termed Eastover,
is inferior in appearance to the western; though very
great improvement has been effected in both of late
years. The foreign trade consists in the importation of
e pasdpaly spesrite, GOl e Tadight Bt o

is principally coa is br
Et:; frm’:iMonmunthlhire and Wales, and is conveyed
into the interior of the county by a canal to Taunton,
The quay, which has been recently improved, is acces-
sible to ships of two hundred tons’ burden, and is
farnished with every appendage requisite for the con-

venicnoe of commerce : the number of vessels helong

to the port, according to the return in 1828, is forty-five,
"ﬂﬂmt}’rm#ns‘ burden. The princip e
of employment is the making of bricks for ge

' ks, camposed of s mixtare of clty siffbuad
st by e s ik i Gtane f 1
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bridge, beyond which it is unfit for the parpose; and dists, and Unitarians. The free grammar. school was
a peculior kind of brick, resembling Bath stone, of founded in 1561,and endowed by Queen Elizabeth with
various sizes, from the ordinary dimensions to the #£6. 13, 4. per annum, | on the tithes of the pa-
n_lminwhichthathatoneis ﬂ;fnrﬂ':iu‘m’dthe rish,mﬂl__ mhglmmofalwmzom%
-bricks patents have y itisu e control of the corporation, who appoint
master, and the inspection of the bishop of the diocese:

The market days are Tuesday, for W es; Th v,
principally for corn and cattle ; s;mdiy, the gg-
neral market for provisions: the market-house, lately
erected, is a handsome building, surmounted with a dome
and lantern, and having a semi-circular portico of the
Ionic order. The fairs are on the first Monday in Lent,
July 24th, October 2nd (which continues for three days,
the first being noted for the sale of linen and woollen
cloth, eattle, and general merchandise), and Dee, 27th.
The government, by char-
ter of incorporation granted
Aiktoily. eacei s
tly en un

confirmed gy Edward IV, |{
Elizabeth, and Charles IL., is 85
vested in a mayor, recorder,
two aldermen, two bailiffs, or
sheriffs, and eighteen bur- ¢
gesses, assisted by a town-
clerk, threeserjeantsat mace,
and subordinate officers. The
mayor and bailiffs are chosen
annually, but the rest usually hold their offices during
life : the mayor, recorder, and aldermen, are justices of
the peace within the borough and parish. The freedom
is inherited by the eldest sons of freemen, and acquired
by servitude and gift ; among the privileges which it
conveys is the freedom of all ports in England and Ire-
land, except those of London and Dublin. The corpo-
ration hold quarterly courts of session for the trial of all
except those accused of capital crimes, and
courts of record for the recovery of debts to any amount.
The summer assizes, alternately with Wells, and the
summer®sessions for the county, are held here. The
judges' mansion is a handsome modern edifice, contain-
ing apartments for the judges, the borough court-rooms,
and a room for the grand jury. The borough prison
contains distinct de ents for debtors and eriminals ;
the latter are only confined there previously to trial, or
to their committal to the county gaol. The b

first sent tatives to parliament in the 23rd

j

of Edward L, since which time it has continued to

four boys are instructed gratuitously in E ‘and the
classics. A school, now conducted on Dr, Bell's system,
was founded by Mr.John Morgan, in 1728, and endowed
with ninety-seven acres of land: the managément is
vested in the corporation, the archdeacon of Taunton, the
vicar of Bridg-water, and others, who, in 18186, erected
a school-room, and a house for the master : there are
thirty scholars, gome of whom' are clothed. A school
was alko founded, in 1781, by Mr, Edward Fackerell,
who endowed it with the dividends on £3000 in the
three per cent. cnnsols.,h and the ur:?‘i: of thor:e mes-
suages, produ ¢r dn ann come of £174,
for e]otlring, S;ngmuﬂ‘gﬂg, and apprenticing the children
and grandehildren of certain relatives named in his
will, and so many other children a5 the funds might
allow: the provisions of the will were afterwards re-
stricted, by the court of Chancery, to the children of his
relatives, the number of whom, at the last report, had
increased to thirty : the management, by the tor's
will, is vested in trustees, whose accounts are ically
audited by a master in Chancery. Almshouses, originally
endowed by Major Ingram, of Westminster, with £ 18
per annum, are now appropriated to the poor of the
parish, and the endowment is distributed among poor
widows mot receiving parochial relief. The infirmary,
# commodions building, was established in 1813, and
is supported by subscription. Admiral Blake was born
here, in 1599, and received the rudiments of his eduea-
tion in the free mar school. Bridg-water confers
the title of earl on the family of Egerton,
BRIDLINGTON, a parish in the wapentake of
Dickering, East riding of the county of York, com-
priging the sea-port and market town of Bridlington,
the chapelries of Grindall and Specton, the townships
of Buckton, Hilderthorp, and Sewerby with Marton,
and the hamlet of Easton, and containing 5084 in-
habitants, of which number, 4275 are in the town of
Bridlington with Quay, 38 miles (E. N.E.) from York;
and g:'hlle (fl:!? from London. This place was chiefly re-
mark an extensive priory of Augusting canons
founded in. 1106, by Walter de Gaust, and dedicated
being exposed to injury from the vessels of the enemy,
was, by permission wded by -




of one spacious street, leading directly to the harbour.
This part of the town is much frequented for sea-bath-
ing, and contains hot and cold baths conveniently fitted
3 for the accommodation of visitors. About a quarter
a mile from the Quay is a chalybeate spring, in much
repute for its medicinal properties; and, in the harhour,
an ebbing and flowing spring was discovered in 1811,
that furnishes. an abundant supply of fresh water,
. The quay, on which h.dt:he cushmihuum}. affords ?ln
eeable promenade ; and the two piers forming the
fgrhm’. stretching out a considerable distance into
the ocean, command extensive prospects, especially the
northern pier, from which are fine views of Flamborough
Head and Bridlington bay. ' The harbour, which is
dafmdal by two batteries, one on the north, and the
other @it the south, side of the town, affords a secure
retreat to numerous coasting vessels that shelter there
during contrary winds ; and the bay, protected from

the north-west winds by the coast, and from the north-

winds by the promontory of h Head, offers
safe anchorage for ships in gales of wind from those
points. The port is a member of the port of Hull, and
the mumber of vessels belonging to it, according to
the return of 1829, is forty, averaging one hundred
and fifty-five tons' burden ; the number of vessels that
entered inward and ‘cleared outward, in 1826, was
nine British and-nineteen foreign, besides several en-
in the coasting trade. There is a small manu-

tory for hats ; the trade in corn and malt, formerly

' has declined since the opening of the Drif-
field canal to Hull ; there are several windmills for
,and o steam-mill for grinding bones. The market

is on Saturday ; and fairs for cattle, linen, and woollen
cloth, &c., are held on the Monday before Whitsuntide

and Oectober 21st.
%:hapmﬂmy,whh the rectory of
Argam in the archd of the East riding,
‘diocese of York, endowed with mﬂ private bene-
faction, £400 royal bounty, and £1 parliamentary
grant, and in the patronage of the Archbishop of York.
'he church is part of the ancient edifice bdoqgi:gi:;
riory, for i structure, of
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the extremitics of the horns being more than eleven feet
Eqﬂmmmmy,m of a treatise on the philuso-
pher’s stone, and who, in_ the earlier part of his life, was
a canon of Bridlington ; William de Newburgh, an emi-
nent histlrian in the reign of King John; John de
'l‘iridlinschn, prior of the v, and author of

Carmina Vaticinalia,” who died in 1379 ; and Rich-
ard Boyle, Earl of Burlington, a great patron of the
fine arts, whose title was derived from this place, and
became extinet at his death in 1758 ; were natives of
Bridlington,

BRIDPORT, a sea-port,
baroughi, market town, and
parish, having separate ju-
rigdiction, locally in the
hundred of Whitchurch-
Canonicorum, Bridport di-
vision of the county of [ :
Dorser, 14§ miles (W.) G
from Dorchester, and 134 g
(W. 8. w.) from London, on
the high road to Exeter,
containing 3742 inhabit-
ants. This place takes its
name from the river Bride, or Brit, which falls into the
sea at the harbour, about a mile and a half to the south
of it, It was a town of some importance in the tirhe
of Edward the Confessor, and is mentioned in Domes-
day-book as having a mint and an ecclesiastical estab-
lishment, During the civil war in the reign of Charles 1.,
it was garrisoned by the parlinment, but not being a
place of much strength, was alternately in the possession
of each party. In 1685, it was ised by some
troops in the interest of the Duke of Monmouth, under
Lord Grey, which were defeated by the king's forces,
and twelve of the principal insurgents were afterwards
executed. The town is situated in a fertile vale surronnd-
ed by hills, having on the west the river Bride, or Brit,
and on the east the river Asker, over which several
bridges ; these rivers unite a little below the town. It
is chiefly formed by three spacious streets, containing
many handsome modern houses, and is well paved, and
lighfed with elegant lamps, adapted to the future in-
troduction of gas; the inhabitants are amply supplied
with water.

The trade of the port consists pri in the im-
portation of hemp, flax, and timber, from Russia and the
Baltic, and timber from America and Norway ; there is
also a considerable coasting trade, by which the adjacent
are with from Wales and the collie-
the north of and with other articles of
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great improvement was made. Another act was obtained
in 1828, in which, and the three mup-..
wards of £19,000 have been expended, in enlarging th
basin, and filling the piers with masonry, sothtthehr-
bour is now perfectly safe and The num-
ber of vessels belonging to the port is fr to
thirty, of from eighty to one hundred and thirty tons'
burden each. The principal articles of manufacture
are nets, lines, small twine, girth-webbing, cordage, and
sail-cloth for the use of the home and colonial fisheries,
particularly for those of Newfoundland and Nova Scotia,
in which ten thousand persons are generally employed
in the town and neighbourhood. 1In the reign of
Henry VIIL, the for the whole of the English
navy was ordered to be made at Bridport, or within five
miles of it exclugively. The markets are on Wednesday
and Saturday: fairs are held on April 6th and October
11th, for horses, horned cattle, and cheese, and there
is a mn!lerftm' ouHolyThuuday
The government, by char- -
ter of incorporation origin-
ally by Henry IIL,
confirmed by Richard II.,
Henry VIIL, and Elizabeth, \
and renewed and extended e
by James L and Charles IT,, ¢
is vested in two bailiffs, a
recorder, deputy- recorder -
and fifteen , Assist-
ed by a town-clerk, two ser-
jeants at mace, and subor-
dinate officers. The bailiffs,
who, with the late bailiffs, are justices of the peace
within the borough (which is co-extensive with the pa-
rish), are chosen at Michaelmas, by the burgesses; the
mwder, deputy-recorder, and ’town-clerk, are chosen
by the corporation, subject to approval by the king.
. The corporation hold a court of session once a year, a
court of for the recovery of debts under £20
every Monday, and a court leet annually. The
elective franchise was conferred in the 23rd of Edward L.,
since which time the borough has regularly returned two
mﬁa right of election is vested
g scot and lot, and non-resident
members of the living within teb miles of the
borough, of which latter thenumber islimited to five; the
whole number of electors is about two hundred and
fifty : the bailiffs are the officers. The town-
hall is a handsome brick building faced with Portland
stone, containing, in the upper story, a court for the
‘sessions, a room the grand jury, and a
3 it 'was in 1786, on the site of
thelndent elmpel of St. Andrew, in the centre of the
hmnczofpulinment nnduwhichthemfh
: there is also a prison forr.ha con-

‘l!ba-living 8 dhehugedreeem-ylnmm
Bwult.amdﬂimdhhuﬂ,nﬂbﬁc
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Eustace - of Hainault, related to Queen
Phﬂ:ppa.mmm of worship for the Sociaty
of Friends, , Wesleyan Methodists, and
Unitarians. The free school was founded and endowed, in
1708, by Daniel Taylor, one of the Society of Friends :
the management is vested in trustees appointed by the
members of that society, resident in Bridport and its
vieinity. There is also an almshouse, founded by the
same individual in 1696, Mr. Robert Bull, in 1730,
left £200, d:recﬁngthatofthc interest. £4 per annum
should be given for the instruction of twelve children,
and £8 to twelve poor men ; and a portion of the rent
ofeightmandnhalfofland purchased by . the
corporation, with money vested in them as trustees,
is appropriated to the maintenance of a school. Tur-
tle stone and cornua_ammonis are found in the neigh-

quarries, and copperas stones on the beach,
about four miles west of the harbour. Bridport con-
fers the titles of baron and viscount on the family of
Hood.

BRIDSTOW, a parish in the lower division of the
hundred of WormeLow, county of HErerorp, 14 mile
(W.N.W.) from Ross, containing 541 inhabitants. The
living is a vi in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Hereford, rated in the king's hooks at £9. 3. 114.,
and in the of the Bishop of Herefo The
church is dedicated to 8t. Bridget. Wilton castle, the
ruins of which constitute an interesting object on the
western bank of the Wye, in this neighbourhood, was
anciently the baronial residence of the noble family of
Grey, who assumed their title from this place : it was
burnt by order of the royalist governor at Hereford,
during the parliamentary war, and the walls are now
overspread with ivy.

BRIERDEAN, a township in the parish of Eans-
DON, eastern divigion of CasTre ward, county of Nontn-
UMBERLAND, 63 miles (N.N.E.) from Newcastle, con-
taining 52 inhabitants, There are quarries of excellent
freestone, and a colliery in the township : here are also
the ruins of a strong fortress,

BRIERLY, a township in the parish of anmx, ;
wapentake of Srarncnoss, West riding of the county
of Yorxk, 64 miles (N.E. by E.) from Barnesley, con-
taining 452 inhabitants.  There is a place of worship
for Wesleyan Methodists.

BRIERLY-HILL, a chapelry in the of

Kixg's Swinrorp, northern division of the hundred
of Suispox, county of STa¥rorp, 2% miles (N.N.EB.)
from Stourbridge. The population is returned with the
. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the arch-
of de, and diocese of Lmhﬁdd und

dmmy
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e ) :;Whhm in AvierpaLe ward above
vent, county BERLAND, comprising the bo-
rough and market town of Cockermouth, the chapelrics
of Buttermere, Embleton, Mosser, and Setmurthey, and
the townships of Blindbothel, Brigham, Eaglesfield, Gray-
southen, and Whinfell, and containing
of which number; 300 are in the township of Bri y
2 miles (W.) from Cockermouth, The li - is a:i;-,
charged vicarage, in the of Ri
and diocese of Chester, rated in the king's books at
£20, 16. 04., and in the of the Earl of Lons-
dale. The church, dedicated to St. Bridget, is an ancient
ructure, with an elegant decorated window in the south
aisle, & curious circular one in the same style, and a
monumental arch; richly canopied : it stands on the
southern bank of the Derwent, about half a mile from
the village, which is situated on an eminence command-
ing = richly diversified prospect, and contains some
respectable dwelling-houses.  Bassenthwaite, Butter-
mere, Crummock, and Loweswater lakes, and the rivers
Derwent and Maron, form the boundaries of the pa-
rish, which is also intersected by the river Cocker; it
containg quarries of limestone, freestone, and blue slate,
and a mine of coal. The surface is hilly, but the
eminences are now chiefly under cultivation, the waste
lands having been enclosed. i is within the
honour of Cockermouth, and the copyhold tenants
attend at the court of dimissions held there at Christ-
mas, and at the court leet held at Easter and Michael-
to the Earl of Egremont, as lord pa-

BRIGHAM, a township in the parish of Fosron

Wokps, e of Dickering, East riding of

the county of Yorxk, 54 miles (8. E.) from Great Drif-

field, containing 103 inhabitants. There is a place of
worship for Wesleyan Methodists. " ;

BRIGHOUSE, a joint township with Hipperholme,

arish of Havirax, wapentake of Moruey, West

“of the county of York, 4 miles (N. by E.) from

' ion i with Hipper-

olme, This village, which of late years has risen into

2 consiflerable state of prosperity, and is now rapidly
thriving, i8 sitoated on the banks o ;
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of Waarzssone, rape of 0
, county of Svssex, ¢j

30 miles (E.) from Chiches- §
ter, and 54 (8.) from Lon- (@
don, containing 24,429 in- SN
habitants, according to the
census of 1821, since which
time the population hus
very much increased. This
place, in the Saxon lan-
guage termed Brighthelmestun, in Domesday-book Bris-
tlemeston, and now, by contraction, generally Brighton,
is to have taken it¢ name from the Saxon
bishop, Brighthelme, who resided in the vicinity. It
was anciently a fortified town of considerable import.-
ance, and by some antiquaries is posed to have
w the &l:m where hf.uarb.l;nded on his invasion of
itain : this opinion has probably been suggested by the
quantity of Roman coins found in the town, thuyvnst
number of human bones, of extraordinary size, which
has been discovered for nearly a fhile along the coast
westward, and the traces of lines and intrenchments, in
the immediate vicinity, bearing strong marks of Roman
construction. From a fortified town it was, by succes-
sive encroachments of the sea, reduced to an incon-
siderable village ; and, soon after the was inha-
bited principally by fishermen : it was frequently assaulted
by the French, who, in the reign of Henry VIIL,, plundered
and burnt it. As a protection against their future
attacks, fortifications were erected, which were subse-
quently repaired and enlarged by Queen Elizabeth, who
built a wall with four lofty gates of freestone for its
better defence, After the fatal battle of Worcester,
Charles II. retired in privacy to this place, whence he
embarked for France., In the years 1665 and 1669, an
irruption of the sea destroyed a consi e part
of the town, and inundated a large tract of land ad-
joining ; and in 1708, 1705, and 1706, thé fortifications
were undermined, and many houses destroyed by tre-
mendous storms and inundations, that threatened its
annihilation. In the reign of George 1L, Brighton began
to rise into consideration as a bathing-place, from the
writings of Dr. Russel, a resident physician, who recom-
mended the sea-water here, as containing a greater pro-
portion of salt than that of other places, and therefore
more efficacious in the cure of serofulous and glandular
complaints: its was accelerated by the discovery
of a chalybeate spring, in 47§, the water of which being

administered

Geoege TV, wh, 4 11844 When Prioce of Welks: e
ed a t palace here, now the occasional resi-



is quadrangular : the streets, whichm
intersect each other at l:ght mgles,
lighted with gas, and inhabitants are I
supplied with water. The houses in the older part of

pearance ; those in the modern part are more uniform,
and many of them clegant : these are chiefly situated on
the c‘!iﬂ‘s, commanding extensive views of the sea, and
comprise on the eastern cliff, the Royal Crescent, the
buildings on the New Steyne, the Marine Para ﬁgex-
tending from the New to the Old Steyne,) the Pavilion
Puarade, and the houses on the Old Steyne (including
two splendid hotels and a handsome library); and on the
western cliff, Cannon-place (near which a ificent
hotel is now heing erected), Bedford-square, Regency-
square, and Brunswick-square and terrace, ranges of
elegant houses, in front of which lust is an esplanade,
an extensive and fashionable promenade. On the road
from Lewes are, Hapover Crescent, the area of which is
tastefully laid out, Richmond Terrace, the buildings on
the North Steyne ; and to the east, Dorset-gardens, with
# pleasure-ground in frout, in which fire twe octagoual
temples : on the London road are some neat houses in
the cottage style, York-place, and St, George's-place, a
handsome row of houses with circular fronts. Kemp
Town, to the east, built by Thomas Read Kemp, Esq.,
is a gplendid range of buudln%l: occupying three sides
of a spacious ¢ extremity of each of
which a row of houses of similar appearance has been
n.dded from the area, which is elegantly sed into
Emds is a descent through an arch, le
e beach. The Pavilion, begun in 1784, an
eumpleled in 1827, by his late Majesty, is a magni-
ficent structure in the oriental style of architecture, on
the model of the Kremlin at Moscow. Toward the sea,
the view Jhie'h ig excluded by the buildings called
Castle-squ it has a handsome stone front, of two
hlmdred feet in length, with a circular building in the
centre, surmounted by & lofty dome supported on pillars,
and connected with it on the west is the royal chapel,
consecrated in 1822, and capable of accommodati
ane thousand persons. Behind the Pavilion are the
. Stables, a circular structure in
the Arabian style, surm with a dome of
- which, reflecting the rays of a meridian sun, ptngul:;
an extraordinary and heantihl effect ; on the
east gide of the quadrangle, ch they are situated,

ku ,andonthumtari ~house,
'ﬂmg:mdenldau-um,‘vw a‘::%gshmhth '

“have been constructed with regard to the conve-
'dmofﬂu invalid; those at the New Steyne hotel
ised TRl e

‘on the western cliff, where there is a

..*°..*.!==_

and the various shops are ricMy m every
article of luxury or use. There mmm ] s,
replete with choice works of every description: assem-
blies are held at the hotels, in which are elegant and
spacious rooms, superbly fitted up. The theatre,a hand-
some building erected in 1807, is open for the

during the recess of the London patent theatres, and has
the assistance of the best metropolitan performers.  The
races, which continue for four or five days, are held on
the downs, the first week in August, The
to the north of the town, including a spacions
ground, are appropriated to various am
park and the South Downs afford pleasant dnd exl«ﬁ
sive rides. The O1d Steyne is adorned with a fine statue
of George TV, by Chantrey ; and comprises the North
and South Parades and several other pleasant walks :
the promenade commences after the heat of the da
has subsided, and continues till night, the royal mili-
tary band heing ocmmnn.lly in attendance,

The suspension chain pier, constructed in 1521, at
an expense of £ 30,000, under the superintendence of
Captain Brown, R.N., to facilitate the landing and em-
barkation, forms also a favourite promenade, one thou-
sund two hundred feet in length, and fourteen feet in
breadth: on the piershead, which, in a transverse direc-
tion, is sixty feet long and twenty feet broad, are seats
protected from the rain and shaded from the sun hy a
large awning. The foundation of this noble and nious
structure consists of massive piers formed by clusters
of piles driven ten feet into the rock, over which are
carried strong ohains of iron, secnrely fastened at one
end to the shore, and at the other to the pier-head,
having a dip of eighteen fect between the piers: from
these chains descend dicular rods of iron con-
nected by bars, and firmly bolted into the platform
suspended beneath ; below the pier-head are tiers of
gulleries, with flights of steps for the convénience of
landing or embarking at any state of the tide. The
Esplanade, one thousand two hundred feet und
forty feet wide, connects the chain-pier with the
Among the many recent improvements is the forma
‘of a carriage road over the beach, thus : the
¢liff road with the Marine Parade. There are harracks
for infantry in the town, and for cavalry at the distance
of a mile on the road to Lewes. The artillery harracks

of
ordnmbeforﬂwddenceofthebeach ::mm
dwelling-houses ; twnllh:sboenmiuadm&e
l.lded’them,tn protect it from the ena
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‘Brighton and London, numerous coaches are employed
ily. mm?atmuuhlhhadbyactofpnrﬁment,
in 1778 : the principal market is on Thursday, but there
gre daily markets for the supply of the inhabitants : the
fairs are on Holy Thursday and 4th. A

" pew and commodious market-house was built on the site
of the old workhouse, in 1829, The town is within
the jurisdiction of the county magistrates

, who hold
meetings every Monday and Thursday ; but the direction
of police and parochial affairs is entrusted, under an
act of parliament, to a corporate body of one hundred
and twelve commissioners, who are elected by the inha-
bitants paying scot and lot from among themselves,
and whogo out septennially by rotation ; they appoint
a town-clerk, surveyor, collectors of tolls and duties,
police officers, criers, and watchmen : a constable, eight
headboroughs, and other officers are chosen annually
at the court leet for the hundred. A town-hall, more
suited to the character and importance of the place than
the former, which has been taken down, is now being
rebuilt on the site of the old market-house,

The living is a vicarage, with the rectory of West
Blatchington consolidated, in the archdeaconry of Lewes,
and diocese of Chichester, rated in the king's books at
£20, 2. 14., and in the patronage of the Crown. The
church, dedicated to St.Nicholas, is a spacious ancient
structure, partly in the decorated, and partly in the later
style of English architecture, standing on the summit
of a hill, one hundred and fifty feet above the level of
the sea, and having a square tower, which serves as
a land-mark to mariners ; within are, a fine screen of
richly carved oak, and an antique font brought from
Normandy in the reign of William the Conqueror, em-
bellished with sculptured representations of the Last
Supper, and of the miracles of our Saviour, St Peter's
is an elegant structure in the later style of English
architecture, with a square embattled tower, erected in
1827, partly by grant from the parliamentary commis-
sioners, and containing one thousand one hundred and
nineteen free sittings ; it is a chapel of ease to the
church of St. Nicholas. The chapel royal in North-
strect, the chapels of St.James and St. Mary in St.
James' street, St. Margaret's in Cannon-place, St.
George's near Kemp Town, and Trinity chapel in Ship-
street, are all connected with the establishment. There
are two places of worship for Particular Baptists, three
for _ ts, and one each for the Society of
grhnds, those in the connexion of the late Cosntéess utcc:

untingdon, Huntmegltnmana' ians, Methodists, and Sc
S %; also Bethel chapel, in connexion with the
%' Friend Society, a Roman Catholic chapel, and
ne. There are numerous free schools hjfz; the
n of poor children, the principal of w are
hm \er-street, for clothing and edu-
in 1811, and endowed with £7100,
q.; the Blue-coat school in Ship-
boys, to which Wil-
68, bequeathed £1952. 10,10,
for the children of fisher-

ween § Middle-street, supported by the several congregations

of dissenters, The county hospital, a spacious and com-
modious building, on an eminence near the East Downs,
is well regulated, and liberally supported by subscrip-
tion: the dispensary is supported by annual subscription,
and there are also six almshouses for aged widows. On
White Hawke hill, near the race-course, on which a sig-
nal-house has been erected, are the remains of an en-
campment, having a narrow entrance on the north, where
it is defended by a double intrenchment ; and on Hol-
lingsbury hill, a second station for signals, about two
miles north of the town, are vestiges of a large circular
encampment, in which are several tumuli, In 1750, an
urn, containing one thousand silver denarii, of the em-
perors from Antoninus Pius to Philip, was found near
the town ; and in the immediate vicinity are numerous
remains of altars and other Druidical monuments.

BRIGHTLING, a parish in the hundred of NeTaen-
FIELD, rape of Hastings, county of Sussex, 4 miles
(8. w.) from Battle, containing 641 inhabitants, The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Lewes, and
diocese of Chichester, rated in the king's books at £11,
and in the patronage of the Rew J. B, Hayley. The
church, dedicated to St.Thomas i Becket, is principally
in the later style of English architecture. Mary Her-
bert, in 1728, gave £200, which, aided by other bhene-
fuctions, now produces £ 10 per annum, for which eleven
girls are instructed ; and there is a fund kept in reserve
for the future erection of a school-room.

BRIGHTLINGSEA, s parish- in the hundred of
Texpring, county of Essex, 9 miles (8. E.) from Col-
chester, containing 1528 inhabitants. The living is a
discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Colchester,
and diocese of London, rated in the king's books at
£17. 0. 5., endowed with £200 private benefaction, and
£200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Bi-
shop of London. The church, which is situated about
a mile and a half from the village, is dedicated to All
Saints. There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Me-
thodists. The parish constitutes a penfhsula, formed ,
by the wstuary of the river Colne on the west, and
that of a smaller river on the east. There is a trifling
endowment for parochial schools.

BRIGHTSIDE-BIERLOW, a township in that part
of the parish of SmerrikLp which is in the northern
division of the wapentake of SrrarrorTa and Tick-
miLL, West riding of the county of Yonrx, 3 miles (N.
E.) from Sheffield, containing 6615 inhabitants. Here
are large iron-works, and the manufacture of table
kaives, scythes, &e., is camried on extensively. A school
at Grimesthorpe was established about 1762, and re-
built, with a dwelling-house for the master, in 1802 ;
it is endowed with £15. 10. per annum, for which the
master teaches twelye children,

BRIGHT-WALTHAM, county of Berks, — See
WALTHAM (BRIGHT).

BRIGHTWELL, a parish in the hundred of Monx-
TON, county of Benks, 24 miles (W.N.W.) from Wal-
lingford, containing, with the bamlets of Mackney and




